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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEIEH

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Hung Tsung Chin
(resigned as Chairman but remained as an Executive Director
with effect from 18 August 2017)
Mr. Chen Wei Chun
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with effect from 30 November 2017)
Ms. Chen Mei Huei
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with effect from 18 August 2017)
Mr. Liao Wen |
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(resigned with effect from 7 August 2017)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)

NEER (&)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Wu Chia Ming (Committee Chairman)
(appointed as Committee Chairman
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Mr. Hung Tsung Chin
(resigned with effect from 18 August 2017)
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Mr. Lau Yau Cheung (Committee Chairman)
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with effect from 7 August 2017)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Bank SinoPac

CTBC Bank Co,, Ltd.
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Taishin International Bank Co., Ltd.

AUDITOR
BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISOR

Minter Ellison

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

In Hong Kong

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai
Hong Kong

In Taiwan

KGI Securities Co., Ltd.
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
ETRIBRFE

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of the directors (the “Directors”) of
Sandmartin International Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries collectively referred to as the “Group”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017.

For the Group, the year of 2017 was a challenging one as the financial
performance of the Group had underperformed due to several internal
and external factors. Internally, the Group has been restructuring its
manufacturing segments to improve staff utilization and to terminate
production lines with low efficiency. In anticipation of the booming and
progressive digitalization of the pay television market in India, some of the
production lines of the Group are moving to India. Further, the reallocation
of funding for the development of the satellite TV broadcasting business
adversely impacted the business performance of other segments of the
Group. Externally, the Group has been struggling with the changes in
product mix to cater to the latest market appetites and the ongoing
competition from other original equipment manufacturers, especially
those from the People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has continued

to invest in the satellite TV broadcasting business which is correlated

to our manufacturing and trading of electronic products business. The
Group's 51%-owned subsidiary, My HD Media FZ-LLC ("MyHD") launched
the GOBX Project with Middle East Broadcasting Center (“MBC"), a
renowned broadcaster in Middle East since October 2016. The satellite
TV broadcasting business is still in the development stage to build up
customer bases by purchasing high quality and highly demand television
content and promoting them to new subscribers. It incurred substantial
amounts of programming costs including payment for content fees,
renting satellite transponders, purchase of set-top boxes and payment
for dealer's commission for marketing and promotion. As this satellite TV
broadcasting business is a long-term investment project and the high
running costs-per-subscriber before the subscription revenue achieved
break-even, the Group recorded a segment loss of HK$147,971,000 from
the satellite TV broadcasting segment for the year ended 31 December
2017.The Group expects the customer base to continue growing in the
coming years.
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
ETRBBRRERE (&)

Meanwhile, the Group is looking for other potential business partners or N EFgIVeEMEBETERRHIIEEER
investors to cooperate with the Group in the satellite TV broadcasting AEBGEETHERERBESS - B8H
business. In particular, the Group entered into a strategic cooperation AEBR-_ZT—+tFT+_HERFTEBERR
agreement with TongFang Global Limited in December 2017 for the R BBE S 1R - AR FAMyHDEYVER B 5 iﬂiﬁ
distribution of television sets and SmartHome equipment in the Middle AR R Ab FEH [ 55 85 T AR # K2 SmartHome (%98
East and North Africa region by leveraging the existing distribution RE)RE BEI—F—K]EF MyHDIIR = gé
network of MyHD. In response to the “One Belt One Road Initiative”, —tF+AEPBEBBEHRE BRI LA ERZE
MyHD also entered into a cooperation agreement with China Educational LUBEBMyHDHE 2 ST E BEFESEEN P R - )8
Channels in October 2017 for the broadcasting of channels operated by KIEM ( [MEMA |) BERTEBIBRHEER A EE
China Educational Channels in the Middle East, Mediterranean and Africa Eo7ER el

("MEMA") region via the satellite broadcasting channels supplied by MyHD.

After nearly thirty years of development, the Group has become KB =T ENBERE AEBECKAEERENR
a trustworthy brand which distributes quality products and offers k& - EKE THHEBEER MEREESSREHN M
professional integration services for the pay television industry. We will MR- BMGEE DR SEREE RIS MR
continue to strengthen our brand through various brand management 180 AR R 2 -

strategies.

Lau Yau Cheung FE

Chairman 2l 4h 7
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EHBREREEENWED T

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHT AND BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group recorded a significant decrease in gross profit from 10.17%

for the year ended 31 December 2016 to 4.97% for the year ended 31
December 2017 due to the subscription revenue of the satellite TV
broadcasting segment not being able to cover the substantial amount

of programming costs incurred for the satellite TV broadcasting business.
Programming costs included payment for content fees, renting satellite
channels and transponders and purchase of set-top boxes. The gross profit
margin of the Group excluding the satellite TV broadcasting segment
decreased from 14.24% for the year ended 31 December 2016 to 13.29%
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

MEDIA ENTERTAINMENT PLATFORM RELATED
PRODUCTS

In 2017, the Group's media entertainment platform related products
segment faced fierce market competition from other set-top box
manufacturers in the PRC and lost some of its purchase orders due to the
shortage of funding from the Group before the completion of the open
offer ("Open Offer") of the Company, which led to a 37.52% decrease in
revenue as compared with the year ended 31 December 2016. Other
reasons for the significant decline in segment revenue were as follows:

(i) The Group stopped shipment of goods to certain customers in
Morocco due to increase in their credit risk;

(ii) The delay in phase 3 and phase 4 digitalisation of pay TV in India,
which reduced the revenue from this new emerging market;
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EBBMENEERBNWED N (&)

(iif) Starting from the fourth quarter in 2017, the prices of raw materials
such as central processing units (“CPU"), integrated circuits (“IC")
and random access memory (‘RAM”) increased substantially due to
the shortage of wafers, a crucial material for the production of CPU
and IC.

- Segment revenue of media entertainment platform
related products was approximately HK$237,214,000
(2016: HK$379,652,000).

- Segment results from operations were approximately
HK$30,868,000 (2016: HK$12,325,000), which included
reversal of impairment loss on trade and other receivables
of HK$23,405,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017.

- Segment margin was 13.01% which increased by 9.76
percentage-point as compared with the segment margin of
3.25% for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Outlook

The market competition is even more fierce than before due to direct
competition from other set-top box manufacturers in the PRC, and the
substantial increase in prices of raw materials consequently reduced the
profit margin of our products in the end. Therefore, we are exploring new
markets for our future development, for example television digitalization
in India which would create a great opportunity for us to sell our television
set-top boxes, one of our main products in this segment.

OTHER MULTIMEDIA PRODUCTS

In 2017, the market competition remained intense, however the Group's
other multimedia products segment was able to deliver an increase in
revenue by 8.74% as compared with the year ended 31 December 2016.
Major products of this segment included high definition multimedia
interface ("HDMI") cables, multimedia accessories, external batteries and
retractable chargers. Segment results dropped by 23.52% due to the
decrease in profit margin for the electronic products amidst the fierce
competition in the industry.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EBBMENEERBNWED N (&)

- Segment revenue of other multimedia products was approximately
HK$260,280,000 (2016: HK$239,353,000).

- Segment results from operations were approximately
HK$18,335,000 (2016: HK$23,973,000).

- Segment margin was 7.04% which decreased by 2.98 percentage-
point as compared with the segment margin of 10.02% for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Outlook

We are enhancing our product portfolio and developing new businesses.
One of our major projects is the business of original design manufacturing
production and distribution arrangement with a multinational technology
company of computer electronic equipment. We believe this project will
achieve fruitful growth for this segment.

SATELLITE TV EQUIPMENT AND ANTENNA
PRODUCTS

The launch of new models of satellite TV equipment in late 2016 and the
optimization of product mix maintained the profitability of this segment,
with a decrease of 16.18% in revenue but with a slight increase of 1.93%
in segment results compared with the year ended 31 December 2016.
Low noise blocking down converters (“LNB") remained one of the major
products of this segment, and North America was our largest market for
revenue contribution.

- Segment revenue of satellite TV equipment and antenna products
was approximately HK$980,263,000 (2016: HKS$1,169,525,000).

- Segment results from operations were approximately
HK$106,425,000 (2016: HK$104,407,000).

- Segment margin was 10.86%, which increased by 1.93 percentage-
point as compared with the segment margin of 8.93% for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Outlook

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the profitability of this segment
showed a slight growth. LNBs are receiving devices mounted on satellite
dishes used for reception, which collect radio waves from the satellite
dishes and facilitate the transmission of satellite television signals. We
believe this product will continue to grow gradually in this segment.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EBBMENEERBNWED N (&)

SATELLITE TV BROADCASTING

The significant loss from operations in this segment was due to the
acquisition of MyHD, a limited liability company incorporated in Dubai,
United Arab Emirates which had become a 51%-owned subsidiary of the
Company since 5 July 2016. MyHD is headquartered in Dubai Media City. It
is principally engaged in the business of providing Direct-to-Home satellite
television broadcasting services in 22 countries in MEMA, which has 60
million households. The satellite TV broadcasting business of MyHD is

still in its development stage of building up its customer base and MyHD
incurred significant losses due to the high running costs per subscriber
before subscription revenue reached break-even. Although the market for
satellite TV broadcasting remained competitive during 2017, the segment
still successfully increased its market share, which led to a 470.68%
increase in revenue as compared with the year ended 31 December 2016.

- Segment revenue of satellite TV broadcasting was approximately
HK$65,862,000 (2016: HK$11,541,000).

- Segment losses from operations were approximately
HK$147,971,000 (2016: HK$69,670,000).

- Segment loss margin was 224.67% which decreased by 379
percentage-point as compared with 603.67% for the year ended 31
December 2016.

Outlook

With the successful launch of GOBX in October 2016, GOBX will be a
growth factor for the satellite pay television business of MyHD in the
MEMA region. Based on past historical information of the number of
subscribers, the number of subscribers of MyHD has been increasing after
the launch of GOBX project in Saudi Arabia in collaboration with MBC, one
of the largest television operators and content providers in the Middle
East.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EBBMENEERBNWED N (&)

Based on the Company'’s investment experience in Dish Media Network
Limited (the "Dish Media"), a pay television operator in Nepal (which

is owned as to approximately 47.12% by the Company), and its market
knowledge in MEMA, the pay television operations is a capital intensive
investment project, which requires large amounts of funding in its initial
stage of investment and takes several years to develop localised content
and subscriber base before it turns into a cash cow business. We believe
that the subscribers of the satellite TV broadcasting business in MEMA will
continue to grow.

GEOGRAPHICAL RESULTS
AFRICA

- Segment revenue for Africa for the year ended 31 December
2017 was approximately HK$12,973,000, as compared with
the year ended 31 December 2016 which was approximately
HK$71,794,000.

- 81.93% drop in segment revenue as compared with the year ended
31 December 2016.

- Africa’s portion accounted for approximately 0.84% of the Group's
total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: 3.99%).

ASIA

- Segment revenue for Asia for the year ended 31 December
2017 was approximately HK$176,252,000, as compared with
the year ended 31 December 2016 which was approximately
HK$268,484,000.

- 34.35% drop in segment revenue as compared with the year ended
31 December 2016.

- Asia’s portion accounted for approximately 11.41% of the Group's
total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: 14.90%).

EUROPE

- Segment revenue for Europe for the year ended 31 December
2017 was approximately HK$198,355,000, as compared with
the year ended 31 December 2016 which was approximately
HK$157,281,000.

- 26.12% growth in segment revenue as compared with the year
ended 31 December 2016.

- Europe’s portion accounted for approximately 12.84% of the
Group's total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
8.73%).
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
ERBENRETEENWED T (&)

MIDDLE EAST PR

- Segment revenue for the Middle East for the year ended 31 — REBEZZE—tF+_A=1+—HILFER
December 2017 was approximately HK$96,091,000, as compared OB 145()\2']/%96 091,000 7L MEE_F
with the year ended 31 December 2016 which was approximately —RNFTZ A=+ —HBIEFELE62,522,000
HK$62,522,000. BT
53.69% growth in segment revenue as compared with the year - DERAEBE T —RF+_A=+—H
ended 31 December 2016. LIEFE AR R 53.69% ©
the Middle East’s portion accounted for approximately 6.22% of the - REBEZE—tF+_A=1+—HILFEH
Group's total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: RO ANEBRBUAL22% (ZF—R
3.47%). F:347%) °

NORTH AMERICA 3t M

Segment revenue for North America for the year ended 31
December 2017 was approximately HK$1,000,050,000, as compared
with the year ended 31 December 2016 which was approximately
HK$1,148,707,000.

12.94% drop in segment revenue as compared with the year ended
31 December 2016.

North America’s portion accounted for approximately 64.73% of
the Group's total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017
(2016: 63.76%).

SOUTH AMERICA

Segment revenue for South America for the year ended 31
December 2017 was approximately HK$59,491,000, as compared
with the year ended 31 December 2016 which was approximately
HK$90,364,000.

34.17% drop in segment revenue as compared with the year ended
31 December 2016.

South America’s portion accounted for approximately 3.85% of the
Group's total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
5.02%).

- REBEE_T—+tF+-A=1+—HLFE
it%)ll“*lﬂ&)\i’w% ,000,050,000/8 7T * &,
E-T-RF+-_A=+—HILFEHA
1,148,707,000/%8 JT

- DHYAEFE —_E—RF+_A=+—H
LIEFE LR 2212.94% °

- REBEE_T—+tF+-A=1+—HLFE
b FEME D (A EBBRRAL6473% (=F
— N 63.76%) °

EEY

- REBE_T—+tF+-A=1+—HLFE
& 3 M 2 2RI A 49 A559,491,00058 7T » T &L
EZT-RF+ZA=+—RHLFELHNE
90,364,000/ 7T °

- DERAEFE T F+-_A=+—8
IEFERLL R A34.17% ©

- EAﬁK—ﬁ—tiJr—ﬁ:Jr—EtiFﬁ
FEMEBH R AEBE LU ALI385% (ZF—X
F:502%) °
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Outlook

As our business in Europe, North America and Middle East have continued AREMERM EEZEMRPRNEHBBEEER
to attain good performance and share more of our Group's revenue, we HHRRMOMEEZAREEHKA - BB MER
shall focus in these regions in future. BEsREtipE-
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EBHRENEERBNWED N (&)

OPEN OFFER

On 20 March 2017, the Company announced an Open Offer of
1,967,295,201 open offer shares (the "“Open Offer Shares”) on the basis of
three Open Offer Shares for every two shares of the Company then held
on the 12 May 2017 at the subscription price of HK$0.12 per Open Offer
Share. The completion of the Open Offer took place on 19 July 2017.
1,967,295,201 Open Offer Shares were allotted and issued pursuant to the
Open Offer and the net proceeds after deduction of expenses from the
Open Offer were approximately HK$223.7 million which was intended

to apply for such net proceeds as to (i) HK$138.5 million for repayment
of bank and other borrowings of the Group; (ii) HK$67 million for the
development of the Direct-to-Home satellite television service in MEMA,;
and (iii) HKS$ 15 million for general working capital of the Group as set out
in the prospectus of the Company dated 28 June 2017 (the “Prospectus”).

Details of the Open Offer were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 20 March 2017, 15 June 2017 and 18 July 2017; the
circular of the Company dated 24 May 2017; and the Prospectus.

NHBE

R-ZZE—+F=ZA-+H AQRASHAHEE
1,967,295 201 R AFAEER D ([ARAEERMK])
AN -_ZT—+tFRA+-_HEHEEMBAR
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AABERMI2BETL - ARBEER S —tF
A+ NBETEK 1,967,295 200 R AAEERHDE
BB NSRS KT IKRAENRMAE
EFT1S FIBF 5B 4 5223,700,00058 7T AR A # 15
ZEMSFIEFERHOARFTERE-T—+
FRNAZTN\BNERER ([ERER]) FEO)
138,500,000/ T AN EE RN EE 2 R1TT R EME
B 1 (i) 67,000,000/ T AR TEMEMAB R EE AER
B BERIR (i) 15,000,000 7 AEANEE 2 —
REEES-

AABRENFBREERARAARA-_ZT—tF
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
LB 3CI

REVENUE

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 was approximately
HK$1,544.8 million, representing a decline of 14.25% compared with
approximately HK$1,801.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2016.
The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the underperformance of the
Group’s media entertainment platform related products segment during
the year.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

Loss attributable to shareholders of the Company was approximately
HK$105.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 representing an
increase of 36.16%, compared with approximately HK$77.7 million for year
ended 31 December 2016. The loss mainly arose from the loss absorbed
from the Group's satellite TV broadcasting segment as the subscription
revenue was not able to cover the programming costs of the satellite TV
broadcasting.

LOSS PER SHARE

Calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2017
was based on the loss attributable to shareholders of the Company and
the weighted average number of 2,352,317,330 (2016: 1,457,505,237 as
restated) ordinary shares in issue during the year. Basic loss per share was
4.5 HK cents for 2017, as compared with 5.3 HK cents as restated for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

FINANCE COSTS

The Group's finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
approximately HK$27.2 million, compared to approximately HK$14.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2016. The increase in finance costs
was mainly due to the increase in the average interest rates in bank and
other borrowings.

INCOME TAX

Income tax for the year ended 31 December 2017 was approximately
HK$8.8 million (2016: HKS14.6 million).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
FH Bl RE (&)

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

Calculation of net asset value per share was based on the net asset value of
the Group of HK$316.8 million (2016: HK$282.1 million) and 3,278,825,335
ordinary shares issued at 31 December 2017 (2016: 1,311,530,134 ordinary
shares). Net asset value per share at 31 December 2017 was HK$0.097
(2016: HKS0.215).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the overall cash and cash equivalent of the Group
was HK$132.4 million (2016: HK$76.1 million). The Group's major financial
resources was derived from cash generated from financing activities and
internal generated cash flow.

The Group's current ratio (ratio of current assets to current liabilities) was
0.93 as at 31 December 2017 (2016: 0.80).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's total borrowings were approximately
HK$402.4 million (2016: HK$402.8 million). The gearing ratio (total
borrowings over total assets of the Group) increased from 30.45% as at 31
December 2016 to 31.25% as at 31 December 2017.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE OPEN OFFER

As stated in the Prospectus, the Company intended to apply the estimated
net proceeds from the Open Offer of approximately HK$220.5 million from
the Open Offer as to (i) HK$138.5 million for repayment of bank and other
borrowings of the Group; (ii) HK$67 million for the development of the
Direct-to-Home satellite television services in MEMA; and (iii) HK$15 million
for general working capital of the Group.

On 19 July 2017, the Company received net proceeds from the Open
Offer in the sum of approximately HK$223.7 million after deduction of the
relevant expenses.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
FH Bl RE (&)

As at 31 December 2017, an accumulated amount of approximately
HK$222.2 million of the net proceeds from the Open Offer was utilized

in accordance with the intended use as stated in the Prospectus. The
Company used (i) approximately HK$136 million for repayment of bank
and other borrowings of the Group; (i) approximately HK$67.3 million
for the development of the Direct-to-Home satellite television services in
MEMA; and (iii) approximately HK$18.9 million for general working capital
of the Group. As at 31 December 2017, the unutilized net proceeds from
the Open Offer was approximately HKS1.5 million and will be used as
general working capital of the Group.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's general banking facilities including
bank loans and other borrowings were secured by the following assets
of the Group: (i) bank deposits of HK$66,000, (ii) property, plant and
equipment with a carrying value of HK$123.0 million, (iii) investment
properties of HK$73.7 million, (iv) trade receivables of HK$131.6 million,
(v) inventory of HK$206.4 million, (vi) assets classified as held for sale of
HK$97.4 million and (vii) pledge of the Company's interest in Pro Brand
Technology, Inc.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group's sales and purchases were denominated mainly in US dollars
and Renminbi ("RMB"). The Group was exposed to certain foreign currency
exchange risk but it does not expect future currency fluctuations to cause
material operation difficulties on the ground that the recent pressure
from appreciation of RMB was manageable. However, management
continuously assesses the foreign exchange risks, with an aim to minimise
the impact of foreign exchange fluctuations on business operations.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2017 (2016: Nil).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Br¥5EIRE ()

LITIGATION

(1)

HCA 2948/2016

On 29 November 2016, the Company was served a writ of
summons (“Writ 1”) taken out by Zhi, Charles, as the Plaintiff (the
“Plaintiff”) against (i) Mr. Hung Tsung Chin (an executive director),
(i) Ms. Chen Mei Huei, (i) Mr. Liao Wen |, (iv) Mr. Akihiro Nagahara
("Mr. Nagahara”), (v) Mr. Sia Meow Leng, (vi) the Underwriter

and (vii) the Company (collectively “Writ 1 All Parties”) as the
defendants under action number HCA 2948/2016 in the High Court
of Hong Kong (the “Court”). Details of Writ 1 are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 November 2016.

On 17 May 2017, the Company’s legal representative received a
facsimile from the Official Receiver's Office informing the Company
that the Plaintiff was adjudged bankrupt (the “Bankrupt”) on

26 April 2017 in HCB No. 5395/2016 and the Official Receiver

was appointed as the provisional trustee of the property of the
Bankrupt. The Official Receiver stated that under section 12(1)

and 58(1) of the Bankruptcy Ordinance (Cap 6), on the making

of a bankruptcy order, all the property of a bankrupt including

all things in action shall vest in the Official Receiver. The effect of
the bankruptcy order is that the Bankrupt was divested of and
ceased to have any interests in either his assets or his liabilities.
The Bankrupt would have no locus to commence or proceed with
the Proceedings unless the Official Receiver agreed to assign the
right of action to him. The Official Receiver also stated that, after
considering all of the relevant documents, it would not adopt the
proceedings under action number HCA No. 2948/2016 in the Court.

At the hearing held on 19 May 2017, after considering the

notice of discontinuance filed by the Bankrupt, the stance of the
Official Receiver and the submissions of the Company’s legal
representatives, the Court dismissed the court action under
action number HCA 2948/2016 against the Company, Hung Tsung
Chin, Chen Mei Huei and Liao Wen | with costs to be paid by the
Bankrupt.

B

(1)

HCA 2948/2016
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Br¥5EIRE ()

(2)

(3)

HCA 3346/2016 (2)

On 22 December 2016, the Company was served a writ of
summons ("“Writ 2") taken out by the Plaintiff against (i) Mr. Hung
Tsung Chin, (i) Ms. Chen Mei Huei, (iii) Mr. Liao Wen |, (iv) Mr.

Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer, (v) Mr. Chen Wei Chun (an executive
director), (vi) Yuming Investment Management Limited and (vii) the
Company (collective “Writ 2 All Parties”) as the defendants under
action number HCA 3346/2016 in the Court. Details of Writ 2 are
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 22 December
2016.

The Company has been notified by the Company’s legal
representative that on 20 September 2017, the Court made an
order by consent that, among other things, the proceedings
against the Company, Hung Tsung Chin, Chen Mei Huei and Liao
Wen | be dismissed with costs of the proceedings be paid by the
Plaintiff, to be taxed if not agreed.

HCMP 284/2017 (3)

On 11 February 2017, the Company was served a writ of summons
("Writ 3") taken out by the Plaintiff, Kim Sungho, Kim Kyungsoo,
Lim Hang Young and Joung Jong Hyun as the plaintiffs (the “Writ
3 Plaintiffs”) against the Company, the executive directors of the
Company, the auditor of the Company and other party as the
defendants (the “Writ 3 Defendants”) under action number HCMP
284/2017 in the Court. Details of the Writ 3 are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 13 February 2017.

On 10 April 2017, the Company was served a summons under
action number HCMP No.284/2017 taken out by the Writ 3
Plaintiffs against the Writ 3 Defendants (“Summons”). Details of the
summons are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
11 April 2017.

At a Court hearing held on 13 April 2017, the application by

Zhi Charles ("1st Plaintiff”) for an injunction order pursuant to
Summons was dismissed by the Court with costs payable by the
Tst Plaintiff to the Writ 3 Defendants, including the Company, who
were present at the hearing.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
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(4)

(5)

HCCW 90/2017 (4)

On 23 March 2017, the Company was served a winding-up
petition (the “Petition”) dated 23 March 2017 filed by Zhi, Charles
("Petitioner”) against the Company, directors of the Company and
other party ("Respondents”) in the proceedings in HCCW 90/2017.
Details of the Petition are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 24 March 2017.

On 29 March 2017, a striking-out summons was filed by the
Company to apply for an order to strike out the Petition in the
Court. On 21 April 2017, the Petition was struck out and the
proceedings therein was dismissed by the Court.

HCMP 1044/2017 (5)

The Company was served an originating summons under section
740 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) (“Summons 2") on

5 May 2017 filed by Fung Chuen as the plaintiff (“Summons 2
Plaintiff’) against the Company as the defendant under action
number HCMP No.1044/2017 in the Court. Details of Summons

2 are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 5 May
2017.

In the Summons 2, the Summons 2 Plaintiff applied to the Court
for, among others, the following orders (the “Application”):

(i) The Summons 2 Plaintiff and/or his authorized agent be
authorized to inspect and make copies of the documents in
relation to the investment in Dish Media and the Debtors;

(i) The Summons 2 Plaintiff and/or his authorized agent be
authorized to inspect and make copies of the documents in
relation to the investment in MyHD; and

(iii) The Summons 2 Plaintiff and his authorized agent be
authorized to inspect and make copies of the documents in
relation to the open offer announced by the Company on
24 October 2016 and the Open Offer.

HCCW 90/2017
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
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The Company was advised by its Hong Kong legal advisers

in relation to the aforesaid litigation of the Group that if the
Application is granted by the Court, the likely orders which would
be made by the Court are that the Summons 2 Plaintiff and its
authorised agent will be entitled to inspect and make copies of
the requested documents (in full or in part), and that the Company
shall pay costs of the Application to the Summons 2 Plaintiff (to be
taxed if not agreed).

Pursuant to the order of the Court dated 17 October 2017 (the
“Order dated 17 October 2017"), it was ordered that the Company
shall produce to the Summons 2 Plaintiff those documents listed in
the schedule of the Order dated 17 October 2017. On 27 October
2017, the Company filed a notice of appeal ("“Notice of Appeal”) to
the Court for a stay of execution of the Order dated 17 October
2017 pending the final determination of the appeal.

On 15 December 2017, the Court held that the appeal had no
reasonable prospect of success and ordered that the Company’s
application for stay be refused but that the time for the Company
to comply with the Order dated 17 October 2017 be extended to 5
January 2018.

On 22 December 2017, the Company amended its Notice of
Appeal and applied to the Court of Appeal of Hong Kong for a stay
of execution of the Order dated 17 October 2017 pending final
determination of the appeal (“Stay Application”). Pursuant to order
dated 22 December 2017, an interim stay of the Order dated 17
October 2017 pending determination of the Stay Application was
granted.

The Stay Application is now scheduled to be heard on 17 April
2018.
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HCCW 207/2017

On 6 July 2017, the Company was served a petition for winding-
up dated 5 July 2017 ("Winding-Up Petition”) filed by Fung
Chuen ("Winding Up Petitioner”) against the Company (“1st
Winding-Up Respondent”), Mr. Hung Tsung Chin (“2nd Winding-
Up Respondent”) and Ms. Chen Mei Huei (“3rd Winding-Up
Respondent”) in the proceedings HCCW No.207/2017.

Pursuant to the Winding-Up Petition, the Winding Up Petitioner
petitioned for (i) an order that the Company be wound up by the
Court under section 327(3)(c) of the Companies (Winding-Up and
Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Cap.32) of the Laws of Hong
Kong; (i) an order that a liquidator be appointed by the Court to
investigate into the affairs of the Company upon the winding-up
of the Company; (iii) an order that the 2nd and/or 3rd Winding-

Up Respondents do account to the Company for such payments

or dispositions which they had procured to be made for their own
benefit and/or for the benefit of entities substantially owned or
controlled by them and or other than for the Company'’s proper
purpose and operation of its business; (iv) an order that costs of the
Petitioner and the Company be paid by the 2nd and 3rd Winding-
up Respondents and (v) such other order as the Court thinks fit and
appropriate.

On 10 July 2017, a summons to apply for a validation order was
issued by the Company, 2nd and 3rd Winding-Up Respondents. At
the hearing held on 17 August 2017, a validation order was granted
by the Court on the terms as follows: the following disposition of
property and transfer of shares of the Company shall not be void by
virtue of the provisions of section 182 of the Companies Ordinance
(Cap 32) of Laws of Hong Kong: (a) payment made (or to be made)
into and out of the Company's bank account in the ordinary course
of business of the Company between the date of presentation of
the Winding-Up Petition and the date of judgment on the Winding-
Up Petition; (b) disposition of property of the Company made (or
to be made) in the ordinary course of business for proper value
between the date of presentation of the Winding-Up Petition and
the date of judgment on the Winding-Up Petition; and (c) allotment
and issuance of 1,967,295,201 shares of the Company pursuant to
the Open Offer and use of the proceeds from the Open Offer by the
Company. The Court has also ordered the Winding-Up Petitioner

to pay the costs of the validation order to the 1st, 2nd and 3rd
Winding-Up Respondents.

(6)

HCCW 207/2017
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On 30 August 2017, the Company applied for another validation
order under section 182 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap 32) of
Laws of Hong Kong, which provides that any transfer of the shares
of the Company shall not be void by virtue of the said section. The
validation order was also granted by the Court on 25 October 2017.
On 4 December 2017, the Company filed and served its points of
defence (“Points of Defence”) of the 1st Winding-Up Respondent.
On 11 December 2017, the 2nd and 3rd Winding-Up Respondents
filed and served the Points of Defence of the 2nd and 3rd Winding-
Up Respondents. Pursuant to a consent order dated 31 January
2018, the Winding-Up Petitioner should file and serve his points

of reply (“Points of Reply”) to the Company’s Points of Defence on
5 February 2018. As at the date of approval of the consolidated
financial statements, the Winding-Up Petitioner has yet to file and
serve his Points of Reply and has yet to apply for a time extension
for the same to be filed out of time.

The case management hearing is now scheduled to be heard on
25 April 2018, during which the Court will set down the procedural
timetable for the parties to comply with under the Winding-Up
Petition. It is expected that it would take approximately 1-2 years
(depending upon the Court's schedule) before the Winding-Up
Petition would be set down for the substantive hearing.

ARBITRATION

On 29 September 2011, the Group entered into a conditional agreement
(the "Agreement”) with an independent individual third party (the
“Original Shareholder”) and Technosat Technology JLT FZE (“Technosat”, a
company incorporated in Dubai, which was wholly owned by the Original
Shareholder), to subscribe for 375 new shares in Technosat at a cash
consideration of US$7,500,000 (equivalent to HK$58,170,000), amounting
to 15% of Technosat's enlarged capital. Technosat is set up to be engaged
in operation of digital TV and radio platform, pay TV channel, and sales and
supply of TV set top boxes.
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As at 30 June 2012, the Group had paid a deposit of US$2,500,000
(equivalent to HK$19,467,000) to Technosat to acquire new shares in
Technosat which was fully provided for impairment in prior year. Pursuant
to the terms of the Agreement, the Group is required to pay a further
US$5,000,000 in relation to the subscription of this 15% equity interest

in Technosat. The subscription is not yet completed up to the date of
approval of this report as the conditions precedent of the subscription

of new shares in Technosat including the consent and approval by
government authority in Dubai has not been fulfilled.

Despite the Group's repeated request for information, there were

no satisfactory response from the Original Shareholder or Technosat
("Counterparties”) regarding the current status and the procurement of
obtaining government approval from the government authority in Dubai.
The Group has engaged legal counsel to act for the Group and started
dispute resolution proceedings against the Original Shareholder and
Technosat.

On 21 January 2013, the legal counsel of the Original Shareholder and
Technosat served a notice to the Group’s legal counsel for a claim on the
further payment of US$5,000,000 in relation to the subscription of this 15%
equity interest in Technosat.

The Group's legal counsel has replied on behalf of the Group on 11
February 2013 in response to the claim of the Original Shareholder and
Technosat defending the claim as the directors of the Company consider
such claim invalid, as the conditions precedent of the subscription of new
shares in Technosat has not been fulfilled and constituted a breach of the
Agreement.

The Group's legal counsel had repeated request on the Original
Shareholder and Technosat to commence the next step on mediation, but
there was no satisfactory response from the legal counsel of the Original
Shareholder and Technosat up to the dealing set by August 2014. At the
date of approval of this report, the Group's legal counsel confirmed that
there was no update on the arbitration.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Group continues to improve its corporate governance practices,
emphasizing the attainment and maintenance of a quality Board, sound
risk management and internal controls, and high transparency and
accountability to the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”).
The Board and the management are committed to the principles of
good corporate governance consistent with prudent management

and enhancement of shareholder value. The Board believes that good
corporate governance will bring long-term benefits to the Shareholders
and the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has applied the
principles and has complied with the code provisions of the Corporate

"
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ERA (T EmRA]) M+ (hEER
STRD BRAIR BT (REERTR) &SRR
(IsPRMESC]) - MR T3Pt AR IR Z I A M

Governance Code (“Code Provision(s)") as contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), except for certain

deviations as specified and explained below with considered reasons for
such deviations.

1. Under Code Provision A.1.1, the board should meet regularly
and board meetings should be held at least four times a year at

approximately quarterly intervals.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, two regular board

meetings had been held to review and approve the interim results

and annual results of the Group at approximately half-yearly
intervals. Going forward, the Board will strive to comply with this

Code Provision and hold at least four times a year at approximately

quarterly intervals.

2. Under Code Provision A.2.7, the chairman should at least
annually hold meetings with non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) without the executive
directors present.

The Chairman of the Board did not hold a meeting with the
non-executive Director without the executive Directors present.
However, during the year, the Chairman of the Board had board
committee meetings with other independent non-executive
Directors without the executive Directors present to discuss the
questions which arose at such meetings.
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Under Code Provision A.5.6, the nomination committee should
have a policy concerning diversity of board members, and should
disclose the policy or a summary of the policy in the corporate
governance report.

The nomination committee will take into account a number of
factors, including but not limited to gender, age, educational
background, or professional experience when identifying and
making recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships. The Board will review from
time to time the need for the policy to be in written form.

Under Code Provision A.6.6, each director should disclose to the
issuer at the time of appointment, and in a timely manner for any
change, the number and nature of offices held in public companies
or organisations and other significant commitments.

Each Director has disclosed to the Company at the time of
appointment the number and nature of offices held in public
companies or organisations and other significant commitments
and will inform the Company when any subsequent change arises.

Under Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors
and other non-executive directors should attend general meetings.

Mr. Wu Chia Ming, an independent non-executive Director, was
unable to attend the special general meeting held on 24 April 2017
and the annual general meeting held on 12 June 2017 due to other
engagements while Mr. Han Chien Shan and Mr. Li Chak Hung,
independent non-executive Directors, were unable to attend the
special general meeting held on 24 April 2017, the annual general
meeting held on 12 June 2017 and the special general meeting
held on 15 June 2017 due to other engagements.

In view of their absence, Mr. Hung Tsung Chin had arranged for
another Director and member of management, who were well-
versed in the Company'’s business and affairs, to attend the general
meetings and communicate with the Shareholders.

Under Code Provision A.7.1, an agenda and accompanying board
papers should be sent, in full, to all directors. These should be sent
in a timely manner and at least 3 days before the intended date of a
board or board committee meeting (or other agreed period).

For those board meetings which were held on ad hoc basis, an
agenda and the relevant board papers were provided to the Board
for consideration when they became available.
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7. Under Code Provision C.1.2, management should provide all 7.
members of the board with monthly updates giving a balanced
and understandable assessment of the issuer’s performance,
position and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the board as a
whole and each director to discharge their duties under rule 3.08
and chapter 13.

During the year, due to the changes of chief financial officers

of the Company (“Chief Financial Officer(s)"), management had
provided all members of the Board with updates giving a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects on a request basis.

8. Under Code Provision C.2.5, the issuer should have an internal audit 8.
function.

Since the resignation of the internal audit manager in March
2017, the Company looked for a new replacement while the audit
committee oversaw the internal audit function. Following the
appointment of the new internal audit manager in February 2018,
he has taken up the internal audit function.

0. Under Code Provision E.1.4, the board should establish a 0.
shareholders’ communication policy and review it on a regular
basis to ensure its effectiveness.

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. During the year, the Company endeavored to maintain
an on-going dialog with Shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meeting and other general meetings. The Company
will review the need for having a shareholders’ communication
policy on a regular basis.
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Compliance with the Model Code BFEESA

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by AAREHEM ETRAUMERT (ETMBEITAESE
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 TRAEXSGNEESR) ([BRESFRERES

of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities of the BEEARARABFANTAEN KEEERE 28
Company by the Directors. After specific enquiry, all Directors confirmed EEMRABEEREE_T—+tF+A=1+—H1E
that they have complied with the required standard regarding securities FE-—BEETRETAUMSEHEISFIFNNELE
transactions set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended Ale RARIRBZ_T—+tF+A=+T—HIEF
31 December 2017. No incident of non-compliance was noted by the EXTMEBEETRTEREF-

Company for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Board of Director
Composition

As at 31 December 2017, the Board consists of two executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Hung Tsung Chin and Mr. Chen Wei Chun (Chief Financial
Officer), one non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Kuo Jen Hao and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lau Yau Cheung
(Chairman), Mr. Li Chak Hung and Mr. Wu Chia Ming. An updated list of the
Directors and their roles and functions is published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and of the Company respectively.

Mr. Hung Tsung Chin is the husband of Ms. Chen Mei Huei, a former
executive Director and resigned as executive Director on 18 August 2017.
Ms. Chen is currently a director of several subsidiaries of the Company
and the chief executive officer in the satellite TV broadcasting business

of the Group (“Satellite Broadcasting Services Business Division”). Save as
disclosed above, none of the other Directors has or maintained any family
relationship with any of the other Directors.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors are of sufficient number and
calibre for their views to carry weight. The functions of independent non-
executive Directors include:

bringing an independent view and judgment at board meetings;
taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;
serving on board committees if invited; and

scrutinizing the Company's performance and monitoring
performance reporting.

The independent non-executive Directors have made a positive
contribution to the development of the Company'’s strategies and policies
through independent, constructive and informed comments. They benefit
the Board and the board committees by their skills, expertise, varied
backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance and active
participation at the meetings of the Board and the board committees.
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Composition of the Board is disclosed, and the independent non-
executive Directors are identified, in all corporate communications to the
Shareholders.

Confirmation of Independence

The independence of the independent non-executive Directors has

been assessed in accordance with the applicable Listing Rules. Each of
the independent non-executive Directors has made an annual written
confirmation of independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors
meet the guidelines for assessing independence set out in rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and are independent.

Roles and Functions of the Board and the Management

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising

the Company’s affairs. The Board is fully responsible for the formulation

of business policies and strategies in relation to the business operation of
the Group, including dividend policy and risk management strategies. The
management is delegated the authority and responsibilities by the Board
for the day-to-day management and operation of the Group.

Appointment, Continuation of Appointment and Re-election
of Directors

All executive Directors have entered into service agreements with the
Company while the non-executive Director and all independent non-
executive Directors have entered into letters of appointment with the
Company with a specific term of three years and one year, respectively
setting out key terms and conditions of their appointments. All Directors
are subject to retirement in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company
(the "Bye-Laws").
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According to the Bye-Laws, (i) Directors appointed by the Board either to RIBAR (EEeRAEHERTRAMRREES
fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board EEENEANESERERERRAA T —ER
shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of REFARE UNZASLHEERERET: R
the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election; and (ii) at each (RN EBERFRBEFRG L ER=902—FF (3
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, MEEMNHEEWIFE=0C) 2B  AARKERETHE
if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but B=p—HE)ARERT HEEESE (BEZ
not greater than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided EHEETABNES ) B=F2LARKRRBEFRK
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall ELRE-—XR-BU BEEENEHLZR=F-

be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years. As such, no Directors have a term of appointment longer than
three years.

Board Meetings E=geR

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Directors have made active HE_Z—tHFT_A=1T—HIHE E=EE
contribution to the affairs of the Group and 15 board meetings were held HASEEERELBBER WRITISAEEEE
to consider, among other things, various transactions contemplated by the woUEE (AP rEEHET2ETEE MU
Group and to review and approve the interim results and annual results of REMEMEREENTMEERFEEER-

the Group.
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TERERME (M)

Attendance Record of Directors

The attendance record of Directors at the meetings of the Board, the
board committees and the Shareholders held during the year ended 31

December 2017 is set out below:

Name of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Hung Tsung Chin

Ms. Chen Mei Huei (resigned on
18 August 2017)

Mr. Liao Wen | (resigned on
18 August 2017)

Mr. Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer (resigned on
18 August 2017)

Mr. Chen Wei Chun
Non-Executive Director
Mr. Kuo Jen Hao (appointed on
18 August 2017
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lau Yau Cheung (Chairman)
(appointed on 7 August 2017)

Mr. Li Chak Hung

Mr.Wu Chia Ming

Mr. Han Chien Shan (resigned on
7 August 2017)

Board
Meetings
Ezgeld
Number of
meetings
attended /
Number of
meetings held
HEEE
RE,/
BUEENRE
HTES
AR S A 15/15
BEELL (RZZ—+F 6/8
NR+N\BEE)
BYREE(RZE—tF 3/8
AV R WANEE 3:9)
Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer5t 4 5/8
(RZZ—tFENAT+NR
B fE)
BREHLE 15/15
FHTES
BAREE(RZZ—tF 477
NATNBEZRE)
BUFHTES
ApErE (£R) 8/8
(R=F—tF
NALBEZE)
FERERE 14/15
REALE 14/15
BENEE(RZT—14F 6/7
NRtHEE)
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Audit Nomination Remuneration
Committee Committee Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
ENZEREE REZEEEeH FMZEees EDN-|
Number of Number of Number of Number of
meetings meetings meetings meetings
attended / attended / attended / attended /
Number of Number of Number of Number of
meetings held meetings held meetings held meetings held
HEEEN HEEEN HESEN HREEE
R/ RE/ R/ HRY,/
ETEBNRY BTEBNRY ZIERNRE ZTSENREY
N/A i A 172 172 23
N/A R A N/A & N/A i 0/3
N/A T ER N/A i8R N/A TR 03
N/A A N/A 138 N/A @R 03
N/A T A N/A 38 N/A @R 3/3
N/A R A N/A B N/A TiE N/A i
il 22 22 N/A @R
33 11 3/3 0/3
3/3 2/3 3/3 1/3
212 0/1 0/1 0/3



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

TERERME (M)

Access to Information

All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes that
may have affected the Group's business, including those changes to
relevant rules and regulations and are able to make further enquiries
when necessary. The Board has also agreed that the Directors may seek
independent professional advice in performing their directors’ duties at
the Company's expense.

Directors and Officers Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on directors’
and officers' liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken against the
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company organized a
training session for all Directors on 31 October 2017. Such training session
covers updates on the Listing Rules and connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions. Reading materials were provided to
the Directors on the latest developments or updates in directors’ duties
and responsibilities and requirements of the Listing Rules.

All Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Code Provision
on directors’ training. The Company has received from each of the
Directors his confirmation on taking continuous professional training.

AR A

PIAEEETERETA R EAREEBNEANE
B SRYEBEIRAMEENEEEE WEES
BRFHE - FPRHMAE- %%Aﬁﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁﬁﬁ
HEERERASREBEYEXENR (BEABAR
SAF) e

EEREABENETRE
ARAREREFNSMBMEBRESTRR

EhERERERRBITRG M e ZAERNFF
£ ZRBEE R ERBEIIRFR -

%
D\I m
)EH b

EERIIREXREE

BHE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILFE EARAFAR

R F AT HAEZRESER —KIE
RIZ - ZIBIRERE ETRBNANBER S N
BHERSMNEN FHESRENEEAL LT
RABKNEHBHRBBREFEROBET D
RETES-

EEFER RECETHEBERHIO TG
X ARRBWRENZEFANETHEZEZIN
ﬁE ﬁ/&\ = °

Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 22 55 T EIBR = iR G BR A &

2017 Annual Report F 3R




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

TERERBE (H)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer FERHMTR

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer are separate to ITREATRBERLEOBUZEE L FMEMN
reinforce independence, accountability and responsibility. Mr. Lau Yau REAM - EZSFXRENFEEELEEBEHEAEER
Cheung, the Chairman of the Board, is responsible for the formulation BRERER EFEREARRETEEEm BB
of development strategies, investment decision making, overall project BEfE BEEFg THERESFSES RARM
planning at the Group level, leading the Board and ensuring that the EBE - MAREEERBARRIFENSREREE
board functions properly and effectively, whilst Mr. Hung Tsung Chin, the HERRETYEHEER Hth2HE8ER B
chief executive officer of several subsidiaries of the Company which are ?ﬁ%%ﬁ&?ﬁLLEﬂJ«X NEEBERMBRREEGZ
mainly engaged in manufacturing and trading of the media entertainment ETHEAR (NERBEEEFEMEBI]) 2
platform related products, other multimedia products, integration of ﬁﬁﬁ AlaE8ENEBEEFEMEBBNA S
signal and traffic communication and satellite TV equipment and antenna CEEER—MREE-

(“Manufacturing and Trading of Electronic Products Business Division”)
is responsible for the management of the daily operation and general
administration of the Manufacturing and Trading of Electronic Products
Business Division.

Ms. Chen Mei Huei, the chief executive officer of the Satellite Broadcasting HEERREEEBATRREELLTEERE
Services Business Division, is responsible for the development of Jﬁ%ﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé‘)ﬁﬁ$% (BEEZIEEMNA
the Satellite Broadcasting Services Business Division and the overall E)MEBEEE

management of the Group including all overseas offices.

Board Committees EEZEY

The Board has established three committees with specific written terms of EEgORU-HZEe HAEETHNBES
reference to oversee particular aspects of the Company's affairs. B UERAQNAFTHEHES-

Audit Committee EREES

The Audit Committee was established in 17 March 2005 with written terms EZEEeRN _ZEERAF=-_A++tAKY  BAE

of reference, which are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and EEARBESE - ZBESE D 5B Z AR
of the Company respectively. All the members of the Audit Committee are FIRANTRMEIL - BREESNMBNEN AE
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Chak Hung, Mr. Lau VIPITES MFEESE BIPHEERRE
Yau Cheung and Mr. Wu Chia Ming. Mr. Li Chak Hung, who has appropriate B 2R AREB EMARAUBRECHENTE
professional accounting qualifications as required under the Listing Rules, HHER WEZARERZESIR HMEFEZ
was appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee. None of the ZEEXNEARRAIZEAMBIEESZ A
members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the auditors of the

Company.
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The principal duties of the Audit Committee include, among other things:
(i) being primarily responsible for making recommendations to the

Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor; (ii) reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards; (iii) developing and implementing
a policy on engaging an external auditor to supply non-audit services;
(iv) monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements

and the annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared

for publication, quarterly reports, before submission of the financial
statements and reports to the Board, and reviewing significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them; (v) reviewing the Company's
financial control, risk management and internal control systems; and

(vi) discussing the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty to
have effective systems. The Audit Committee may seek any necessary
information from employees within its terms of reference and obtain
independent professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform
its responsibilities if it considers necessary. During the year ended 31
December 2017, the Audit Committee held three meetings to review
annual results, interim audit planning and interim results. The attendance
record of individual Directors at the audit committee meetings is set out
on page 30 of the annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in 17 March 2005 with
written terms of reference, which are posted on the websites of the

Stock Exchange and of the Company respectively. All the members of the
Nomination Committee are independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Lau Yau Cheung (chairman), Mr. Li Chak Hung and Mr. Wu Chia Ming.

BERZEENTIERE (HHEefR)  0E2REH
SNERBEINERE ERRELRERAEES RN
R L SNES R BUED &Y T B N2 B R AR (IR
ERNRERN RERIINERBMERELT B LTE R
BERF DAY (iFINEZ AR E IR 2 BR
BHEBRR X TFTARIT (VAEFRRIBEY
BHRRLBERN  ERARTNPMBRRAREFE
BEMER FEERER (BRTIE) FTEHREN
RN TEHBREBREMAEBEY HHERNE
RER : WRNARANMBELR RREERA
ERESE AR (v E IR B w Ak B IE M AERES
RES HREEECETBREERLBEMNELR -
ERZEGNRAREBEEEFTERNESR
BB ERIERBLIEEXEN (EABMARAX
) UZEBTHBG REBEE-—T—t&F+ A
=t RLEFER BRZESRARTZRER
i FERE P HEZAE P HIRE - [E5)
ESHFRERZZBEQERNLFECHBHRNAFRSE
308 °
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The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include, among other REZEENTERE (AHEHE)  ((RIEEFS
things: (i) reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and B - AR W E R ABLE AR AR
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to REMEBESEESHELINEDRLER: (WEA
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (i) identifying individuals HERERIUETESGKRENALT LHKERS
suitably qualified to become board members and selecting or making ERAATHEZESSIBEMESSRMER ()T
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated ZEMIERNTEENE LY RIVHEESFZERE
for directorships; (iii) assessing the independence of independent non- NEAURESETHERNESREES -

executive Directors; and (iv) making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for

Directors.

The Nomination Committee may seek any necessary information REZESKEBESETEFTERRESER
from employees within its terms of reference and obtain independent ek RERNBLEXFZA(BEARAAEX
professional advice, at the Company's expense, to perform its ) UEZERTEBS REE-_E—tF+=A
responsibilities if it considers necessary. During the year ended 31 =St+t—RIEFERN REZEGEARTZAERENU
December 2017, the Nomination Committee held three meetings to BBV TEZRFERTESTIRENESSE
review the nomination of independent non-executive Director and non- BEgHERCESRYBR B - HRZESHER
executive Director; and change in composition of board committee and REESERMNDEANNEREI08 -

changes of Chief Financial Officers. The attendance of individual Directors
at the nomination committee meetings is set out on page 30 of the annual

report.

Remuneration Committee FMZzEES

The Remuneration Committee was established in 17 March 2005 with FTMEEER _ETRF-ATtHKY BAE
written terms of reference, which are posted on the websites of the HA]ARNBERE ZBEBEC SR EHNER
Stock Exchange and of the Company respectively. All the members of Pk ARafu - FNEESNMBEXN BN AB
the Remuneration Committee are independent non-executive Directors, SIEHITES  BIREMPLAE (EF) B rsE
namely, Mr. Wu Chia Ming (chairman), Mr. Lau Yau Cheung and Mr. Li Chak MR

Hung.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include, among other FMEZEEENTFERE (AHhEE) - (A Y
things: (i) making recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy AEEEERSREEEN DB NBUR REERE -
and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management of MEZFRHER: WHEEESSMITCESH K

the Group; (ii) reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration BiEmt REHEEBNTIES: Rii)MES
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives; CREZENEFEASAEEENETHESE-

and (iii) making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Directors and senior management.
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The Remuneration Committee may seek any necessary information

from senior management within its terms of reference and obtain
independent professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform
its responsibilities if it considers necessary. During the year ended 31
December 2017, the Remuneration Committee held three meetings to
review proposed remuneration packages of Directors and Chief Financial
Officer. The attendance of individual Directors at the remuneration
committee meetings is set out on page 30 of the annual report.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management (other than
Directors) by band for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:

Remuneration band

VPN E e RERREEEAT ERASMER
ﬁﬁﬂ% BR RERBYEXHA(BERHAN
RAXN) AR ERTEBRE RBE-_T—tF
T= H—+*EEEWW FMEEeHAHRT =R
EBURNETMYBEOFTHEE - EHES D
%ﬁ%xﬁ%gﬁmﬁﬁQKKEﬁ%mﬁo

BE-T—tF+-A=t+—ALFE
FWE(Tﬁ%%$)m o B 4 T

= ARE R

Number of individuals

FEE AR
HK$0 - HK$ 1,000,000 0%1,000,0007 7T 3
HK$1,000,001 = HK$2,000,000 1,000,00178 7T £2,000,0007 TT 2
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,000,0017% 7T 23,000,000/ JT 1

Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix

16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 11(a) and note 11(b) to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY AND DUTIES

The Board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate
governance functions set out below:

m developing and reviewing the Company'’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the Board;

(2) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(3) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

B ETRAIMESE T SBTFTREENEBESHIN X
AfisEmF EENE —THBERRNAEBGEUTE
WERMEF11@) R11(b) °

EERERBREBE

EXeREETABOEE RABRENNTRE:

©) HE R ARANBEEERABRRER
WHEFSIREER:

) BT REREENS
HERRE:

REEE IR KA

B BARERARAEE
R BR S H AR

SFE $&§’%¢*ﬁﬂiﬁ
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4) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of ethics and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors;
and

(5) reviewing the Company's compliance with the Code Provisions and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the Company'’s policies and
practices on corporate governance.

Company Secretary

Mr. Young Ho Kee Bernard has confirmed that he has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 31 December
2017. Mr. Young has resigned as the company secretary of the Company
due to his pursuit of career development and the Board has appointed Ms.
Lee Suet Lai as the company secretary of the Company both with effect
from 2 January 2018. Ms. Lee has confirmed that she has taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 31
December 2017.

Accountability and Audit
Financial Reporting

The Board endeavours to present to Shareholders a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group's performance, position and
prospects. Accordingly, appropriate accounting policies are selected

and applied consistently, and judgements and estimates made by the
management for financial reporting purpose are prudent and reasonable.
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The adoption of relevant new and revised HKFRSs that became effective
during the year has no significant impact on the Group's results of
operation and financial position as disclosed in note 2 to the financial
statements.

External Auditors and their Remuneration

The external auditors perform independent review or audit of the financial
statements prepared by the management. BDO Limited ("BDO”") has been
engaged as the Company's external auditor.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the fees charged to the financial
statements of the Group in respect of BDO's statutory audit and other
service amounted to approximately HK$ 1,750,000 and HK$250,000
respectively. The fees of recurring audit services of subsidiaries performed
by other auditors and the fees of provision of other services were
approximately HK$2,290,000.

Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and effective
system of internal control which is designed and operated to provide
reasonable assurance that the Company’s business objectives in the
following areas are achieved:

Effectiveness and efficiency of operations, including the
achievement of performance and operating targets and the
safeguarding of assets by the management;

Reliability of financial and operating information provided by the
management, including management accounts and statutory
financial reports; and

Compliance with applicable laws and regulations by each business
unit.

AN B HRER M 2P IR R AR BT RARER
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J/J__\\ /kk\Aiﬁtt: (”=|.—)

The Company has put and continues to place considerable emphasis

on maintaining and enhancing the effectiveness of its system of

internal control. Under the Company's internal control framework, risk
management and internal control are primarily the collective responsibility
of every manager and employee. For consistent compliance by every
person in the Company, the following key control policies and measures
are implemented in the everyday activities, which are summarized below:

1. Overall control environment, including code of ethics governing
staff conduct within the Group, and whistle blowing policy;

2. Management of financial and non-financial risks, including at the
Company level the risk management functions of the Board, at
the business unit level management’s ongoing monitoring of
operational and other risks;

3. Major controls systems and processes, including budgetary and
cost controls, financial reporting systems and processes for timely
and quality management reporting, and corporate policies and
procedures for approvals, reviews and segregation of duties in
everyday activities;

4. In relation to ongoing compliance monitoring and internal control
reviews, the company secretary undertakes to monitor overall of
compliance with the Listing Rules. The internal audit manager
directly reports to the Audit Committee and is engaged to conduct
independent reviews on the internal control and risk management;
and

5. The Audit Committee has reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Company’s internal controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management. It has also
considered the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the accounting and financial reporting
functions and their training programme and budget.
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In conducting these reviews, the following reports and activities are
considered:

self-assessments made by management of various business units
and subsidiaries of their material controls and risk management
activities undertaken with reference to The Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO")
enterprise risk management framework. The documentation
supporting the self-assessments was subject to review by internal
audit; and

self-assessments made by business units and Group Finance of the
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting
and financial reporting functions and their training programmes.
The main conclusions are that:

- the resources in the accounting and finance functions are
adequate;

- the qualifications and experience of the staff of the
accounting and finance functions are satisfactory overall;
and

- the training activities and budgets have been continually
given considerable attention during the year and are
satisfactory.

The Board and management will continue to look into opportunities for
further enhancing the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group in the years ahead.

Internal Audit

The Group regards internal audit as an important part of the Board and
Audit Committee’s oversight function. The principal objective of internal
audit, which is set out in an internal audit charter, is to provide the Board
and management with useful information and recommendations on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group.

FEET DR B ZRATREREE:

EXRBEULNBARZEREHALR
[RERFEEMERERZ B HEMR]
(fcoso ) e¥RmBRERERMEREER
RERASELERF G BRFEZX
Fr XA R ARRE R B -

EBBEMREEM B RS KM FE
BB THZER BTIEERER UK
BTHEI-E2ERAOT:

- BRTMHBRBEZERTRE:

- EREmE @it RkMBRBEIEME
THRABNEERERSARE X

— FREYEDREESARALE
XS ARE

EEgLERERBETHS RS E SRR
5 B R B 2 Il 3R 48 2 R BE ©

AEE

AEERARETREEERELZBEENEER
BB EZRED AMBOEE BN AFE
RE BAKRBARBEERRREES AR EBER
ExghERERHARENNERZ

Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 22 55 T EIBR = iR G BR A &

2017 Annual Report F 3R



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
TREBRRE (&)

Authority and Accountability EE

Under the internal audit charter endorsed by the Audit Committee, the BREBELCEZZEEHENANITETRE EFSKR
internal audit function is authorized by the Board to have access to all BRI ETEFIAEG REB RN IBET BB
records, people and physical properties relevant to the performance Btk  AEREBEVME RBPEFAHEEATTT
of internal audit. The internal audit manager has unrestricted access to RolhEEZLZESETRHE TEERBTZEZE
the chairman of the Audit Committee and reports directly to the Audit FER EXBERZESRINAEEBE - Ll
Committee for direction and accountability. This reporting relationship WEARBANBEACER RN EEANEEZER 2
enables internal audit manager to provide an objective assurance to the MEEIRHEEBIRE

effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group.

v

=

Duties B

The duties of the internal audit manager are described in the internal audit NBEFEENBETENATETRE  EPRTE
DB BAEBE AN HEMEMALER] - 55| RFRIIZ
R

—

charter. It requires that (a) internal audits are conducted with proficiency,

objectively and due professional care in compliance with the standards, B BBMEBEEERN N ETALET:
guidelines, and the code of ethics of the Institute of Internal Auditors; bR ANEB NS B RIBPIETE NG R
(b) audit testing and reviews are carried out at all levels of the Group NERABEERGAREEH AEBEERTE
to provide reasonable assurance as to whether the system of internal BLE2RE BELERSREASEBRRET

control is adequate; the assets of the Group are properly safeguarded; the LARMBREERERINESBIOET  UREEFE
operations are conducted effectively and efficiently in accordance with the VR gk R r EELEBRE RQAEE

Group's policies and procedures as well as relevant laws and regulations; BTN ERE BERLZESRESTERKE
and the accounting records of the audited entities and operations are THEBEE -

reliable and (c) special reviews are conducted by internal audit manager
when required by the management, the Audit Committee or the Board.

All above described duties may be adjusted depends on the resources P AEREFRETABET R BANERM
availability to internal audit function. The management of the Group has EEAR AEEEREESRETRERGANIET
the responsibilities to keep reviewing the resources availability to internal BB AMEIR -

audit function.

Internal Audit Resources and Major Work Done in —E-tLtFRABETERRETREET
2017 1E

The internal audit function in financial year 2017 was maintained at the HRAPEFBEEEE  —_ T+ FHBRFED
minimum level since March 2017 due to the change of the internal audit NEPBRETBEE T —+tF = ARREFEREK
manager in charge. The Group searched continuously for a suitable person, FoAREEREDE—FEEEAE R_E—-N\F
and filled the position in February 2018. Going forward, the Group will “RERZBA RERK AEEBEERTE
keep reviewing the resources availability for the implementation of internal FEREPEE I B e ) B R FEIB N - W A BP B 1R
control function and will requlate the activities for internal control. FEFE-
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TERERME (M)

After the preliminary review of the existing internal audit system by the
new internal audit manager and considering his suggestions, the Group
plans to update its existing internal control in accordance with the
framework provided by COSO (updated model was released in September
2017) and its framework for risk management will refer to the guidance
from the Institute of Internal Auditors’ International Professional Practices
Framework whenever applicable for the implementation. Internal audit
manager had prepared and submitted the annual internal audit plan for
the financial year 2018 to the Audit Committee for approval.

Risk Management

The Board assists the Group in anticipating its risk exposure, putting
controls in place to counter threats, and pursuing its set objectives. After
the Board has identified the top risks of the Group, Directors will assess
how much risk the Board is faced with through the Group’s operation and
governance processes.

Based on the risk profile of each business unit, and taking into account
the management control and corporate oversight at Group level, the
Audit Committee and internal audit manager would map out a risk-based
internal audit plan each year.

Commercial Risk

Commercial risk refers to potential losses arising from inadequate gross
margins and/or non-performance of trading partners or counterparties
in the Middle East and India. It is important to ensure that our trading
partners or counterparties are reliable, financially healthy and willing to
subscribe for membership in pay television broadcasting programs.

Currently, the key commercial risks facing are decreasing funding for the
development of the Satellite Broadcasting Services Business Division and
insufficient or unstable subscriptions for memberships due to limited
customer bases and recorded segment loss from satellite TV broadcasting
segment. We manage our commercial risk by:—

a) identifying other potential business partners or investors to invest
in Satellite Broadcasting Services Business Division;
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RERRE (&)

b) monitoring the subscription of membership procedures and b) ERGHIBEFIMEINER &
improving the payment system; and

0) diversifying our TV programs and increasing television content. 0 FESRMHEZTERENERAR -
Financial Risk B 7% [ B

Currency risk pgiyENy

For bank borrowings, the functional currency of each operating entity MBITEEMS SCLEEBNEEE —fREE
is generally matched with its liabilities. As such, management does not BEMEICE A BREERAS mEREAEA
expect any significant foreign currency risk associated with the Group's EEEEFBENERINERR -

borrowings.

Environmental and Social Responsibilities RERUTEER

The Directors believes that environmental protection and social EEHERERERCEETNAERREE A&
responsibilities represent an essential part of the Group's operations and RAtEAFEZERET AR5 - AEBEH
the sustainable development of the Group and the community. The major T EWBARICHET LR BEE TR A IR IFE R ERS
subsidiaries of the Group have implemented relevant environmental B A M EEBEBERA SR [ Z 2 —+F
protection measures on energy saving and emission reduction, so as to RIE - HEREARS ] BeEARELFRESE
minimise the emission of pollutants during the production process. The I 48 A AN R 5 B 1R = (8 A A o

“Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2017" will be reported
separately from this report and will be published within three months after
the publication of this report.

Directors’ Responsibility on the Consolidated ESHGREUBRRNEMR

Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the EENMTBHARBETE L ERASELRRE
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 EIE+F T A=+ —HIFENGEETBR
which were prepared in accordance with statutory requirements and FoR EMBBIFTERNER P HARE R HEME
applicable accounting standards. The Board aims to present a balanced, BHEET B2 AEENORR RSB AEDR
clear and understandable assessment of the Group's position and T EMRA PEEOTE-

prospects in annual reports, interim reports and other financial disclosures
required by the Listing Rules.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company AARINEZBME A EEGETBRERODBRE
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in the AR AFHRFEOBEF78A B L AZEANRE -

independent auditor's report on pages 69 to 78 of this annual report.
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TERERBE (H)

Communication with Shareholders

The Company considers effective communication with the Shareholders
are essential to enable them to have a clear assessment of the enterprise
performance as well as accountability of the Board. Major means of
communication with the Shareholders are as follows:

Information disclosure on corporate website

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information about
the Group to all interested parties as widely and as timely as possible.
The Company maintains a corporate website at http://www.sandmartin.
com.hk where important information about the Company's activities
and corporate matters such as annual reports and interim reports to
the Shareholders and announcements is available for review by the
Shareholders and other stakeholders.

When announcements are made through the Stock Exchange, the same
information will be made available on the website of the Company.

During 2017, the Company issued various announcements in respect of
financial and inside information, which can be reviewed on the website of

the Company.

General meetings with Shareholders

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful platform for

direct communication between the Board and the Shareholders. Separate
resolutions are proposed on each substantially separate issue at the
general meetings.
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Voting by poll BRERERESZAKRR

Resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the Company (other RARBBREARE LREFAZAZR (BREFH
than on procedure matters) are taken by poll. Procedures regarding EHVRBRBRIN AARREEEFAKR A -FH
the conduct of the poll are explained to the Shareholders at the EREREARNERAIZCEFERBARERNEHEA
commencement of each general meeting, and questions from the BMRRHA RERZRAEFRE BTG E
Shareholders regarding the voting procedures are answered. The poll TRE - REERSTETRERAEB S AIEH
results are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and of the FRBES 22 BT Je AR A B A8k o

Company respectively on the same day as the poll.

Investor relations REEBRE

The Company recognises its responsibility to explain its activities to those AARABRBES EREENATRIREEBLANR
with a legitimate interest and to respond to their questions. In addition, REERSRENE T LI RAFNE REE
questions received from the general public and individual Shareholders BRABRRERNKRREZIZRE -EMBBELT &
are answered promptly. In all cases, great care is taken to ensure that no ARAABEKIREEEE BRIGEZLMBEL
inside information is disclosed selectively. When announcements are made AR ER - RNRAEFE BRI IEMAER %
through the Stock Exchange, the same information will be made available ZERTEEHNAR AL AHERE -

on the website of the Company.

Constitutional Documents BERXH
During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no change in the HEZZ—+F+-A=+—HLEFE AQFH
constitutional documents of the Company. ERXHWEES-
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSGAEEEB2ER

Directors

Mr. Lau Yau Cheung, aged 57

Independent Non-Executive Director, Chairman of the Board, chairman of
Nomination Committee

Member of each of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee

is an independent non-executive Director since 7 August 2017, and was
appointed as the Chairman of the Board with effect from 18 August 2017.
He holds a bachelor's degree in commerce from the University of Toronto
in Canada. Mr. Lau has over 23 years of experience in business strategies
and corporate finance and 6 years of experience in the securities trading
business. He has served in various senior management positions with
both private and public companies in Hong Kong and overseas. From
1999 to present, Mr. Lau serves as the managing director of BH Capitalink
Development Limited.

Mr. Hung Tsung Chin, aged 57
Executive Director, Authorised Representative

is the founder of the Group, which was founded in November 1989. He
18 August 2017. Mr. Hung acts as
an executive Director and authorised representative of the Company. He

was the Chairman of the Board until

is also the chief executive officer of several subsidiaries of the Company
which mainly are engaged in the Manufacturing and Trading of Electronic
Products Business Division.

Mr. Hung has over 28 years of management experience in the electronics
manufacturing industry. He graduated from the National Chengchi
University in Taiwan, with a bachelor’s degree in business administration.
He also completed the executives programme from the Graduate School of
Business Administration, National Chengchi University.

Mr. Hung is the husband of Ms. Chen Mei Huei, a former executive Director
and resigned as executive Director on 18 August 2017. Ms. Chen is
currently the director of several subsidiaries of the Company and the chief
executive officer of the Satellite Broadcasting Services Business Division.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
ESRENEEBZER (&)

Mr. Chen Wei Chun, aged 41 BRESHELE 215

Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer HITEE HER

joined the Group in May 2015 and was appointed as an executive Director RZZE—RAFRAMNALREE UHRR=_F—H
and chief financial officer of the Company on 28 August 2015 and 30 FNAZFTN\BM=E—+F+—A=1+HEZ

November 2017, respectively. He is also the director and the chief financial EARRRRMTEERMBR BN AAAFIFESR
officer of Pro Brand Technology, Inc., a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the & Bt )& 22 &) Pro Brand Technology, Inc. 892 % & B 75
Company. Mr. Chen graduated from National Chengchi University and Shih R-BEEEERBELBUARERERKEL 5 5

Chien University with a master degree in finance and a master degree in BRENBEBELTREPEEREET - RREALEH
business administration, respectively. He is well experience in accounting XBEEEELH -MAREER - REESEBR
and finance industries. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen was the head BERFHERIE (R)AAMBEERNELR
of finance department of TTY Biopharm Company Limited and head of ERMG(R) AAVBEEEE -

finance department of K.H.S. Musical Instrument Company Limited.

Mr. Kuo Jen Hao, aged 41 BAREE M5

Non-Executive Director HHITESE

was appointed as a non-executive Director on 18 August 2017. He RZZE—tFNATN\BEZEARIENTES-
graduated with a bachelor's degree in Business Administration from EERQEEEARS ESIBEESETEM U
Aletheia University in Taiwan and holds a master degree of business RZEE-FREEBRMTAEZE THEEELS
administration from Pace University in 2003 in the United States. Mr. Lo BEERNEAMEHEZEGINESTA-
Kuo is a certified public accountant of the New Jersey State Board of

Accountancy.

He has several years of work experience in investment advisory, financial R FKBEEET AN E AT - R EM K Private
advisory and corporate finance at PricewaterhouseCoopers, Bank of Equity Management Group 218 EiF B 1% E B -
America Merrill Lynch and Private Equity Management Group and held WBERRCEME AR WERETAARL
various key roles at several private and listed companies engaging in MAREETRNEZEBA - BEARTIREOT
(i) the administrative and corporate business: (i) corporate finance; BEBEREGEFER: ((CERE: MNFHEREE
and (iii) general management in real estate development business, X% MEBXY TEEBRYREBCATER-
shipping business, retailing business and logistics business. Mr. Kuo has BAEERBIEXEBRBRBFEETERBELELK
a wealth of experience in business strategy development and innovation o

management.
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ESENGNREEBECER (£)

He is the chairman and the general manager of First Steamship Company
Limited (“First Steamship”), a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation (“TWSE") (TWSE Stock Code: 2601). Mr. Kuo is also a director
and the chairman of Grand Ocean Retail Group Limited, a company listed
on the TWSE (TWSE Stock Code: 5907) and a subsidiary of First Steamship,
a director of Taiwan Environment Scientific Co., Ltd., a company listed on
the Taipei Exchange, a director of IRC Properties, Inc., a company listed on
the Philippine Stock Exchange, and non-executive director and chairman
of the board of Summit Ascent Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 102). First
Steamship is a substantial shareholder of the Company and through

its subsidiaries collectively holds 29% of the issued share capital of the
Company. Mr. Kuo is also a director of several subsidiaries of the First
Steamship including but not limited to Mariner Finance Limited, Morton
Securities Limited and First Steamship S.A..

Mr. Li Chak Hung, aged 53
Independent Non-Executive Director, chairman of Audit Committee
Member of each of Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee

is an independent non-executive Director since September 2016. He

is graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and holds a
Bachelor's Degree of Business Administration. He is a practicing Certified
Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a Fellow of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He has
over 27 years' experience in accounting, auditing, taxation and financial
management. Mr. Li is currently an independent non-executive director
of Dream€East Group Limited (formerly known as SkyOcean International
Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 593) and an independent non-executive
director of AsiaSec Properties Limited (formerly known as Dan Form
Holdings Company Limited) (Stock Code: 271), both companies are listed
on main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wu Chia Ming, aged 49

Independent Non-Executive Director, chairman of Remuneration
Committee

Member of each of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee

is an independent non-executive Director since December 2014. He
has a master's degree in business administration from the Institute of
International Business, National Chen-kung University and a bachelor’s
degree in electronic engineering from Chung Yuan Christian University
in Taiwan. Mr. Wu has nearly 23 years of experience in financial analysis
and fund management. Currently, he is the chairman of Fortune-Future
Investment Co., Ltd. Prior to that, Mr. Wu was a fund manager of KGI
Securities Investment Trust Co., Ltd.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
ESRENEEBZER (&)

Senior Management EREEE

Ms. Chen Mei Huei, aged 55 REZL L 555

Director of several subsidiaries of the Company and Chief Executive Officer — Z(fH] K2\ a]H1/& 22 A] 4 F K 1 £ B /& IR IS K 755D
of Satellite Broadcasting Services Business Division HIBTT R

is a co-founder of the Group in 1989. She is responsible for the BN/ NWFRAKREEBSRINA -KEERE
development of the Satellite Broadcasting Services Business Division and BERBEBHBEREEAEEH (BEFE2IEINFA
the overall management of the Group including all overseas offices. Ms. E)NERBERE RLTOBEEGSEAEET
Chen has been actively engaged in the sales and marketing development BERERMIZHNHEE R EHERBIBSE TR
of the Group in Taiwan and the international markets for more than EEPWH/DJU BAENMEFPRIMGER -BEXNE
28 years and has particular focus on new customers and new market EHKIRNE HEANTXEREREHES2 L2
development in recent years. She graduated from Tamkang University in 1_L BREZTA/AARNBMITESHRBBRRLEES
Taiwan with a dual bachelor degree in Spanish Literature and International ENEF - REENBEARREHEIERERER
Trade. Ms. Chen is the wife of Mr. Hung Tsung Chin, an executive Director EEEFEMEBBLMBRARI TR

and authorised representative of the Company. Mr. Hung is also the chief
executive officer of several subsidiaries of the Company which mainly are
engaged in the Manufacturing and Trading of Electronic Products Business

Division.

Mr. Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer, aged 58 Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer £ 4 » 585%

Director of several subsidiaries of the Company, Vice President of the AR REINE LI EE  NEFFBE &
Group, Chief Technology Officer of the Group B <

joined the Group in January 2008 and is responsible for the development RZZEZNEF—AMARER /\Eﬁfilgﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
of the Satellite Broadcasting Services Business Division and the global BB RERAREER D IRE RS o RARBUM
marketing strategy of the Group. He has more than 29 years of experience HEEFE uuﬁﬁ&@ﬁF?ﬁ?ﬁ‘ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁwi%ﬁ
in hardware and software development for consumer electronic products B WE - NAMFHBRIBEREIER OVB)FS
in Europe and has been involved in Digital TV technologies since the LAZR — B 1t BB BAR BT © Fischerst £ R 2B K
beginning of Digital Video Broadcasting Project (DVB) in 1994. Mr. Fischer Technical UmverSIty LeizigEX#5 B Bh b B 1y A0 4% i 82
graduated as diploma degree engineer for automation technology and TERBEML

cybernetics from the Technical University Leizig in Germany.

Mr. Hsiao Yu Jung, aged 52 BERRE 528

Deputy General Manager of the Group’s cable division K5 [ 45 B Bl A A

is responsible for procurement, manufacturing and development of the BERE RERFAEAEREEER -REERN
Group's cable products. He obtained a diploma in mechanical design EEEVREMBARE BERMEGTIESZE R
engineering from the National Formosa University in Taiwan. Mr. Hsiao BEER_ZE_FLAMNBAREE-

joined the Group in July 2002.
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ESENGNREEBECER (£)

Mr. Su Jow Shi, aged 54
General Manager of the Group’s digital TV division

is responsible for manufacturing operations. He graduated from the San
Diego State University where he earned a Master of Public Administration
degree. Mr. Su joined the Group in September 1995.

Ms. Su Wan Ling (also named Ms. aka Julia Swen), aged 53
Director of Pro Brand Technology, Inc.

has been working in our Group since 2007 and is responsible for
promoting the cable products and digital television products in the market
of the United States. She graduated from the University of California, with
a bachelor’s degree in Biochemistry; a master’s degree in Environmental
Science and a master’s degree of Business Administration. Ms. Su has over
23 years of experience in research of biotechnology field and business
management.

Mr. Sven Willig, aged 45
General Manager of Intelligent Digital Services GmbH

has joined the Group since 2005 and is currently responsible for hardware
and software development and sales of Digital Video Broadcasting
Products. He has over 18 years of management experience in the
development and quality control of digital television technologies.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWE

The Board is pleased to present the audited consolidated financial EEEMAREREBEEE-_T—+tF+=H
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017. T HIEFENKCEZFRETBRE -
Principal Activities FEER
The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its Z’KQ\\E%_FE'EJ REZBRRAR ﬁ\‘{%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ GBS
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial BN A REER S W15 A E46 o
statements of the Group.
An analysis of the Group's revenue and operating results for the year AEBEEZT—LF T A=t HLEFEEE
N sz AL A = B A =+
ended 31 December 2017 by principal activities is set out in note 7 to the /E@JE"]HQ@&%&%‘%E%E)}TE%CE/Q\K%,%m{:}ﬁﬁﬁ%#&
consolidated financial statements of the Group. REYPFFET -
e s
Results E
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out AEBEE_T—LFT AT HLEFENX
== p Eoplarad i o) = Nz
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive RN ANFHREL7IBEEZR0EMGFABEREME
income on pages 79 to 80 of this annual report. IR -
Business Review E 3 AE)
The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 is $%§§:§*t¢+:ﬂ =T HLEFEMNX
set out as below: TEEREESN AT
Page no. of the
Section(s) in this annual report annual report
TEH2ED AEHZE
a. Fair review of the Company's business Business Overview and 7t0 13
Management Discussion and Analysis
RRAREBHEERET (B EREIBENREDN E7TEEEI3E
b. Description of the principal risks and Chairman'’s Letter to Shareholders 5t06
uncertainties the Company is facing FEBRERSE FESHEF6R
LA RREEEHEZRR & Business Overview and 7to 13
TREHEZ Management Discussion and Analysis
EBHEREIRENREDN FE7TEEEI3E
C. Particulars of important events affecting  Business Overview and 7t0 13
the Company that have occurred since Management Discussion and Analysis
the year ended 31 December 2017 XBMERERENREST FIEEFHI3E
BHEZ-_T—+F+=-_A=+—HI Financial Review 14 t0 23
FEREENTELRARANEEEIE WKL F14EZEE23E
]
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEgWmE (4)

Section(s) in this annual report

REHEH

Page no. of the
annual report

REH A

Indication of likely future development
of the Company's business

RRBEBRKAGEEROTR

Analysis using financial key
performance indicators

FERMBEEBERRIERODN

Discussion on the Company's
environmental policies and
performance

BERARBREBELREN TR

An account of the Company'’s key
relationships with its employees,
customers and suppliers and others
that have a significant impact on the
Company and on which the Company’s
success depend

AAREEES BFEFREEEIAR
HARRBERTERARFNKI
PIT 4K 78 B9 B b A £ B9 BER AU

Discussion on the Company's
compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Company
RATRETHARTBEATZEN
HEZERERENRTR

Business Overview and
Management Discussion and Analysis

EHEBEREEEN wm BT

Business Overview and

Management Discussion and Analysis
EBHMERERRE R wmED T
Financial Review
Bt 75 ol R
Financial Summary

M E

Corporate Governance Report
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEgWmE (4)

Final Dividend REAKRE

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the EETERREE S —+F+A=1T—HL*F
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil). ERERAKRSE (ZE—RF £8) -

Property, Plant and Equipment NE BERRE

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment during the TEEYE BEREEREEZE T —tF+=A
year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 14 to the consolidated = t+t—BIFENEHFE %&ﬁ’\\$$lﬁ$éﬂﬁﬁﬂ#&
financial statements of the Group. FMIEE14 -

Investment Properties REW=

On 19 December 2017, the Group entered into the preliminary agreement RZZE—tF+ZA+hB AEBEEREXIRIKE
with Eastern Beauty Global Limited for the sale and purchase of the RARGIVERHBZEENESNRAEDE K
office properties in Hong Kong at a consideration of approximately B A#797,396,0008 7T ([HHEHIE]) - HEFIEM
HK$97,396,000 (the “Disposal”). Details of the Disposal are set out in the HIBERARRBHRA ST —tF AT AN
announcement of the Company dated 19 December 2017. YN

Details of the movements in the investment properties of the Group AEBEHE—T—+tF+_A=1T—HIEFENE
during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 17 to the BYEE E$| N AEBLGE B WMERMET7 -

consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Borrowings BE

Details of the borrowings during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set AEBBEZE_T—tHF+-A=1+—H M:Eﬁl?l’ﬂ
out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group. BH1E %ZEAZKE 4 B R R M A3

Share Capital g 2

On 20 March 2017, the Company announced the Open Offer of RZE—tEF=A=Z+H RARFAEMAREE
1,967,295,201 Open Offer Shares on the basis of three Open Offer Shares 1,967,295 201 IR A EER D  BEEAN T —tF

for every two shares of the Company then held on the 12 May 2017 at the EA+Z=H i?%ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁﬂiﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁ%%;‘:Hﬁ@
subscription price of HK$0.12 per Open Offer Share. The completion of the FEERMIZRBEEERAZEERMNH0.12ET - AF

Open Offer took place on 19 July 2017. 1,967,295,201 Open Offer Shares BEER T —EFEATNATK ° 1,967,295,201
were allotted and issued pursuant to the Open Offer and the net proceeds RAREBEERNDIRBEAFEERRE REIT N
after deduction of expenses from the Open Offer were approximately iR 0Nk Fﬁ?%fklﬁ}gﬁﬁﬁ #97%$223,700,000
HK$223.7 million which was intended to apply such net proceeds as to B ARRBEZERGRIEFERHNERE
(i) HK$138.5 million for repayment of bank and other borrowings of the T2 P EL () 138,500,000 7T ARME R AN E B Z IR1T
Group; (i) HK$67 million for the development of the Direct-to-Home ﬁﬁTﬁE (i) 67,000,000/ 7T FA A FE MEMA 2 [ B %
satellite television service in MEMA; and (iii) HK$15 million for general )\):'GEEEEL%HE%& K (iii) 15,000,00078 JT B 1EAR &
working capital of the Group as set out in the Prospectus. Brz—REEER-
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEgWmE (4)

Details of the Open Offer were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 20 March 2017, 15 June 2017 and 18 July 2017; the
circular of the Company dated 24 May 2017; and the Prospectus.

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

Equity Linked Agreements

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, no equity
linked agreements were entered into during or subsisted at the end of the
year ended 31 December 2017.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, at no
time during the year ended 31 December 2017 was the Company, any

of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any body
corporate.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2017, the Company did not have the distributable
reserve (2016: approximately HK$81.86 million).

Details of the movements in reserves during the year ended 31 December
2017 are set out in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

AABRENFBEREERARABRA-ZT—+tF
—A=+A ZE—+tFXRNAT+HREAERZZ—tHF
tA+N\HHAH AARBHA-—ZE—+FHA
T HEMBE RERER-

ARABE-T—tF+- A=+ —AILEENR
ARSDHERRAEBS AT BERM 34 -

% RE 42 99 175 5

BRI [RERiERT & — S IEEIN RBE-F—+
FHoA=T—"BLEFER BEFTIHFERE
=R ANOE

ESWBEBROIBESHER

B [BRERT S —fREEN REE-F—t
FHt_A=t—HLFE AQF EEAHEL
Al R R B AR SIER A R EET SRR

FEEARPEBARBREAEAER 2RO HE
&L -

CIREE 3=

IR ( —Z— 754 1 £981,860,00078 7T ) ©

HE-2— T A=+ ALFEEREDH
R B A R B B TS SRR 47 o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEgWmE (4)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed RIBERE-NN—FRaE (IBE]) » RARIH
surplus account of the Company is available for distribution. However, the BARRERAEDIK - AM £ TFIERLT - AQ
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of AITBUBARKRERIOENREHEL DI :
contributed surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as (a) WRESANRBE LIS MEIEEE:
they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the (b) EEMAEREAEMSEMINRAARRED
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share ?‘f IR AR T2 AR 1 4 (B BR &0 48 K0 o

premium accounts.

Donations B

The Group did not make any donation for the year ended 31 December REBEZE-_Z—LtFT_A=1+T—RHLFE F&£H
2017 (2016: Nil). WEFEREABR(ZF—RF &) -
Permitted Indemnity Provision EAETHREEMKX

The Bye-Laws provide that every Director is entitled to be indemnified out RIFMAA BRESHERUARAIEERRER
of the assets of the Company against all losses and damages which he BTSN SGETHEBAC EMEEAEEX K
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or Rz —IEAREE-

otherwise in relation thereto.

The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance ZIK%EAiWEE%Ef& HRBEZRETRE AXE
throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover for the Directors. EERBEEENRE-

The permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year ended 31 RESF 2 Mam BAETHRERNREBEEZE S
December 2017 for the benefit of the Directors. —tF T+ A=+ —RALEFEEK-
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEgWmE (4)

Financial Summary

A financial summary of the Group is set out on page 240 of this annual
report.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the aggregate sales attributable
to the Group's five largest customers amounted to approximately 52.8%
of the Group's total sales and the sales attributable to the Group's largest
customer were approximately 29.0% of the Group's total sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers amounted to
approximately 35.0% of the Group's total purchases and the purchases
attributable to the Group's largest supplier were approximately 13.8% of
the Group's total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders (who to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the issued shares of
the Company) had any interests in the five largest customers and suppliers
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Management Contracts

No contracts other than employment contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Litigation

The details of the Group’s litigation proceedings are set out in note 48 to
the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

MBRE

REEB M BEHNAFRF240H

FTEEFRHER

RBE-_T—+tF+_A=+t—"RHILFE A&H
RAKEPNAEERE A EERHEFEL52.8%
MR&EAR P HERE A RE L ETRA29.0%

REBEE-_Z—+F+_A=1+—BItFE X&E
BErRRAAEEENAREBBNAERLHEBEY
35.0% MR A B RERO RSB BHERE
#]13.8%

RBEZE-_T—tF+_A=+—"BLEFE EF-
BRENBETHEAREMNRR (RESHAANEEF A
REBHTERM WA L) BEREARAEEBRLATP
Ko A e P (R eI M 25

EEEH
BREBaLON RBE-_T—+F+-A=+—H

L FERET IR FESNARB MR L EF
EREABOZEERITRAL

EETFA
AEEERFDZFBHNANEBEE M REKM
5F48 o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEgWmE (4)

Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts EEREENREESYD

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date REEZE—+tFT_A=+—HLEFERHER

of this annual report are: WEHBMNESOAT:
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Hung Tsung Chin MR A
(resigned as Chairman but remained as an Executive Director (EBEEF BETAHITES
with effect from 18 August 2017) BE-ZE—tFNA+NHEREZR
Mr. Chen Wei Chun (appointed as Chief Financial Officer REHTE(BEZARVB R
with effect from 30 November 2017) BT —tF+—A=THRER
Ms. Chen Mei Huei (resigned as an Executive Director and BMEZZL (EFEHTESERATR
Chief Executive Officer with effect from 18 August 2017) BE-Z—tFNA+TNHRER)
Mr. Liao Wen | BXREE
(resigned with effect from 18 August 2017) (BB - BZZE—tFNATNBRER)
Mr. Frank Karl-Heinz Fishcer Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer4t £
(resigned with effect from 18 August 2017) (B8 - BZZ—tFNATABRER)
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. Kuo Jen Hao (appointed with effect from 18 August 2017) FAREE(BEZFE BZZE—LF
NATNBRBER)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Lau Yau Cheung (Chairman) RIhrERE (EF)
(appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director (BEZERBIYFNTEE B_Z—tF
with effect from 7 August 2017 and appointed as Chairman NAtERER WEEZEAEF
with effect from 18 August 2017) BE-ZE—tFNA+NHERER
Mr. Li Chak Hung TR E
Mr. Wu Chia Ming RERLE
Mr. Han Chien Shan R e
(resigned with effect from 7 August 2017) (BB - BZE—tFN\AEHRBER)
In accordance with Bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Kuo Jen Hao and RIBARIZEQ) i BAREERZIDFELERR
Mr. Lau Yau Cheung shall hold office only until the next following annual TREARATERRBFRG  WHRARERRE
general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for FRg([ZE-N\EFRERAFRg]) LFEER
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting (2018 AGM"). [BiEEE -
In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Chen Wei Chun shall BIEMAFE7E MEHALEEAR-_E—N\EFERE
retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer himself for re- RAFERELHERE UWHEERERET

election at the 2018 AGM.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEgWmE (4)

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2018 AGM has entered into
a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the employing company within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Changes to Information in Respect of Directors

In accordance with rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes

to information required to be disclosed by the Directors pursuant to
paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of rule 13.51(2) between 28 August 2017
(being the date of approval of the Company's interim report 2017) and up
to the date of this report are set out below:

1. The annual remuneration package of Mr. Chen Wei Chun for acting
as director of Pro Brand Technology, Inc. increased to NTD2,500,000
with effect from 1 January 2017.

2. The remuneration package of Mr. Hung Tsung Chin was adjusted
to include HK$58,000 per month, RMB14,000 per month, NT$88,000
per month and HKS$5,000 per month with effect from 18 August
2017.

3. The director fee of Mr. Wu Chia Ming increased to HK$6,000 per
month with effect from 18 August 2017.

4. The director fee of Mr. Chen Wei Chun for acting as Director
increased to HK$6,000 per month with effect from 1 September
2017.

5. Mr. Chen Wei Chun was appointed as Chief Financial Officer with

effect from 30 November 2017 and his remuneration package
for acting as Chief Financial Officer was a salary of HK$35,000 per
month with double pay on pro rata basis payable.

6. Mr. Kuo Jen Hao was appointed as a non-executive director and
chairman of the board of Summit Ascent Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 102) with effect from 28 December 2017.

BERN T \FRRBFASLEENESH
$QE1HEHW§ AR BB AR A E—F
ARMEE OXERERIN MK ENRBEL -

FHESENED

BIEETRAFEI35BOE RZFE—EFNA

bty AN= @1 /N T_f*t¢¢%ﬁ¢mm&5

ﬁwﬁzﬁiﬁaﬂmﬁﬁam L EIOEIONES
OB EREETURENE N E EWT

1. PR (& $5 9% 4 #& T Pro Brand Technology, Inc. 2
EHFEFH BB NE S 82,500,000
TBEZE—tF-A—BRER-

2. HIESAENTNFBRAERARBRIESA
58,0008 7L« B A AR 14000t - F AFA
#88,0007T &2 & B 5000870 B 2 —+4F
NA+N\BHEAER-

3. REPALENEEWELEINES A6,0008
T BEBZE—tFNATNABRBER-

4. BREHEERTEESNESHRENESA
60008 BE-E—+F A —BEEM-

5. BMEHLEEEZTRAVBER B —+tF
+ B=+B#4s ﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁm It B
B AT B350008 7T W BRI 2 &

fg ©
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BRI I102)IFATEETRESTS IR B
—E—+tF+ A=+ NBRERAERK-
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEgWmE (&)

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Emoluments EzkeAEEEMeRIEAREMEE
and Five Highest Paid Individuals Bl A x

Details of the remuneration of the Directors, together with those of the EERAEEREESHEEMNALTURSRER
five highest paid individuals of the Group and senior management for the BRBE-Z—tF+-_A=+T—HLEFENHN:
year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 11 to the consolidated HIEDRER A EEGRE Y BREWF NI REESE
financial statements of the Group and Corporate Governance Report on JR¥REEE35H o

page 35 respectively.

The emolument payable to the Directors (including salary and other ENEENHe (BEF2REMERN) THAR
benefits) are recommended by the Remuneration Committee of the AFNEZESE2EREEELEEE HARRL

Company for the Board's approval, having regard to the Group's operating AhEBRmGHEEREERZTES A&
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangement or Contracts BEEREARS ZRESEGHNTHER
of Significance

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to REBEE_ZE—EF+T_A=T—"BLFE AR

the Company's business to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries, its AHAEMMEAR HRERMEB AR EERA
fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and in which a AEAI Y ANESKBE HEEENE P EEN
Director or his or her connected entities had a material interest, whether MEEBEAER  BERFRAFAEMEBNA

directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time during the year FE BRARRIEBNEARS RHHEH -
ended 31 December 2017.

Directors’ and Their Associates’ Interests in Competing EERBEEHBEANRBREIEERPHES
Business

As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors and their associates RZE—tF+-A=1+—H BEEFRESH
(as defined in the Listing Rules) were considered to be interested in ZA(EER EMRADWE AN TR EESEE
any business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or BEAEEEREU R RN AT RERNRFNEBT
indirectly, with the business of the Group. Bz

Related Party Transactions BERALRS

A summary of significant related party transactions made during the year REE_E—tFT_A=+T—HIEFERNETZ
ended 31 December 2017 is disclosed in note 43 to the consolidated BEAEBATRIMERRNEBLGE M B WMEM T
financial statements of the Group. A3 HEFR o

The related party transactions did not constitute connected transactions/ ZEBRBALTRZZUNEX ETRAIETHBER
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules. 5/ HEBEERS -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEgWmE (&)

Share Option Scheme

On 17 March 2005, the share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”)
was approved and adopted by the then Shareholders. A summary of the
principal terms of the Share Option Scheme is set out as follows:

(i) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to recognize the
contributions of the participants.

(ii)  Eligible Participants

The participants of the Share Option Scheme are directors or
employees, any business consultants, business partners, suppliers,
customers, agents, financial or legal adviser, debtors or creditors
who will contribute or have contributed to the Company or any of
its subsidiaries.

(iii)  Grant of Options
The Board shall be entitled at any time, within 10 years after the
date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, to make an offer of
the grant of an option to any participant.

(iv) Payment on Acceptance of Option Offer
HKS$1.00 is payable by the participant to the Company on

acceptance of the option offer as consideration for the grant within
30 days from the date upon which the option offer is made.

B ESTE
R-TERF=A++R BRI ET TN
BEARAEET 2 ([BERMESTR)) - B RESR B2 =
EERMEHHMT :

(i) BRETSEEHN

BREFIENARESZEANER -

iy BEERZHEHA

BREE2EASKEXUDKEYARAHK
HEMHMBARMFHERMMNEFTHESR (£
MEBHAA FHBH HER FFP K
B BIOERER BEEAREREA-

(iiiy RHBRE
EF o/ ERNRMBARERT S B HE + 4 5
e A0 ] el R 35 o () (] 22 B2 A 92 ) B S AE
HEH -

(iv), ENEREZNNER
2 A ERERESHEREREZSNEL

E BB =T BAmARRZF1.008 7T
ERERBRENRE-
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEgWmE (4)

(v) Subscription Price of Shares (v) BRPEBEE
The subscription price of an option to subscribe for shares granted IR IR AT S B AR AR IR D 2 3R
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme shall be the highest of: BEAUTES
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock . AP EAEHEREZL B
Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date on which (BARE¥P)EBMXMTAMEBERA
an option offer is made to a participant, which must be a Pz Wi A

business day;

the average of the closing price of the shares as stated in . RN EZIELBEREZOR R
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five i %A EBIMEARERMAT 2
business days immediately preceding the date on which an FHRTE &

option offer is made; and

the nominal value of a share. . f& 17 2 E1{E
(vi) Total Number of Shares Available for Issue (vi) A FRITHRGOEE
The Company had 3,026,400 shares available for issue under the RRRRIBEERERT BT TR 2R EE
Share Option Scheme, representing 0.09% of the issued share #33,026,4000% - HE R AR EBBAARF D
capital of the Company as at the date of this report. BITIRAN20.09% ©
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEgWmE (4)

(vii)

(viii)

Maximum Entitlement of Shares of each Participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon

exercise of all options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Company to each
participant (including both exercised and outstanding options)

in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number
of shares in issue. Where shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme

of the Company (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to a participant who is a substantial Shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director, or any of his or her associate
in the 12-month period up to and including the date of grant, (1)
representing in aggregate more than 0.1% of the total number of
shares in issue; and (2) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the shares at the date of each grant, in excess of
HKS$5 million, the proposed grant of option must be approved by
the Shareholders by poll in general meeting.

Time of Exercise of Option

The exercise period of any option granted under the Share Option
Scheme shall not be longer than 10 years from the date of grant of
the relevant option. The Board has the authority to determine the
minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised.

(vii)

(viii)

BESEATEZNRSROHUE

RS2 H AETR121E A 2R R R R
BIRA RN HEM BT E RN
ERE(BEETERMARITENERE)
BT BIT RS T HITHRD BERTEE
BEEITIRDEEMN % - HE AFERFL
BYIEMITES TMBREIHEAZS
HAEEZERPERHBEH 2128 A HER
OB AE ST 2 R AN A BT H b BE AR A AT &
ERERBERNEIERE (BESITE:
ERESH R AR TR M BB AR A ) JE AT (E R 35 4T
K FETRRG ()EFTBBE ZEITRNE
.201%  RORBORSE L B Bl
Bt E M4 E B 1E5,000,000/8 T BIEZHR
HERENESIIRERRRERNE IR
FORTT AL -

TERE R ER HR

RIS R AT 81X ey (] BE R RO 1T (2 28
IR f (AT AR R RE U X 2 B AERT NS
BIOF -EFEAREEBREN TITEZ
AT A B R B B &2 AR -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEgWmE (4)

During the year, details of movements in the share options under the Share RER - BIRETEIETHEREZSFEOT
Option Scheme are as follows:

Options to subscribe for shares

TRBRG 2 ERE
Outstanding
Lapsed/ at
Outstanding Cancelled/ 31 December
at 1 January Expired
2017 Exercised Adjusted during % Exercise
Category and R-Z-t% during during the year price  Date of Exercisable
name of grantees —-A-H the year theyear FERAM/ pershare  grant Period
ARARRIRES I R T FRTR FREE  FH/ER HATHE SROEE BREAH FEH
(Note 3) (Note 5) (Note 4)
(Hiit3) (H33)  (Bas) (W)
Directors
B3
Ms. Chen Mei Huei
(Note 1) 2,000,000 = 328,000 = 2328000 HKS1761787C 22102010 22.10.2012-21.10.2020
REBLL (Hiit1)
Mr. Frank Karl-Heinz
Fischer (Note 2) 500,000 = 82,000 = 582,000 HKS17617%87C 22102010 22.10.2012-21.10.2020
Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer
R (Hit2)
Sub-total 2,500,000 - 410,000 - 2,910,000
Nt
Employees of
the Group 100,000 = 16,400 (116,400) - HKS15127C  27.12.2007 27.12.2009-26.12.2017
FEEES 100,000 - 16,400 - 116400  HKS0.957/7C 01042009  01.04.2011-31.03.2019
Sub-total 200,000 = 32,800 (116,400) 116,400
Nt
Total 2,700,000 - 442 800 (116,400) 3,026,400
@t
Notes: Bt 5 -
1. Ms. Chen Mei Huei resigned as executive Director with effect from 18 August 2017. 1. REBZLEBRERTEEF BT —tFN\A TR

R
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EEgWmE (4)

2. Mr. Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer resigned as executive Director with effect from 18 August
2017.
3. The exercise price of the outstanding share options and the number of shares to be

allotted and issued upon full exercise of the outstanding share options were adjusted
with effect from 19 July 2017 pursuant to the relevant terms of the Share Option
Scheme as a result of Open Offer.

4. These share options are exercisable in the following manner:

(i) on or after the second anniversary of the date of 50%

grant up to 10 years from the date of grant

(i) on or after the third anniversary of the date of grant remaining 50%

up to 10 years from the date of grant

5. The closing prices of the shares of 26 December 2007, 31 March 2009 and 21 October
2010 immediately before the date of grant were HK$1.76, HK$1.07 and HK$2.05

respectively.

The share options granted under the Share Option Scheme are not
recognised as share capital in the financial statements of the Company
until they are exercised.

The Share Option Scheme had expired on 16 March 2015. However, all the
outstanding share options are exercisable in accordance with the terms

of the Share Option Scheme and such other terms and conditions upon
which the share option was granted, at any time during the option period
after the share option has been granted by the Board but in any event, not
longer than ten (10) years from the date upon which the share option is
accepted or deemed to be accepted in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme.

During the year, the Company has adopted no new share option scheme.

2. Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer St A BB EHITE S BT — L&
FNA+NHRBE -
3. MARITEBRENTEERMARTEERERARMES

BEREITER S TRERBEITHORNEE S REELE
HEIMMEREGRTARRE B2 —tF AT LAR

e
4. ZERBETEATHRITHE:
() RELBBAMATERRZEES 50%
BEE B HRI0F
() ABRHESR=-RAEERAR2LEE Fl#250%
B B ERI0F
5. BHREZEFHEHIN TS +E+=-_A =+~

—EFAFSAS+-BR-ZF-FF+A-+—AH
U5 Bl A1.7678 7T~ 1.074 7T ;2 2.058 7T

RIBEEE SR ENBRENETERIRAR
A MR ER R

BREFIER _FT-AF=At+ < BER A

- AERRITEBRETNEREEESER N
1% A0 B RSOHE B IR LRI B ) - 1 SR e A0 A TR B 1B
Pl R AR 12 8 RO &t 1) ) 1R SR 32 A Bl AR AR (R JE 3R A
ZHET0F  RIFEERETSOGRER LB
P 4B PAT AR 4 B0 L At AR SR R MR A T AT

REFEMR - QB IR AT B AR &l -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEgWmE (4)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and EERESTHRAERKRA HEBRH KR
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and BFEPHNEZRKXE

Debentures

The Directors and chief executive who held office at 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+ A=+ HEBNEEREST
had the following interests and short positions in the shares, underlying BMABRARG RAEEEZE (ERRBSFLHE
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporation &) ([BH REAE GO ) B XVER) B9k () - -
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance DREFTHEECDABREESF RS 1'7&%%352
("SFO") as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section BAEGFEMNECMASBEZRETAE M AR

352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock REGRZFre R AR IT

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code:

(a)  Long positions in the shares, underlying shares and (@ REQXARG HBEROREZHNHER

debentures of the Company

Percentage of

the issued
share capital
asat
Number of 31.12.2017
underlying - Amount of
Number of shares held debentures
Name of Director Capacity shares held PR E %?‘T}ﬁz’r‘ held
EEnR 220) FERAEE R EE st Bt FEFEE
Mr. Hung Tsung Chin Interest of controlled 507,188,592' - -
IR A corporation
SRR R
Interest of spouse - 2,328,000° -
fic (B 1 2
Beneficial owner 2 = _
EnEEA
Sub-total
INET 507,188,594 2,328,000 509,516,594 15.53% -

Notes: B 5 -

1. These shares represent shares held by Metroasset Investments Limited in 1. #% % R 15 K &k Metroasset Investments Limited
which Mr. Hung Tsung Chin beneficially owns 45.09% of the issued share BRI - IR A E R HE B %A B1R945.09%
capital. BEEITRA

2. The relevant interests are unlisted physically settled options granted 2. HERE S ARIEERETEIRENIEETEY
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme. Upon exercise of the share options EERERCAE - AR AR AR IR R AR M ST BT
in accordance with the Share Option Scheme, shares in the share capital of % ARNNBRAFEORMD A FETBRERS
the Company are issuable. The share options are personal to the respective EEATAFTE - BREN#E —SFBHNAE
grantees. Further details of the share options are set out in the section W (ARSIl —&re

headed “Share Option Scheme” of this report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEgWmE (4)

(b) Long positions in the shares, underlying shares  (b) RZAZX
and debentures of associated corporations of REH
the Company

Percentage to
the issued
share capital
Number of as at 31.12.2017
underlying i t5 Amount of
Number of shares held + debentures
Name of Director éfag\city shares held 5 Total

held
PR 88 At Fﬁ%fﬁ%%&ﬁ

Mr. Chen Wei Chun Interest of controlled 350,000 350,000
PR1E 8525 4 fcorgo\ration 5
REHEB =
Note: Bt 5 -
1. These shares represent 350,000 shares of Pro Brand Technology, Inc, a non- 1. ZERMRRBMBREBRAFTFANRDAFE
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, held by Jun Zhong Investment %% M /8 /2 &Pro Brand Technology, Inc&J350,000
Limited in which Mr. Chen Wei Chun beneficially owns the entire issued share ARG BREHEEEREEHMHNREERA
capital. AN HEEITRA
Interests and Short Positions of Shareholders BREEFRMERIATRENRRES
Discloseable Under the SFO 5879 -}

As at 31 December 2017, according to the register kept by the Company RZZE—tF+_A=+—8 REARFRIEE
under Section 336 of the SFO, the following companies and persons, FREEGEOIEBGEFENERZM U TRFERA
other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company, had long T (EERARTERITERABRIN EHIREFE
positions of 5% or more in the shares and underlying shares which fell to HREIEBROIEXVE B2 E R E3D EBRA QA
be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO: B FEAIS%s A LR RABBER D BT A
Long positions in the shares REGNEFR
Percentage of
Number of the issued share
shares and capital as at
underlying 31.12.2017
shares held =%
Name of Shareholders Capacity B iR 40 K +=A=+—H
RN £ B &5 HEARGEHE ERTREEIL
Metroasset Investments Limited Beneficial owner 507,188,592' 15.47%
EmEAA
Ms. Chen Mei Huei Interest of controlled corporation 507,188,592?
BREZ L+ AR 8w
Interest of spouse 2
B m
Personal interest 2,328,000°
(PN 325
Sub-total 509,516,594 15.53%
/NEE
First Steamship Company Limited Interest of controlled corporation 950,859,347¢ 29.00%
=G BR AR ZEGEE R
Mr. Fung Chuen Beneficial owner 65,878,000° 5.02%
RS Ena A
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEgWmE (4)

Notes: Bt 5 -

1. These shares are held by Metroasset Investments Limited, 45.09% of the issued share 1. % % R 15 B3 Metroasset Investments Limited#5 & - 1
capital of which is beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Tsung Chin. Metroasset Investments Limited#745.09% B 2% 17 i% 2% | 4

LA EERES -

2. These shares are held by Metroasset Investments Limited, 44.38% of the issued share 2. Z Z B 17 B Metroasset Investments Limited$§ 5 +

capital of which is beneficially owned by Ms. Chen Mei Huei. Metroasset Investments Limited #744.38% 2, 2% 17 B 7K (3 fR
EELLERER-

3. The relevant interests are unlisted physically settled options granted pursuant to the 3. B RREERESERENFE LTEYEERER
Share Option Scheme. Upon exercise of the share options in accordance with the T o FRERE AR IR B IR AT BT (18 - R A RIRAHR B
Share Option Scheme, shares in the share capital of the Company are issuable. The MRADA] T84T - BIREBR S A EATLAE - BRENE
share options are personal to the respective grantees. Further details of the share —HFBEHAARRE [EAREE] —&-
options are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” of this report.

4. First Steamship Company Limited (“First Steamship”) is interested in 950,859,347 shares 4. mMROBRAR ([w=M])BREEENE R FFist
through First Mariner Holding Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of First Steamship, Mariner Holding Limited & E 3F % & Mt /& A @] Grand Citi
which holds 833,000,000 shares and Grand Citi Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary Limited 950,859,347 % & 17 7 ¥ /5 ## 25 - E P First Mariner
of First Steamship, which holds 117,859,347 shares. Holding Limited# 4 833,000,000% f% {5 & Grand Citi Limited

FH5117,859,347RK A& 1D °
5. Disclosure of the percentage of the issued share capital held by Fung Chuen is made 5. FRBRBERTRAZAESHLHEREE IR -

as per the last disclosure of interests notice as at 31 December 2017 which was filed
on 2 June 2017.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified by any other

person (other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who
had an interest of 5% or more in the shares and underlying shares as at 31

December 2017 which fell to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2017.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws or

the laws in Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was

incorporated, under which the Company would be obliged to offer new

—tEFERAZAFEER-E—tFT_A=T—HZ&
EAIR R R AN AE L o

Br ESCRTIREE B SN AR B WEBEE M EMA LT
(BEERARABESTRABRIN SMERZE
—tF+Z A=+ —BEBREBZFRBERAE
XVERE 273 B S B30 ERZA M AN A Rl IR BB B 5%k BA |
B0 AR B AR 1D My B A o

BE HEIHLEAQAFAzLTES

BE-ZT— & +-A=+—ALEE ARAR
(A L S A B RO - 1 S BT A 2 )
EWES

ERBRE

A ERE (AIARBEMKAERDAER)
FERDEBRELCERENG MEARBER
EEPIABR BB R HEHMRM

shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing Shareholders.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEgWmE (4)

Corporate Governance

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report,
the Directors confirmed that the Company has maintained the amount of
public float as required under the Listing Rules throughout the year.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017 have been audited by BDO Limited. A resolution for the re-
appointment of BDO Limited as the auditor of the Company for the
ensuing year is to be proposed at the 2018 AGM.

Professional Tax Advice Recommended

If the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any rights in
relation to the shares, they are advised to consult an expert.

EEER

ARTRAOEIECEEARRRNAFRARD

e g
BRI E -

RARNRERE

REARBAAFESHENEAEETRAFRA
HIFrA EFERARBNFA—EAFT EHRA

REMARRE -

B B Em

BE_T—tHFT-A=T"RLFENGEAUK
BARCKBREI GERIETMEFEMERAAE
B ARBHNR T \NFRREFRELESR
BERNERBBIEERETMELAERRAS
ARRF T —FE XA -

EREXBERER

HERRTHEEBE KA KE BEBRORIITEE
MEERNOBRGEE FhAERER -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEgWmE (4)

Closure of register of members EENERNBFERLFE

For the purpose of determining the eligibility of the Shareholders to REERRHE_ZE-\FREAFRGWNE L

attend, speak and vote at the 2018 AGM, the register of members of the BENMKRENEE ARG EE S IR B

Company (“Register of Members") will be closed as set out below: FELZFE(IBRMBFELFE])  FHBEIW

T

Latest time to lodge transfer At 4:30 p.m. on B& 17 8 S R AR R A —E-N\FRAKXA
documents for registration with Wednesday, 6 June 2018 BERMBFER EH=)
the branch share registrar DEUMEF O HERR TFUK=1T5

of the Company in Hong Kong

Record Date Wednesday, 6 June 2018 k4 =Rt —E—-N\FXANH
(EH=)

Closure of the Register of Members Thursday, 7 June 2018t~ EEFHERMHBFELFE —T—-/\FXALH
Tuesday, 12 June 2018 EWMm)E

(both days inclusive) —E-N\FEXAT=H

(B8=)

(BEEWBRELEAN)

For the purpose mentioned above, all properly completed transfer forms REMBH FEEZNBPRBERBHEKRER
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for RERN&ERRA XERAAIBEROBPE

registration with the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, ROREBATAREBLFERARMNERNBPELF
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, BN REAEFERRERISIREMPO7E
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong 1712-1716% ©

no later than the aforementioned latest time.

For and on behalf of the Board REESES

Lau Yau Cheung *E

Chairman EIRk =

Hong Kong, 26 March 2018 B ZE-NF=ZHA=+H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B R HEN RS

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

|IBDO

EEE : +852 2218 8288
{5H : +852 28152239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SANDMARTIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sandmartin
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 79 to 239, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited
BRI GEEETHNEBAERAT

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
FEBATHED11158R
KZRHD251E

BESTERERARAAZEBKRR

(REREZEMAE L2 BERALE])

=R

EECBERIENEVEEZTFRENMES T BHE
ERBERAB([EAR)RENB AR (KEA
[EEE ) NGB RE LEVBREREBER
T+ F+ - A=+ BHHEATBIRE RE
EZALFENGRABEREREMEEKRER FA
EREHRRGAEERER UNRGAPTBERE
Mzt BEEZEETBREHME-

ZERAE ZERAVBBREREBREFBSTMA
2 ([EASHAAE]) BHENEETIEREER
BEFEARQFHRET BEEER-_ZT—+tF+=A
=+ —HNGRAUBRAREEZB LFENLEE
PHRAMGARERE YERBESQAIEH
WERTZLABRE -

BDO Limited, a Hong Kong limited company, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,

and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
BN ZHMERE (&)

Basis for Opinion EBHE

\:

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on ZERBEEBSHAMAGHEMO B BELER
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those U% BETER] ) ETERIE - EERZFEL
standards are further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the TE)],EF?EEZ'S#EZiW [Z BBt B 1% 4R & BT 5 4R
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We BERENET] —SHIEE— PR -RESTES
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of AR AER [HESFABESA] ([FR1)) &
Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled EEIR BEEE WEEBETARTAMBEER

B St

our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe F-EZRE TEMES E’J%ﬁ BB ENE
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to H“iﬁl RESME ﬁﬁﬂ\l

provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter BHREIR

We draw attention to note 48 to the consolidated financial statements, EHEAGAVBHREAWMT4e EhiEit QT
which describes the details of litigations of the Company. Our opinion is B AR FAAED o B0 E Eﬁﬁt?ﬂﬂ%ﬂyf\ﬁ

not modified in respect of this matter.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern HEFEKEHBNEXRTHPARSE

We draw attention to note 3(b) in the consolidated financial statements, EREEIRAUMBHREMEDb) E45EE E5E
which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of HK$105,798,000 REBEE-_ZT—tF+_-A :‘f‘ HItFEEE &

attributable to owners of the Company during the year ended 31 NAE A AN AL FE518105,798,0008 7T 0 KA 7%
December 2017 and, as of that date, the Group's current liabilities H- BSXEENRBDEGEHBEEREEE62241,000
exceeded its current assets by HK$62,241,000. As stated in note 3(b), these V8 TT o AP FE3(b) P it - 7% 55 15 50 42 (R BT 5 3(b) P K
conditions, along with other matter as set forth in note 3(b), indicate that a WEHMEFRAGFTEEATHBERZMAIEE 5
material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group's EEMFELK S NERERER -TEWLER UL
ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in FHERER-

respect of this matter.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

B ZHEMRE (F)

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described
in the "Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Impairment assessment of loan to and amount due from an
associate

(Refer to notes 5 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had several receivables from an
associate, Dish Media Network Limited, including (i) loan to an associate of
HK$25,304,000; and (ii) amount due from an associate of HK$46,140,000.

There is a risk that the carrying values of these receivables are not
recoverable. An impairment assessment judged by management with
reference to, among other things, (i) the evaluation of collectability and
aging analysis of receivables, including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of an associate; and/or (ii) the recoverable
amounts of the receivables, by using cash flow forecast for the year ending
31 December 2018 of the associate and applying an appropriate discount
rate.

After management'’s impairment assessment, no impairment loss on the
above balances with the associate is considered necessary.

RREEXRER

REBSNERHE BREZFEL/BEEINER
AHYREAMBBRRTRA/EENETH BENE

BREUBHRRIMLENEARBRBEEZETS
B MAERZEEREBERER - B [EFEL
LHEANEXTHBARR] — s EHEIN 5F

EEE NXHMAER/ARER T AR AREZ
FH-

BT BABELINERRER —BBERQ
A By R IR B9 R E R (G

(F2H&GER R ERZ5R21)

R_ZT—+F+-_A=+—H  EBEEEBEEK—
i1 Bt 2 A B Dish Media Network Limited B9 7 T FE Uk
FIBBIE ()46 T — [ & R R HE 5825,304,00078
IT ¢ R (i) FE Uk — RE B 251X B 89 X 3B 46,140,000 JT ©

JFE W R TR Y B TED M D e R MR R 0 L Bz - EFR T T
2R (A a4E) () W kIR & AT 4 @ 4 57 4 & Bk
oM (BIEE S QR E AT (S B E Mg YR E
$£) 5 RSk i FEMRR IR Y AT e B 2 FR - 30 R AR B
RABE-_FT-\F+_A=+—BLFENRE
B TR R IR A A AR K fE IR E R HI -

EEEELRMENGR Re LA ERREHRZ
MEEETTBTBE-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
BN ZHMERE (&)

Our response EENEE

Our key procedures in relation to management's impairment assessment EHEERERETENERERF B

included:

- Reviewing the aging report and repayment history of the associate; - EMZBE R AR RS LEREL

- Checking, on a sample basis, settlements during the year and - %Tﬁ*ﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁ EﬂX1¢£F' e R BIMFE AL
subsequent settlements from the associate to the relevant EREREEBER
supporting documents;

- Circularising direct confirmations of the associate; - DEBE NN EE®RE

- Discussing with management of the associate to understand its - BZBE N R EEENwm NETHREER
business operations and development; EERERMR:

- Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions of the cash - ERETERE BN wmMERE ZRE
flow forecast based on the discussion with management and AR ERERAC AREBRNSENE R

evidence provided; and

- Reconciling input data to supporting evidence and checking the - ZEHASIBEE S FREMSEIRRES R
mathematical accuracy of the discounted cash flows. ERFHERBREN -

Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and property, plant BE BFEERVE BERRBEZRE
and equipment

(Refer to notes 5, 14, 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial (FBBHEEHBEREN S 14188 19)
statements)

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts of goodwill, intangible fﬁ(\\:g*tiﬂL*ﬂ =t+—R EHBEEERE
assets and property, plant and equipment are HK$108,297,000, RENBERFEERER I ENGE BEEE
HK$17,368,000 and HK$90,250,000 respectively related to the satellite TV )SWJ% T M 5% 2 BR T & 58 99 Bl /108,297,000
equipment and antenna segment and satellite TV broadcasting segment P8I~ 17,368,000/ 7T 590,250,000 7T + M T F 13
and are assessed annually for impairment. The Group made losses for the TREFE BEEERAFEREFHESEE
current year and previous year. This situation increases the risk that the Bt BEMRAENZEZEEREAEINEE LR
carrying value of these assets may be impaired. B8 Bz -

Impairment tests require the estimation of recoverable amounts of the WEARERERNERAEES L FRABBRRER
relevant cash-generating units using a discounted cash flow, based on a EMFHERSEAEMNAIKESE  WREH
value in use approach, as detailed in note 18 to the consolidated financial R M s 18P R

statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

B ZHEMRE (F)

We identified the impairment assessment as a key audit matter because of
its significance to the consolidated financial statements and as it involves a
significant degree of judgement made by management which includes:

- Preparing future cash flow forecasts for the relevant cash-
generating units; and

- Selecting and applying appropriate growth and discount rates.
The Group also engaged an independent external valuer to assist
management in assessing the recoverable amount of satellite TV
broadcasting segment.

Our response

Our key procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment
included:

- Assessing the reliability of management'’s forecasts by comparing
previous budgets to actual results;

- Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions of the
forecasts based on our knowledge of the industry and evidence
provided;

- Reconciling input data to supporting evidence and checking the
mathematical accuracy of the value in use calculations; and

- Evaluating the independent external valuer's competence,
capabilities and objectivity.

BEEHREMNERESBREZZR WLIIANE
U AP BBRREBEARSREREFLZERXR
HE - ER B

- REEABERSELABEUNAKRRERER
Al K

- EERRAAERRERMRE
ERENERBTNBGED G ERETEHE
BREESEZTRESE:

EENEE

%

BREEEREMENEREFE2E:

-  ERNBBERERERFGENEEEEM
TEHFERIB AT SE 1

-  HERBENTRABLERHNEE  FE
R s RERA A M

-  RYBARBEIFRREMeEFEERE
Bzt EREE: &

—  RHEBIISNES (R (EE Y A BE
:‘E o

EHRER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
B ZRHENRE (&)

Impairment assessment of trade and bills receivables FEWE 5 R EWRE 2R E b
(Refer to notes 5 and 25 to the consolidated financial statements) EEHES B REMESR25)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had trade and bills receivables of RZFE—+F+H=1T—H ' E&EZEKHE
HK$232,096,000. There is a risk that these receivables are not recoverable. 5 B8R 3% N B I ZE 4R 55232,096,00058 TT © 5% 55 JE WX
An impairment assessment judged by management with reference to, BEHREZWENER EREN2R (AR BE)
among other things, the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of EEBANITRE TG RERST (FEBAE
each debtor, including the current creditworthiness and the past collection RIREEE RBTWRES) - 1B RE TS HE -
history of each debtor.

After management’s impairment assessment, impairment losses on trade EREFEHBENGHE FARBRAER
receivables of HK$20,273,000 have been recognised in profit or loss during 20,273,000 T 2 FEWE 5 R Z BB 518 -
the year.

%

Our response EEWEOpE

Our key procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment EHEEERENENEREFBE:

included:

- Reviewing the debtors aging report and debtors repayment - EREBACKRKRRSE REBAERESL:
history;

- Checking, on a sample basis, settlements during the year and - it ER Wi ﬁ'yxﬂﬂﬂﬁiiﬁﬁ/\milﬁi =
subsequent settlements from debtors to the relevant supporting NMEBEEBR
documents;

- Reviewing management'’s assessment for receivables which are - EAZE TR B B8 BB SRR (E fE U R
past due but not impaired and understanding the business natures R TR E BRI 2 E B ME kKB &

and rationale for these receivables; and

- Circularising direct confirmations of debtors, on a sample basis, and - MRS BEEBANEERR RN R RS R
performing alternative audit work on all non-replies by checking to BERAXHE R RO EBEERBRERCE
the relevant supporting documents. ZIAE-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

B ZHEMRE ()

Other Information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Prior to the date of this auditor's report, we have
obtained the chairman’s letter to shareholders of the annual report but
have not obtained the remaining other information included in the annual
report (the “Remaining Other Information”), which is expected to be made
available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior
to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Remaining Other Information, if we conclude that there
is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the
matter to the Audit Committee and take appropriate action considering
our legal rights and obligations.

FHRAHMER
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=
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
B ZHMBRE (&)

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial EEMGAMERREAKENSE
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated EEABERBEEB LTINS HMENE BT BR
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with ERARBFBRRBGAICEERE GEEEMA
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the FHEEVBmE WEBHERBRELE W TEH
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for KRFIMEZ NEPEYE - LG AMBRETFER
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the RERFF AR M B B E N IER R it -

preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are RERGEEVBmAE EFEBETE E5E
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going SELENR N TEERBEL TREEBFELE
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and HEMNSIE WERAFELERGHEN RIFE
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either EHAEN BEEERFSIFILHLEEHABEEMER
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic MBERATER

alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's financial EENAEEE SEECVBRRETF BZZE
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging BEgWhESETL T ECBE-
their responsibilities in this regard.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated ZEMMBRGSUBBRRERENESR
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the EENEEARGEVBHRERBBES T FEAR
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material SRR MER s EAMRFANEAEZE I
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s HEBREEEERMNZEMBE - AR EDIKER
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a FE-NN—FRANEBE0KES BT (EA—
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, ERgE) MmN W AAREREMRE - E5 T an
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or ZEEN RSB AR MEAEMA T8 EslFEE M
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Eif-

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee EEZERRKENZE BETERFERBEEE
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a ZEAEITHEZ X —ERERERRIFERR
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud BE B3R o $8 FR P i O] BR] HRBF ok #E RR A A - W MR Bl 3k

or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, ERECEBHBR T IZEFEREREZZGRE
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of ~ BF 5 ¥R 3& VB H AU AS B R SR BF - B AR B B KEE AR PR
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. it o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
B ZHMBRE (&)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional EERBEAEANEARTEZN IEZ— &
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We ERNBARREREXABLARFEERR T
also: 7R

s
&
=5

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Rl R A AR FE R MEHS A M
BHREBERFEEAHRBL AR - 525
NAITERIEFFIAEE 2SR - LA RIEER
REMBENEZERR SEFERRHEE
BomMNAFARSELBR BE FBE
wEBRASOEERNREZENBER - Bt
RREF IR R RRGF M B2 A AR R B A
BER AR ERABRMEMNEAHERR
) [ o

THRERZHBNABDER  URFFEEN
BELRERF HAFEEYH BEERBAIEE
MARERERER -

HEEEMRASTRRNREERIEHE
A RAEERENSE -

HEFRAKELL S EENREMHIFD
i WREAMENRNEZRE BELS
FHEEFAXNBERBEBNHERNTEEME  #K
MAREHY BRENSERLERNEL
ERRE - HESRASFHEERTHEERE
AEVBEZBABREPRFERE LR
REMBHRRPOBERE -HBEBRED
ROAMERIEERER -BEMERIENE
EEENRBMBREAHRLEAESHNERZER
oM RRFHEKIBAALEEH B

B TR AELE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

B ZHEMRE ()

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Yu Tsui Fong

Practising Certificate Number P05440

Hong Kong, 26 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GeBRaRkHMEEWES

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2 3%

He—ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILFE
2017 2016
—E—tF AN
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
s FHERT FAT
Revenue W &= 6 1,544,838 1,801,501
Cost of sales & AR (1,468,119) (1,618,296)
Gross profit FE A 76,719 183,205
Other income, gains and losses HigA - Wz R EE 42,704 (50,408)
Increase in fair value of HEYE D TFEEL M
investment properties 17 19,580 26,906
Impairment loss on goodwill RHEREEE 18 (28,000) -
Distribution and selling costs DN E S PN (44,113) (45,709)
Administrative and other expenses THREMAS (177,582) (155,417)
Research and development costs ff 8% Al AR (37,206) (41,595)
Share of profit of an associate FEAG — & 2 7 A& F 20 8,088 4,931
Finance costs & B 8 (27,223) (14,653)
Loss before income tax expense FrEfZHAEER (167,033) (92,740)
Income tax expense FriS %t % i 9 (8,758) (14,618)
Loss for the year KEEFIE 10 (175,791) (107,358)
Other comprehensive income Hih2EKE
Item that will not be reclassified HETEEN 7 HEZ B
subsequently to profit or loss: #HEA -
— Re-measurement gain on —AEBAGFTENEN
defined benefit plan FrEWE 32 23 -
Item that may be reclassified B nge B D 18w
subsequently to profit or loss: iR E :
— Exchange differences on translation —BMEBINETHER
of foreign operations =% (10,699) (6,624)
Other comprehensive income rEEHMEEKE
for the year (10,676) (6,624)
Total comprehensive income AEETEKRREE
for the year (186,467) (113,982)
Loss for the year attributable to: THREEERFEERSE:
- Owners of the Company —KRQABIEAB A (105,798) (77,655)
- Non-controlling interests — JE IR i A (69,993) (29,703)
(175,791) (107,358)
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GeBEakAtEAEWER (F)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B & FHET FHET
Total comprehensive income THEEEAEZERAEE:
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company —ARRRHEBA (115,848) (84,503)
- Non-controlling interests —FEIER (70,619) (29,479)
(186,467) (113,982)
(restated)
(&E5)
Loss per share SRER 13 HK cents HK cents
A4l AL
- Basic — &R (4.5) (5.3)
- Diluted —#F (4.5) (53)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e IR R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017
RZF—tF+ZA=+—~H

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE-REF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 2 FET FATT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BB REE 14 149,844 142,554
Deposit paid to an associate B —HEEERRNE & 15 - 46,306
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERKIE 16 5,037 4,859
Investment properties LA 17 73,681 146,648
Goodwill EES 18 108,297 134,874
Intangible assets mEEE 19 17,368 21,698
Interest in an associate R—EBE AR ER 20 59,325 4,931
Loan to an associate MY S QARINER 20 - 25,309
Loan receivables FEU E R 22 8,794 -
Deferred tax assets EIERIEE BE 23 6,438 9,134
Total non-current assets EREBEELR 428,784 536,313
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 24 258,428 267,095
Trade, bills and other receivables FEUE ZHRF EEHQ%‘%T@&
H A fE YR T 25 299,126 349,892
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERKIE 16 163 152
Amount due from an associate U — R B & N B Y FRIB 21 71,444 78,256
Pledged bank deposits BERIRITER 27 66 14,925
Bank balances and cash WITHEGT A2 28 132,418 76,065
761,645 786,385
Assets classified as held for sale DEABIENENEE 29 97,396 -
Total current assets MBEEBEE 859,041 786,385
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade, bills and other payables ERNESER BENEER
Hfh FE A FUIE 30 510,401 575,591
Tax liabilities MIEBE 16,973 18,071
Bank and other borrowings BITREMEER 31 392,022 390,433
Obligations under finance leases R E M ERIE 33 1,886 1,856
Total current liabilities mEN B EEE 921,282 985,951
Net current liabilities REBREFE (62,241) (199,566)
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERABARS 366,543 336,747
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
mEPBIRLR (&)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017
R-ZF—tF+ZA=1+—~H

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B & FHET FAT
Non-current liabilities REBEE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEER 37 1,131 1,288
Deferred tax liabilities BEHAERE 23 41,142 44,155
Defined benefit obligation RERBNEME 32 103 -
Obligations under finance leases RLE & RIE 33 7,375 9,186
Total non-current liabilities JEMEBBELRTE 49,751 54,629
Net assets EEFE 316,792 282,118
Capital and reserves attributable to KRABRHEBEAEERERFEE
owners of the Company
Share capital (&N 34 327,882 131,153
Reserves {1 156,548 245,435
Equity attributable to owners of RNARHE NEG#ER
the Company 484,430 376,588
Non-controlling interests FEE AR A 2w 46 (167,638) (94,470)
Total equity EREE 316,792 282,118
On behalf of the directors RERES
Hung Tsung Chin Chen Wei Chun
HERE BR {2 85
Director Director
EE EZE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEZEER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE_T—tF+-_A=1+—HILFE

Non-
controlling
Attributable to owners of the Company interests Total
ALNRERAER FERES &zt
Share Defined Property  Currency
Share Share option  Statutory benefit plan Special revaluation translation Accumulated
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  feserve  reserve reserve losses Total
RERH nE L
R ROEE BRERE ZERE SHRE RURE ERRE RERE RHER @zt
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEx TEn fAR TExr Tz TER TEx TER TExr AR  TEx  TEzn
(note a) (note b) (note ¢)
(K&a) (HzEb) (&)
Balance at 1 January 2016 R-B-RE-B-AzE&4 104,586 391,869 7960 31,01 - 89,175 79,577 24828 (382,376) 346,630 35075 381,705
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - - - - (s (7ESS) (29703)  (107358)
Other comprehensive income B2 ENE
- Bichange differences on translation of -RAZENEBHELS
foreign operations EFZE - - - - - - - (6,348) - (6,348) 24 (6,624)
Total comprehensive income for the year rEE2AREAR - - - - - - - (6848) (77655  (84503)  (29479) (113982
Issue of ordinary shares (note 34) BITEREM (Kis4) 26,567 87,804 - - - - - - - 114461 - 114461
Contributions by non-controlling RE-—EWED AR RES
interests of a subsidiary (note 46) HES (Fike) - - - - - - - - - - 2149 21492
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) IREEHBAR (H53s) - - - - - - - - - - (1215%8)  (121,558)
Transfer EE - - - 469 - - - - (469) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2016 and RZB-RE+ZA=+-8R
1 January 2017 “E-tF-B-AzEH 131,153 479,763 7960 31480 - 89,175 79577 17,980 (460,500) 376,588 (94470) 282,118
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - - - - (105798)  (105798)  (69993)  (175791)
Other comprehensive income B2 ENE
- Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plans  — R EBAIH Bl B Hit B - - - - pi] - - - - 3 - 3
- Exchange differences on translation of -FAEENEHRELR
foreign operations ERZR - - - - - - - (100m) - (10073) (626) (10,699
Total comprehensive income for the year FEE2ENEAE - - - - 3 - - (10073)  (105798)  (115848) (70619  (186467)
Issue of ordinary shares (note 34) BLak (i) 196,729 26,987 - - - - - - - M6 - M6
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) HERBAR (Kikse) - - - (26) - - - - - (26) - (26)
Acquisition of non-controlling interest W i - - - - - - - - - - (4 )
Dividend paid to non-controling interest by~ AR A - B AR LR ER
a subsidiary of the Company ERBKRE - - - - - - - - - - (2,507) (2507)
Transfer EE - - - 491 - - - - (491) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZB-tE+ZA=+-8
pAi3 327882 506,750 7960 31,945 23 89,175 79577 7907 (566,789) 484430 (167,638) 316,792
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)
RERBREER (A)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE-T—tFT-A=T-ALFE

Notes: Bt 5 -

(@) The statutory reserve is required by the relevant law of The People’s Republic of China (@) EERETDBEARMAPEARLME ([FE])EHE
(the “PRC") applicable to the subsidiaries in the PRC. The statutory reserve can be NEINFEMEEERRE EEREAIEBE ML T
applied in conversion into PRC subsidiaries’ capital by means of a capitalisation issue. R P BB R R AR

(o) The special reserve represents: (b) BRI R -

(i) the difference between the nominal value of the shares of the acquired (i) s B ARG M EmEEAARRG £
subsidiaries and the nominal value of the Company's shares issued for the R TEEEAENR B EEREITHNARARA
acquisition at the time of a group reorganisation prior to the listing of the BROBERBEERFRBRBEER (REE
Company's shares and the surplus arising pursuant to a capitalisation of BHAN—HBH)MEERBZENERE:

advances from shareholders as part of the group reorganisation;

(i) the difference between the consideration for acquisition of a subsidiary (i) A —FI B AR EBY R (I EEREFK
satisfied by way of partial interest of a subsidiary without the overall gain KREZBD HEWB QR RIEHIE) B UEE
or loss of control in the partial disposed subsidiary and the fair value of net —HENBRRREEAUBEEEATENE
asset acquired; and R

(iii) the acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary without the overall gain (iii) WHE—RME AR EMER (W mEEESK
or loss of control in that subsidiary. KEZMBR R EHIAE) o

() The property revaluation reserve is frozen upon the transfer of properties from (© MEBEFEREDE BERRGEEBRMEZREY
property, plant and equipment to investment properties and will be transferred to ERERAE  BREEHEEMEREREZER-
accumulated losses when the relevant properties are disposed of.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SEBREITRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE_ZT—tHF+-_A=1T—HLF

I

2017 2016
—E—tF AN
Notes HK$'000 HKS$'000
s FHERT FETT
Cash flows from operating activities REXKBEERE
Loss before income tax expense s ik AT E 18 (167,033) (92,740)
Adjustments for: RTVIELFE:
Amortisation of intangible assets A E 4,719 4,807
Depreciation of property, W -WE R&BETE
plant and equipment 29,154 27,851
Finance cost Bh & R AR 27,223 14,653
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, LEWE - BRERERE ()
plant and equipment /518 (1,225) 2,103
Impairment loss on trade and other FEUE 5 BR 3R I H e W51 IR
receivables EE R 20,273 43,901
Impairment loss on inventory GFEREEBE 20,474 5,165
Impairment loss on goodwill R RERE 18 28,000 -
Reversal of impairment loss on trade EWE ZERREFRERE
and loan receivables & [E (32,199) -
Impairment loss on loan receivables FE U E SRR (B BT 1B - 39,155
Interest income FEMA (2,057) (1,946)
Effective interest income on bond B WG IEH B R A B A
receivables - (1,282)
Release of prepaid lease payments B EE T & IR 156 160
Increase in fair value of investment REYEN N FEEN
properties (19,580) (26,906)
Interest income from an associate K E— A AR B WA (1,598) (2,185)
Share of result of an associate FEAE— B E AR EE (8,088) (4,931)
Loss on disposal of subsidiary HEMH B AR EE 157 -
Operating cash flows before LEEEPINLCERERE
working capital changes (101,624) 7,805
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories Fa Em,md (12,978) 11,755
Decrease/(Increase) in trade, JEWE SRR FERZE KX
bills and other receivables H e U R E R A (3 0) 45,240 (79,568)
Increase in defined benefit obligation AERBFEEE N 103 -
Decrease in trade, bills and other payables [EfTE 5 8RB ZiE &
H At &S FRIE R (74,018) (169,789)
Decrease/(Increase) in amount due fEM — B A B MR D,
from associate ($8hn) 16,987 (9,559)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

SEBRTRER (F)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

2017 2016
—E—+tE —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B & FERT FHET
Cash used in operations KEEBAMARS (126,290) (239,356)
Income tax paid AT (11,391) (12,652)
Interest received 2 FIE 2,057 3,199
Interest paid ERFE (27,223) (14,653)
Net cash used in operating activities RS RGBS 2 FE (162,847) (263,462)
Cash flows from investing activities REEKEERE
Decrease in pledged bank deposits EEBRITF RO D 14,421 4,115
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEWE - BRERZEBEHIE
plant and equipment 11,789 13,361
Acquisition of subsidiaries W HE M B8 A &) 35 - 8,759
Purchase of property, plant and BEEWE WENEE
equipment (35,860) (33,254)
Net cash outflow arising from BEHE—HHBARMELER S
disposal of subsidiary SN R 36 (154) -
Addition to intangible assets REEBWEE (120) (33)
Repayment from an associate —EEE A RER 11,670 -
Repayment of loan receivable EBEEWER - 17,266
Receipts from the maturity of & % FE W IE B HA T 15 3008
bond receivables - 60,000
Net cash from investing activities KERBHFH 2 FE 1,746 70,214
Cash flows from financing activities RETHRERE
New bank and other loans raised FERIT R AMER 493,073 597,198
Repayment of borrowings BEER (499,066) (554,091)
Repayment of obligations under BERMEHEAE
finance leases (1,955) (183)
Contributions by non-controlling ’E—HMERREERERZD
interests of a subsidiary =1\ - 21,492
Dividend paid for non-controlling interest 2N/ &) — & fJ /B A &) 5k FE 42 I 4
by a subsidiary of the Company = T Y AR B (2,507) -
Acquisition of non-controlling interest Wb FE P IR fE s (42) -
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 2517 & {8 % FT 15 28 F 58 223,716 114,461
Net cash from financing activities BETE IR FE 213,219 178,877
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
MERETMER (A)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE-_Z—+Hf+-A=+—BLFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B & FERT FAT
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReRBLEEWEM OBL)
and cash equivalents FE 52,118 (14,371)
Cash and cash equivalents FUREERREEED
at beginning of the year 76,065 93,236
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ~ YMNES[E R 8 & 4,235 (2,800)
Cash and cash equivalents FRASGERCEED
at end of the year 132,418 76,065
Analysis of the balances of cash ReRBReSEYEHI T
and cash equivalents:
Bank balances and cash wITHEFRE 132,418 76,065
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LR R R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section to the annual report.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereafter referred to as the
“Group”) principally engages in manufacturing and trading of
satellite TV equipment products and other electronic goods and
satellite TV broadcasting. The details of principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
January 2017

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative
HKAS 7
Amendments to Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets

HKAS 12 for Unrealised Losses

Annual Improvements ~ Amendments to HKFRS 12,
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Disclosure of Interests in
Cycle Other Entities

Amendments to HKAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure
that will enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

The adoption of the amendments has led to the additional
disclosure presented in the notes to the cash flow
statement, note 38 (b).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") . HE

(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1 (a)
January 2017 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of deferred tax
assets and clarify some of the necessary considerations,
including how to account for deferred tax assets related to
debt instruments measured at fair value.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the clarified treatment is consistent
with the manner in which the Group has previously
recognised deferred tax assets.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle -
Amendments to HKFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include amendments
to HKFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, to
clarify that the disclosure requirements of HKFRS 12, other
than the requirements to disclose summarised financial
information, also apply to an entity’s interests in other
entities classified as held for sale or discontinued operations
in accordance with HKFRS 5, Non-Current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations.

The adoption of the amendments to HKFRS 12 has no
impact on the financial performance and the financial
position of the Group as the amendments affect only
disclosure. In addition there is no interests in other entities
classified as held for sale or discontinued operations at the
end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BB R R ML ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE_FT—
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective

Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle

Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKAS 40

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS T,
First-time adoption of
Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards'

Amendments to HKAS 28,
Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

Classification and Measurement
of Share-Based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contract’

Financial Instruments'

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)'

Transfers of Investment Property’

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

2.  ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BMEBMBHREEN([FRYE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) WEER]) (&)
(Continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but (b) EEMGEEKRERZIFT K&
are not yet effective (Continued) AIERBMBREER (&)
Annual Improvements ~ Amendments to: HKFRS 3, BRI REER AT BAVBER
to HKFRSs 2015-2017  Business Combinations; HKFRS —E-hEFE EEAEIRERE
Cycle 11 Joint Arrangements; HKAS ZE—tF O BAE RS
12, Income Taxes; and HKAS 23 BEzFENE EREFNREAL
Borrowing Costs? B BB g

FIVRABH R
BRGRERIH23

SR B R A
HKFRS 16 Leases? BRI BRSEEL HE
165
HK(FRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax B (BRME FMEHER TREN
Treatments? WMEREZE N2
g)-REERB
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts BEERBREEL Riaal
F175:
Amendments to HKFRS ~ Sale or Contribution of Assets BEAUBREER REEFREMENAN
10 and HKAS 28 between an Investor and EA ARt EANE
its Associate or Joint Venture* SR E ST E
F285E 27T
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 ! R NE—A—BsZBEEYN
FEHMEN
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 2 R-ZE—HAhE—F—Bs®ZEREY
FREHBER
: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 3 N-ZE-——F— Bk BREEY
FFZ HAR A K
4 The amendments were originally intended to be effective for 4 ZEBIRER_E—XNE—F—H
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The effective ok v 1% BRI A o E R B BRIE B
date has now been deferred/removed. Early application of the WRIE, /B - 2R ERZS BT g
amendments continue to be permitted. HEEF o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BB R R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Classification and Measurement
of Share-Based Payment Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the accounting
for the effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on
the measurement of cash-settled share-based payments;
share-based payment transactions with a net settlement
feature for withholding tax obligations; and a modification
to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment that
changes the classification of the transaction from cash-
settled to equity-settled.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose objective is
to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
(the business model test) and that have contractual terms
that give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
(the contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet
the contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI") if the objective of the entity’s business model is
both to hold and collect the contractual cash flows and to
sell the financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable
election at initial recognition to measure equity instruments
that are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and
equity instruments are measured at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL").
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BB R R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model
for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing the
incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge
accounting requirements to allow entities to better reflect
their risk management activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from
HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL,
where the amount of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of the liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the
requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that an
entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS
15 supersedes existing revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps approach to
revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4 Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance

obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue
related topics that may change the current approach taken
under HKFRS. The standard also significantly enhances the
qualitative and quantitative disclosures related to revenue.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications on
identification of performance obligations; application of
principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual property; and
transition requirements.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future will not have a material impact
on the amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group in the future, based on the existing
business model of the Group as at 31 December 2017.

Amendments to HKAS 40, Investment Property — Transfers
of Investment Property

The amendments clarify that to transfer to or from
investment properties there must be a change in use and
provides guidance on making this determination. The
clarification states that a change of use will occur when
a property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is supporting evidence that
a change has occurred.

The amendments also re-characterise the list of evidence in
the standard as a non-exhaustive list, thereby allowing for
other forms of evidence to support a transfer.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 - Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial assets
with negative compensation can be measured at amortised
cost or at FVTOC! if specified conditions are met — instead of
at FVTPL.

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 “Leases” and related interpretations, introduces
a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of
more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low
value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use
the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing
its obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee
should recognise depreciation of the right-of-use asset
and interest on the lease liability, and also classifies cash
repayments of the lease liability into a principal portion
and an interest portion and presents them in the statement
of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease
liability are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments
and also includes payments to be made in optional periods
if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to
extend the lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate
the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly different
from the lessee accounting for leases that are classified as
operating leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease
of HK$2,134,000 as disclosed in note 37. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group
will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
lease liability in respect of all the leases unless they qualify
for low value or short-term leases upon the application of
HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new requirement
may result changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be
recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets to its
associate or joint venture. When the transaction involves
a business the gain or loss is recognised in full, conversely
when the transaction involves assets that do not constitute
a business the gain or loss is recognised only to the extent
of the unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
impact of adopting the above standards and amendments
to existing standards to the Group. Except as described
above, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of other new/revised HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the Group's financial performance and
financial position and/or the disclosures to the financial
statements of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("“HKASs") and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRS") and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange.

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
which are measured at fair value, as explained in the
accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

During the year, the Group incurred a net loss of
HK$105,798,000 attributable to owners of the Company and
at the end of reporting period, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately HK$62,241,000. The Group
had bank loans and other loans of HK$163,529,000 and
HK$97,735,000 at 31 December 2017, which would request
consents from various banks and financial institutions on
the annual renewal of relevant facilities in the coming
twelve months. The Group is dependent upon the financial
support from the banks and financial institutions to meet
its financial obligations. There is no certainty that bank
loans and other loans of the Group will be renewed in
the future. These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
therefore, that it may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

In view of these circumstances, the directors of the
Company have given consideration to the future liquidity
and performance of the Group and its available sources
of finance in assessing whether the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to continue as a going
concern. In particular, the directors of the Company have
considered the following: (1) the Group maintains good
relationship with major banks and financial institutions
providing finance or facilities to the Group and the Group
had successfully renewed its banking facilities based on
past experience. The Group has successfully renewed
its banking facilities and other loans of HK$15,600,000
and US$12,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HKS$97,735,000), respectively in February 2018 upon
their expiry; (2) as of 31 December 2017, the Group has
unutilised bank loan facilities totalling HK$247,465,000
available to finance its future operations and financial
obligations.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, after taking
into account the financial performance, operation as well as
capital expenditure and the above financing arrangements
of the Group, the Group is expected to have sufficient
liquidity to finance its operations for the next twelve
months subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

Therefore, the consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared on a going concern basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be made to
adjust the value of assets to their estimated net realisable
values, to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as
current assets and liabilities respectively, and to provide
for any further liabilities which may arise. The effects of
these potential adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 “"Leases”, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R M AL ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—

3.

=

tFE+Z_A=+—RHILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is United States
dollars ("USD"), while the consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HKD"). As the
Company is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
the directors consider that it will be more appropriate to
adopt HKD as the Group's and the Company’s presentation
currency.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Basis of consolidation and business combinations

(i)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R M AL ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—ZT—

tFE+Z_A=+—RHILFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(Continued)

()

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. When
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(Continued)

()

(i)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group's interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group
to former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, BERGTEE (&)
(Continued)
(a) Basis of consolidation and business combinations (a) HMEAEEREKRSH (E)

(Continued)
(ii) Business combinations (Continued) (i) BEHELG(E)
RUEE R HE AT 3R & E KT

EXBERNENRFERE
R TSR BRIN

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets and
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values,
except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and liabilities
or assets related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income
taxes” and HKAS 19 "Employee benefits”
respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment” at the
acquisition date; and

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 “Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations” are measured in
accordance with that standard.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BB IR R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(Continued)

(i)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the Group's interest in the fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value or, when
applicable, on the basis specified in another
standard.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BB IR R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(Continued)

(i)

Business combinations (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that
qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that do
not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is
classified. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity. Contingent consideration that
is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates in accordance
with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 “Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets”, as appropriate,
with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B RS RAR 5T (&)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE_T—

tFE+_A=+—RHILFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(Continued)

(ii) Business combinations (Continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period
in which the combination occurs, the Group
reports provisional amounts for the items for which
the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional
amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised at that date.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associate used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. When the Group's share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Associates (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in
an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group's investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Associates (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate,
or when the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified
as held for sale. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate and the retained interest is a financial
asset, the Group measures the retained interest at fair value
at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate
at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of a part interest in the associate is included in
the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that associate on the same basis as would
be required if that associate had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture. There is no remeasurement to fair value upon
such changes in ownership interests.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BB IR R M AL ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

=

4.

—
—=

tFE+_A=+—RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the investment continues to be classified
as an associate, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
identifiable assets and liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree, the excess is
recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition date, after re-
assessment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B RS RAR 5T (&)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit
("CGU") is the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. A CGU to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication
that the unit may be impaired, by comparing its carrying
amount with its recoverable amount.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro-
rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each asset in
the unit. However, the loss allocated to each asset will not
reduce the individual asset's carrying amount to below
its fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its
value in use (if determinable), whichever is the higher. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss
and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE_Z—tH+A=+—RHILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, EBERETBE(H)
(Continued)
(d)  Revenue recognition (d WEER
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration Wamke Wk ERREN R FER
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable 2 DERBBERBERMEEE
for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of R ET R PR E B T K
estimated customer returns, rebates, discounts and sales HERBEHBEENERESE-

related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the ﬁﬁ%%—f%mqﬂlﬁﬁﬁ o <38 M P B 1
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all ERRER BN TIMmERGEE
the following conditions are satisfied: X
the Group has transferred to the buyer the . AEEERMEREBRERER
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the T8 B AR R B3
goods;
the Group retains neither continuing managerial . REBERMEREEE —RERE
involvement to the degree usually associated with ERAENBETIELHE T
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold; BREBHMEERNERZES
%
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; . W e BBEE R SEHbET 2
it is probable that the economic benefits associated . HAZX 5 B Y A8 B M 2 A
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and REE: Rk
the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the . ARFGEERBRRSEEN
transaction can be measured reliably. FXZANBE ] SEMbET = o
Service income is recognised when services are provided. Bl 75 WA 1 70 4 L Pl 75 s 1 R o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating leases is described in the accounting policy
for leasing below.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes (other than
properties under construction as described below) are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B RS RAR 5T (&)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—

4.

=—

tFE+_A=+—RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment other than
properties under construction less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of
that item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in property
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of
the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to retained profits.

Freehold land is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that
ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term,
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term
and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposals or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BB IR R M AL ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—ZT—

tFE+_A=+—RHILFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at
their fair values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of investment properties are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

(i) The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised

in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease.

4. EBEREFEE (&)

(f)

(9)

REME

REMEDHAARDESHESE

RIBEAYE -

BRERE REMETNRKAG
BREEMERBERN BRHE

Ri& REWER ATV EFE-KRE

MERNFEZGELN s HE BT

AEEHREMEEA -

BREMERNHELKAR I ERLTE
TN EZENETEFREKL
BN R IEHER - R IERRED
EFEEMRGSSEE (RHEMRE
FORFREZEENRA B ZHEN
ZHAE )*U\E/‘ZMHE 218 B HfE
MiEmA

HE
EHEGRTOP MR N BRI

[B B K [0l 3R 88 7% F oA AR - AR
ErERRmENE - EHEMEER
5 E/Ejz«(ééjfﬂ o

(i) A5 (B E 54 A

reEnEes R ARARE
SFHABERENERER -

Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 22 55 T EIBR =R R 2 7

2017 Annual Report £ $§




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE_ZT—

tFE+Z_A=+—RHILFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9) Leasing (Continued)

(i)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised
as assets of the Group at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position as a
finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation
so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with
the Group's general policy on borrowing costs (see
the accounting policy below). Contingent rentals
are recognised as expenses in the periods in which
they are incurred. Operating lease payments are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9) Leasing (Continued)

(iii)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the
land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at
the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis except
for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance
lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BB IR R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for
exchange differences on monetary items receivable from
or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part
of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the
foreign operation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B RS RAR 5T (&)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of currency translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial disposal
of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of
a foreign operation on or after 1 July 2005 are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and translated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

(J)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs
Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans, Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) and the state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Defined benefit plan

The Group operates defined benefit pension plan which
requires contributions to be made to a separately
administered fund for employees of the Group’s certain
entities which are operating in India. The benefits are
unfunded. The cost of providing benefits under the defined
benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(J)

Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

Defined benetfit plan (Continued)

Re-measurements arising from defined benefit pension
plan, comprising actuarial gains and losses, are recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of financial
position with a corresponding debit or credit to re-
measurement gains and losses on defined benefit plan
through other comprehensive income in the period in
which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The Group recognises the following changes in the net
defined benefit obligation under “cost of sales” and
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss by function:

- service costs comprising current service costs, past-
service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and
non-routine settlements; and

- net interest expense or income.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the
earlier of:

- the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

- the date that the Group recognises restructuring-
related costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to
the net defined benefit liability or asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before taxation’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill
or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and interests in an associate, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—

4.

=

tFE+Z_A=+—RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with
the above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based
on the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered).

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or when they
relate to items recognised directly in equity in which case
the taxes are also recognised directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)] Intangible assets

(i)

(i)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of the reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate being accounted for
on a prospective basis (see the accounting policy
in respect of impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or
loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of
the following have been demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for
use or sale;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, EBERSTHE(H)

(Continued)

)] Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)

Research and development expenditure
(Continued)

the intention to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it;

the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

how the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits;

the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to complete
the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure attributable to the intangible
asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for an internally-
generated intangible asset is the sum of the
expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria
listed above. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-
generated intangible asset is measured at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets acquired separately.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U

(m)

Intangible assets (Continued)

(iii) Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination and recognised separately from
goodwill are initially recognised at the fair value
at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination are reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis
as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

(iv) Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset,
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories is determined on a first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade, bills, and other receivables, loan receivables,
loan to an associate, amount due from an associate,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Effective interest method for financial assets

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value
through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(iif)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Objective evidence of impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group's past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period of 60 to 120 days, and observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

BE-—T—

tFE+Z_A=+—RHILFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for
all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables and loan receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if,
in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment losses were recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade, bills and other
payables and bank and other borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Financial instruments (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Effective interest method of financial liabilities

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability,
ofr, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest
expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract
issued by the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at
its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract
at the higher of: (i) the amount determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance
with HKAS 18 Revenue.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(vii)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group continues to
recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated liability.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

4.

EREFEE (&)

(n)

TR TR (&)

(vii)

AU TERE

EEEREERICREREN
BHRENEER XANEEK
ZREEERERZREER
BB AR B K [ RS
ETH—ER HRIBRS
BB E - AR E L EE RN
REE R BB KD R
N Ol 3R WA I B
BE AASEe@ERRE
FESHE B E Y R
BE-WAKBREEANEE
ETRMEERBENBARN
ez Ko [ ¥ - B K5 [ 2 A AR
R T B EENMAC WEZ AT
SRERRAAARMER -

RIERBRSREER &
ERE SRR EC U R ERAE
PAR B 7 E At 2 T Y s A e AR
W fEes Rt a0 Rt i =k
BRANENEZR RiEaHE

e

Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 22 5 T EIBR = iR IR A &

2017 Annual Report £ $§




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Financial instruments (Continued)

(vii)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than
in its entirety, the Group allocates the previous
carrying amount of the financial asset between the
part it continues to recognise, and the part it no
longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised
and the sum of the consideration received for the
part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain
or loss allocated to it that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income
is allocated between the part that continues
to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of
those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in the share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in the share option reserve will continue to be
held in the share option reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

(a)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EBEREFEE (&)
(Continued)
() Related parties (y BBAL
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family (@) A AANTHHEBERRBE S
is related to the Group if that person: WEBHEARNRREBEEZA
+:
) has control or joint control over the Group; (i) AN B) B R HI A B

(7] 12 5l 2 -

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (ii) HARARIBEARE
PR3

(i) is a member of key management personnel (iif) RAEESIARRTER

of the Group or the Company's parent. AMNEEEEEXNEZ
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the b)) FFEERUATEENERESE

following conditions apply: R ABERNF)E B

(i) The entity and the Group are members of (i) ZERBEARNG]ER—
the same group (which means that each SEKE (B8R A-
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is WEARERRZWEB R
related to the others); A% B L B@E

(i)~ One entity is an associate or joint venture (ii) —ERAS —HBHOE
of the other entity (or an associate or joint ENREE AT (3
venture of a member of a group of which the —SEKBZBE AT
other entity is a member); gEEnamE—EiR

REKEZ—)

(i)~ Both entities are joint ventures of the same (i MEBAR—F=78
third party; ERVNCIE

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity vy, —EBAF=7TH&%
and the other entity is an associate of the NE - ME—EERZ
third entity; E=ZFMEERT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE_Z—tH+A=+—RHILFE

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EBEREFEE (&)
(Continued)
(r)  Related parties (Continued) (n EBBAL (E)
(b)  (Continued) b (#&)

(v The entity is a post-employment benefit (v) ZER AR KRS EAR
plan for the benefit of the employees of the SEEBEBNERNE
Group or an entity related to the Group; BB EENE:

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled vi) ZEBX@BRNZAL
by a person identified in (a); B9 12 ) ok B 5 )

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) Rl 2 ATHZE
influence over the entity or is a member of ‘mﬁﬁﬁ W YN
key management personnel of the entity (or TRZELE (XZER
of a parent of the entity); or WEERRDHNFEERE

BRCE 2 — 3k

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of (vii) FREBIARQAEAE
which it is a part, provides key management E K B AL B AR
personnel services to the Group or to the AINEAREHREEE
parent of the Company. BERK B R

Close members of the family of a person are those family S—AATHERREKEREEH

members who may be expected to influence, or be ATHEREREI SR BHAIZE5

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity RIATHENGBKE 25

and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic () ZNTHF 7 RELB A
partner; ;

(ii) children of that person’s spouse or domestic (ii) ZATH B A 8T
partner; and 7R

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse (i) FATSEZA BB A
or domestic partner. REHRE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—

T—t+F+_A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the directors
are required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors have made in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that
has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—

T tE+ZAS+—AILER

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group's investment property portfolios and concluded
that the Group's investment properties situated in the PRC with
carrying amount of HK$73,681,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
HK$69,648,000) are held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time, rather than through sale;
therefore, the directors of the Company have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of such investment
properties are recovered through sale is rebutted. As a result, the
Group has not recognised any deferred taxes on land appreciation
tax on changes in fair value of these investment properties but has
only recognised deferred taxes on enterprise income tax.

The remaining investment properties located in Hong Kong with
carrying amount of HK$97,396,000 has been recognised as assets
classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2017. There is no
investment properties located in Hong Kong as at 31 December
2017 (2016: HKS$77,000,000). Investment properties located in
Hong Kong are held under a business model whose objective is to
recover entirely through sale, rather than to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time. Therefore, in measuring the Group's deferred
taxation on such investment properties, the directors have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts of
investment properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the
Group has not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair
value of investment properties as the Group is not subject to any
income taxes on disposal of its investment properties in Hong
Kong.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the next
financial year.

Impairment loss on receivables, deposit and advance

The assessment of the impairment loss on trade receivables,
loan receivables, loan to an associate and amount due from an
associate of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and aging analysis of accounts and on management’s estimate.
In determining whether impairment is required, the Group takes
into consideration the aging status, creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each counterparty. Specific allowance is made
for receivables if objective evidence of impairment exists and is
recognised as the difference between the estimated future cash
flow expected to receive discounted using the original effective
interest rate and the carrying value. If no objective evidence
exists that receivables are impaired on an individual basis, trade
receivables are included in a collective assessment of impairment.
If the financial conditions of counterparties of the Group were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowances may be required.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 5.
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment loss on receivables, deposit and advance (Continued)

As at year end date, the carrying values on receivables are as
follows:

BARESHE R TABPEEREN

EFERR (F)
A THPEENETERIF (&)
JEM R - 5T R B e R EEE (B)

RER BURFENREENT

2017 2016

—E—+tF N
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Trade and bills receivables EWE SRR R EREE 232,096 297,633
Loan receivables eI E X 8,794 -
Loan to an associate LY —EEEQAFTNER - 25,309
Amount due from an associate JE Ug — fEl Bt i R R A9 SR IE 71,444 78,256
312,334 401,198

These balances were net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HKS$147,778,000 (2016: HKS$145,157,000) and impairment of loan
receivable of HK$50,713,000 (2016: HK$59,507,000). Details of the
movement of allowance for doubtful debts are disclosed in notes
22 and 25. No impairment loss has been recognised for loan to an
associate and amount due from an associate in both years as the
directors of the Company considered the carrying amounts still
recoverable.

ZE/EFE B REREE147,778,00078 7T

TN 145,157,000 T ) M ERE X
J1E50,713,0008 7T ( =& — 754 : 59,507,000
BIT) e REEB B E B A 15 A KT 5E22 525
FE-ARARREERAENTIKEE R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill, intangible assets,
and property, plant and equipment

Determining whether goodwill, intangible assets and property,
plant and equipment are impaired requires an estimation of
the value in use of the CGUs of (1) the business of satellite TV
equipment and antenna conducted by Pro Brand Technology, Inc.
("PBT") and (2) the business of satellite TV broadcasting conducted
by My HD Media FZ LLC ("MyHD"), to which goodwill, intangible
assets, and property, plant and equipment have been allocated.
The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. The discount
rate represents rate that reflects current market assessments of the
value of money and the risks specific to the assets for which future
cash flows estimates have not been adjusted. Where the future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of goodwill
was HK$108,297,000 (2016: HKS$134,874,000), net of accumulated
impairment loss of HK$S111,744,000 (2016: HKS$83,744,000) and
the carrying amount of related intangible asset and property,
plant and equipment for these CGUs were HK$17,368,000 (2016:
HKS$21,698,000) and HK$90,250,000 (2016: HKS$75,365,000),
respectively. Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in note 18.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Write-down of inventories

Provision for slow-moving inventories is made based on estimated
net realisable value of inventories. The assessment of the provision
amount required involves management judgment and estimates
in identifying obsolete and slow-moving inventories and estimate
relevant market values for those inventories identified. Where
the actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the
original estimate, such differences will impact the carrying value
of inventories and provision charge/written back in the period in
which the estimate has been changed. As at 31 December 2017,
the carrying amount of inventories was HK$258,428,000 (2016:
HK$267,095,000), and accumulated allowance of inventories of
HK$46,691,000 (2016: HK$24,374,000) was recognised as at 31
December 2017.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves significant judgement
in determining the amount of the provision and the timing of
payment. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax expense is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises taxes based on estimates of the
likely outcome with reference to current tax laws and practices.
Where the final tax outcome of these transactions is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such difference
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
year in which such determination is made. Deferred tax assets
relating to certain deductible temporary differences and tax losses
will be recognised when management considers it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from the originally estimate,
such differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and income tax expense in the period in which such estimate is
changed.

BARESHE R TABPEEREN
EFERR (F)

7 & R

T EREFEN MG SR FEE
LR E ERESENGTILREEER
R PR B K A B T B A Y T e st
AREE#ANGFEENHBTEME - WARR
MERERITEREREHATEERE A
ZERBeHMTERAESERENTE
REEREELH BEEEATE-N_F
—+tH+-A=+—HBH FENEESEA
258,428,000 7T ( =Z — /54 1 267,095,0007
L) MR ZE—tEF+ZA=+—H%R
B 217 BB 546,691,000 7T ( —Z—7X
£F 1 24,374,000/ 70 ) °

Fr &%t

FETE PSB85 I HETE s R 2 BRI S AT
RENEZHE ARXHEETHFZRS
MEFE RS M H) S RT3 h 3 N ERE » 7K
SERERRIE - IRESRIRITHUCER M
BHM A EERAROMT - HELRX &K
PHBEREAZVCHENEETEEE ZE
KB ST ERTEE FHMEHMELTHEHR
i - BEEEERSRA A F A ARKER
Tty M VEHR N E B 1 22 R sk A IR B 1R B 2
LA EMEREEENAENERETAR
SHEER W HER - & BHEREN G
Fl ZEFEZEFFEETHERTEZ2EHRE
BEIER BB EMMAEH X B HER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—

T—t+F+_A=+—HILFE

REVENUE

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for
goods sold, less returns and discounts, and services provided by
the Group to outside customers during the year. An analysis of the
Group's revenue is as follows:

Wy &=

Yo zs ?aﬁﬁlﬁifﬁﬁl\ﬁﬁg)f'% B n
REHREMEWREROFKIE (EHBRRE
K)o ZIKEIE’J%Z/\’WEQDT

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FET

Sales of goods HEEm 1,477,757 1,788,490
Service income BRI YA 67,081 13,011
1,544,838 1,801,501

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The segment information reported externally was analysed on
the basis of their goods and services delivered or provided by the
Group's operating divisions which is consistent with the internal
information that are regularly reviewed by the executive directors
of the Company, the chief operating decision maker, for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of performance.
This is also the basis of organisation in the Group, whereby the
management has chosen to organise the Group around different
products and services.

Specifically, the Group's operating segments under HKFRS 8 are as
follows:

(i) Media entertainment platform related products

Trading and manufacturing of media entertainment

platform related products

- which are mainly used for satellite products
equipment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

BH=E

—
—=

tFE+Z_A=+—RHILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Other multimedia products

Trading and manufacturing of other multimedia products
- components of audio and video electronic products
such as cable lines.

Integration of signal system and traffic
communication network

Integration of signal system and traffic communication

network

- provide installation and integration of signal system
and traffic communication network.

Satellite TV equipment and antenna

Trading and manutacturing of satellite TV equipment and
antenna.

Satellite TV broadcasting
Provision of Direct-to-Home services for satellite TV

broadcasting in the areas of Middle East, Mediterranean and
Africa.

TEEFR (F)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

HittZHBER
B ERREAMZ IR E

- WEETERTH ANE
®-

BB AGRRBEAARK

B A 0E R RN ATRE

- ?E'f/\nﬂ’iﬁ? &X —Lig\%

ZERREBGRS -
HEERRBERRR

BEEVRRAXRE S REGE -

BESHER

R o 8 R I N B IR E
AEHEBHERE-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 2 5 T BEIBR = R H R A A

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. TEEH (&)
Segment revenue and results TERERESE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by RAZ2REEEDEIMIANEBRE R
reportable and operating segments: BT
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_Z—tF+-A=+—HLEFE
Integration of
Media signal system
entertainment Other and traffic Satellite TV
platform related multimedia ~ communication  equipment and Satellite TV
products products network antenna broadcasting Total
RERgTE 2t BARALRER HEER
HEER SREER  REBRSK BRERXE HEBRER @
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TERT TR TERL TR TERT
Revenue Yz
External sales HiMEE 237,214 260,280 1,219 980,263 65,862 1,544,838
Results #i2
Segment results PEEE 30,868 18,335 80 106,425 (147,971) 7,737
Other income, gains and losses A UERER 39,573
Increase in fair value of REMENATEEM
investment properties 19,580
Research and development costs e AR (37,206)
Administrative and other expenses THRABRR (177,582)
Share of profit of an associate JE{L— RS A RA R A 8,088
Finance costs BERK (27.223)
Loss before income tax expense FERTLAEE (167,033)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. oEER(#&)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) THEWERES (HF)
Year ended 31 December 2016 He—_Z—RF+-_A=+—H81tFE

Integration of

Media signal system
entertainment Other and traffic Satellite TV
platform related multimedia ~ communication equipment and Satellite TV
products products network antenna broadcasting Total
RERETE it ZAAREZAR BEER
BHES SHEEER  RBEASS RERKER  BEIRER it
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FhEL FAL FhEL FEL FAT FhEL
Revenue e
External sales HMAE 379652 239353 1430 1,169,525 11,541 1,801,501
Results Ed
Segment results PEEE 12325 23973 (162) 104407 (69,670) 70873
Other income, gains and losses AN Bz RER 16,215
Increase in fair value of REMENATEEM
investment properties 26,906
Research and development costs M A (41,595)
Administrative and other expenses TREEBEY (155417)
Share of profit of an associate Bl —EBEARMEF 4931
Finance costs BERK (14653)
Loss before income tax expense FERTLAEE (92,740)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as 1A D KRS BT IR BN SR B RO B a4 P At
the accounting policies of the Group described in note 4. Segment JEETECRAR - S EEIES D ERR
results represent the profit earned/loss suffered by each segment BEF,/ SRMER HYRADEITREE
without allocation of administrative and other expenses, research M E S R A A - WS & EE
and development costs, other income, gains and losses (except (FEWE 5 RN H it fE W R IB R E B 18 &
impairment loss on trade and other receivables and reversal of 7 10 fE W B 5 BR SR N LA JE W IR R B S 1R
impairment loss on trade and other receivables), changes in fair Broh) - MEMEN RN FEEE) - B — R
value of investment properties, share of profit of an associate and KN F] H’]/ﬁnﬂ&rﬁﬁﬁjizﬁ It T EE BB S B
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the chief operating EERBFEREEEERRERENTES
decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and = e

performance assessment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEEHR(R)
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERAE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by RAZBRGEDNBOTNAEEEERE
reportable and operating segments: BT :
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+tHF+=-A=+—8
Integration of
Media signal system
entertainment Other and traffic Satellite TV
platform related multimedia ~ communication  equipment and Satellite TV
products products network antenna broadcasting Total
RERAYE 2t BARALRER HEER
HEER SERER RBEAHRK RERXRE  EEERER @it

HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TET FET TER TET TER
Assets AE
Segment assets PEEE 136,981 84,674 881 472,031 115,266 809,833
Bank balances and cash BOgGERES 132,418
Pledged bank deposits BEARAER 66
Unallocated corporate assets AORDAEE 345,508
Consolidated assets GREE 1,287,825
Liabilities BE
Segment liabilities PERE 84,253 75,624 7,902 202,943 105,598 476,320
Bank and other borrowings ROREMREE 393,153
Obligations under finance leases BEHEAL 9,261
Unallocated corporate liabilities AARBAEE 92,299
Consolidated liabilties FaBfE 971,033
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE-_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HItFE
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. SoEER (&)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) THEEEREEB (H)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—ARFE+=ZA=+—8H
Integration of
Media signal system
entertainment Other and traffic Satellite TV
platform related multimedia ~ communication equipment and Satellite TV
products products network antenna broadcasting Total
ﬁ%@%ﬁf&éﬂé‘?% Hm BAARESR BEER
HBER LEEER xu_uﬂ%ﬂ,%% RERRE  BESLESR b
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TAT FEL TET TAT FHT TAT
Assets BE
Segment assets PEAE 151,156 103,549 172 502,337 138326 897,005
Bank balances and cash RTEGERAS 76,065
Pledged bank deposits BEARTER 14,925
Unallocated corporate assets FPEAREE 334613
Consolidated assets GREE 1,322,698
Liabilities afk
Segment liabilties PHEER 109978 98,311 8,205 25,716 101,594 543,804
Bank and other borrowings ROREREE 391,721
Obligations under finance leases rﬂ!ﬁf %KTF‘ 11,042
Unallocated corporate liabilities AARRAEE 94013
Consolidated liabilties %%éil%fﬁ 1,040,580
For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and ABERSBRANROERIEER:

allocating resources between segments:

all assets are allocated to operating segments other than

certain property, plant and equipment, deposit paid to an

associate, investment properties, assets classified as held for

sale, loan to an associate, amount due from an associate,

interest in an associate, deferred tax assets, loan receivables,

certain other receivables, bank balances and cash and

pledged bank deposits; and

all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than

certain other payables, tax liabilities, deferred tax liabilities,

bank and other borrowings and obligations under finance

leases.

ETOME -BELEEE BN —BH
H%%Q\TE’JJJE REWME -DER
FFHENEE KT HBLEAF
MV E SR B — R R R R R
R — S R B S uL%RIE\é
EEWEF ETHMEKRREA
RITBEFELRE AN ERRITER
SNvFTBEENREESKEN R R

fRETEHMENRE HEAG R
ERBAE RITREMBEEALE
BEMEAEN FERAEIEERK

EoMe
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE_Z—tH+A=+—RHILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEEHR(R)
Other segment information HttnBEHR
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or HESHEBRRDEEERTANSE:
segment assets:
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—tHF+=-A=+—BLFE
Media Integration of
entertainment signal system
platform Other and traffic Satellite TV
related multimedia  communication equipment and Satellite TV
products products network antenna  broadcasting Unallocated Total
45
BRRETE B ARRER HEER &HE
HEER SERER REBASL RERKE ERESR FAR @it
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TERL TERL TERL TERL
Addition to non-current assets REFRDEE 434 1,636 - 31,581 2,245 84 35,980
Depreciation and amortisation FEREHR 3,733 21N - 26,132 758 1,079 33,873
Release of prepaid lease payments ~ HEEFNBEHE 156 - - - - - 156
Impairment loss on trade ERESERRAM
and other receivables ERFERERR 18,912 - - 1,361 - - 20273
Reversal of impairment loss ROENEFEH
on trade receivables HEFR (23,405) - - - - - (23,405)
Write-down of inventories FEHA 20,474 - - - - - 20,474
Year ended 31 December 2016 HE_ZT—RET-_A=+—HIEFE
Media Integration of
entertainment signal system
platform Other and traffic Satellite TV
related multimedia ~ communication  equipment and Satellite TV
products products network antenna broadcasting Unallocated Total
ﬂ(/\
ReERgTz Bt ABESR HEER Fg
REER  SREER RBBABE  RERXE ERER KAR &t
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR
Addition to non-current assets REFRPAE 7995 610 - 24121 2 541 33,287
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH 7,500 749 268 23137 407 597 32658
Release of prepaid lease payments BB EFHIE 160 - - - - - 160
Impairment loss on trade e E 585 R E A ek
and other receivables HEREBE 21901 22,000 - - - - 43901
Write-down of inventories FEWH 5,165 - - - - - 5,165
Geographical information ith 35 & B
The Group's operations are mainly located in the PRC (country of AEBHNEBHIIENATR (BEEHE
domicile), Taiwan, Europe, North America, Middle East, Africa and B) = BN -4tZE - -PE - IENEREE-

South America.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. oEER(E)
Geographical information (Continued) MigER (&)
The Group's revenue from external customers, based on location AEBREINFEE (RIEZFTEH) A
of customers, and information about its non-current assets by W R BB EEMENESE D EIERE
geographical location of the assets are detailed below: BEMERGFINET :
Revenue from external customers Non-current assets (Note)
RENBEFHKE FRBEE (H:F)
2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tE —T-R “E-+F —E-R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT TER BT TER
Asia M
- Taiwan -E& 8,897 33,101 105 904
- Nepal -EAR 6,468 71,739 59,325 4,931
~ PRC (country of domicile) —~HE (REREH) 94,367 30,756 219,412 208,236
- India -HE 53,763 91,189 - 7,002
- Singapore =TI 2,69 30,992 - -
- Others —Hf 10,061 10,707 6,801 77,061
Europe B
- Germany - 60,332 30,102 747 67
- Italy YN 30,347 25,147 - -
- Spain il ¥ 24,376 60,636 63 430
- Portugal -B87T 11,922 248 - -
— France —5E 2,906 4372 - -
- Poland — R 9,145 9,013 - -
- Denmark A% 1,899 8314 - -
- Moldova -ER%R 23,923 - - -
- Malta -5 7,724 - - -
- Russia —HES 6,813 - - -
- Others —Efth 18,968 19,449 - -
North America SIS
- United States of America ("USA") —EXANRARE ([XFE]) 940,956 1,083,839 27,996 31,342
- Canada RYIIEYN 33,284 23,007 - -
- Mexico —2FF 24,026 38,443 - -
- Others —Hf 1,784 3418 - -
Middle East FR
— United Arab Emirates("UAE") —MuABANRE
(TPBEes]) 89,376 53676 99,103 125,591
- Others —Hft 6,715 8,846 - -
Africa IEM
- Algeria —P & kA D 4,522 16,569 - -
- Morocco —E&E 3,074 47943 - -
- Others —Ef 5,377 7,282 - -
South America EZES
~ Brazil -Bf 7,169 11,280 - -
- Chile — &7 3,340 2355 - -
- Argentina PRz 20,296 29424 - -
- Columbia —HRitE 15,546 37118 - -
— Ecuador -El%RE 800 813 - -
- Others —Hft 12,340 9,374 - -
Other regions Hipite 1,626 2,349 - -
1,544,838 1,801,501 413,552 455,564
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. oEER(#&)
Geographical information (Continued) Mg E R (48)

Miex: SERBAETERECHRAELE N i

Note: Non-current assets exclude deferred tax assets, deposit paid to an associate

and financial instruments. ERAMTeREeBMIA-

Information about major customers FTERFEY

Revenue from customer contributing over 10% of the total sales of BAREBNNEEZEEBIEI10%ME B I
the Group is as follows: g N

2017 2076
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET THETT
Customer A EFA 447,676 573,797
Note:  Revenue from the above customer is from the satellite TV equipment and M3E: UERPHRRKREHEESRRERRENE-

antenna segment.

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. ®ERA&
2017 2016
—EZE—+tF ZT—RF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
TET FAT
Interest on bank and other borrowings WITREMEERNS 27,141 14,552
Finance leases BMEME 82 101
27,223 14,653
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

BH=E

—EtF+A=1t—HILFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FIEB X
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
The tax charge comprises: MIEFR X BE
Current tax: NHATIA
PRC H 1,240 7,112
Jurisdictions other than the PRC and B REB AN BERE R
Hong Kong 9,127 10,995
10,367 18,107
(Over)/Under-provision in prior years: BEFE (BEEE) BETR:
PRC a3 (77) 62
Jurisdictions other than the PRC and FERBEBUIIN AR R
Hong Kong 3 (850)
(74) (788)
Deferred taxation: PEAERIA -
Current year KEE (1,535) (3,113)
Provision for withholding tax TEHB B - 412
(1,535) (2,701)
8,758 14,618
The tax rates applicable to the Group's principal operating HE_Z—+tHFR-_Z—"F+ZA=+—
subsidiaries for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are HIEFE Z'XEIEE ZEME A RER
as follows: MENT:
(i) PRC (i) H

RIEFRBEBEASFRIERLER +
BT /E AR A @A R R EMESFRM
R ED5% o

The applicable PRC enterprise income tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% in accordance with the relevant income
tax law and regulations in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Hong Kong

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits.

No tax is payable on the profit arising in Hong Kong as the
entity operating in Hong Kong incurred tax losses for both
years.

United States of America

The Group's subsidiaries in USA are subject to United States
Federal Income Tax at 34% and States Income Tax at 6%.

Europe

The Group's European subsidiaries are subject to profit tax
rates at a range of 21% to 33%.

Macau

As stated in the Decree Law No. 58/99/M, Chapter 2,
Article 12, dated 18 October 1999, the Macau subsidiary is
exempted from Macao Complementary Tax since its income
is generated from business outside Macau.

Others

Other subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions are
subject to applicable tax rates in the relevant jurisdictions.
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FrEwix i (8)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

)
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16.5%5T & »
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE-_ZT—+tHF+-A=+—"BLFE
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9.

FrE®ix i ()

AEEHRAX ARG S B MEMEEK
SERMEH AT EREERMAT

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss before
income tax expense per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —T-RF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FERT FHET
Loss before income tax expense s iz Al E1E (167,033) (92,740)
Tax at the applicable rate of 25% (2016: 25%) Tﬁﬁ)ﬂ fR <25%
(ZE—R"F:25%) st EHTIE (41,758) (23,185)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible PAHMAT BB E
for tax purpose 64,068 43,065
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERBRBANBEZE
tax purpose (22,533) (16,484)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences 7 # 52 BY A] 051 2] B 2= 58 A9
not recognised ki (53) (46)
Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries K E fth B A 2 48 & K
operating in other jurisdictions oy NS RN S koo
METE 5,197 10,771
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised RERNBIABEORGZE 3,911 873
Deferred taxation arising from KB M S TE L 8 IRE T 18
dividend withholding tax - 412
Over-provision in prior years BEFEEBERE (74) (788)
Tax charge for the year REFEHRIAX N 8,758 14,618

Details of deferred taxation for the year are set out in note 23.

AERIELER AR FISHNME -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

BH=E

10.

—EtF+A=1t—HILFE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

10. XEEBE

2017 2016
—E-+tF —ZT—-R
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHBT FH& T
Loss for the year has been arrived at after ERAFEEER
charging/(crediting): Bk (5T A) -
Directors’ emoluments (note 11) EE=We (M) 4,206 5,051
Other staff costs H A 8 TR 209,586 193,558
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, RIREME IR (EFRIN)
excluding directors 9,405 9,086
Defined benefit obligation expenses ATERBMNEERE 123 -
Total employee benefit expenses EERF AL BHE 223,320 207,695
Auditor's remuneration ZEA & 2,515 2,673
Depreciation of property, W BELREITE
plant and equipment 29,154 27,851
Amortisation of intangible assets (note i) EmEEESE (M) 4,719 4,807
Release of prepaid lease payments B EENHEHENRIEA 156 160
Carrying amount of inventories sold HEFEMEmE 1,447,645 1,613,131
Write-down of inventories (note i) FEMOR (M) 20,474 5,165
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BEERAAYMFERAK 1,468,119 1,618,296
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEREED
plant and equipment (note ii) (W), /K18 (M) (1,225) 2,103
Impairment loss on goodwill ERESE 28,000 -
Impairment loss on trade and other FEWE 5 BR 3R % Eo A FE YR IB /Y
receivables (note ii) BB EE (L) 20,273 43,901
Reversal of impairment loss on BOERRERE S ERFAE
loan and trade receivables (note ii) 518 (P L) (32,199) -
Impairment loss on loan receivables (note ii)  FEUE FURE B8 (KT Eii) - 39,155
Loss on disposal on subsidiaries (note ii) HEN B AR EE (M) (157) -
Interest income (note ii) F B A (Bt 5Tl (2,057) (1,946)
Interest income from an associate (note i) K E—EEE R ARSI A
(B &Eii) (1,598) (2,185)
Effective interest income on bond &% FE W IE B B IR A 8 U A
receivables (note ii) (B &Eii) - (1,282)
Property rental income (note ii) EBREWA (KD (11,621) (11,505)
Scrap and sample sales (note ii) % oh R iR AN SH B (B REi) (375) (498)
Net foreign exchange gain (note ii) SNEEBE e R BE (B AT (10,756) (3,761)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

10. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued) 10. XNFEEFE (&)
Note i:  Included in cost of sales ME: BEREERARN
Note ii: Included in other income, gain and losses Mk BENEMIA - WEREBRR
Included in the total employee benefit expenses is an aggregate EBEBANMAXEETBEEHATHNIE
amount of HK$9,432,000 (2016: HK$9,115,000) in respect of expense BB 7 4858 59,432,000 7T ( — & — N
for defined contribution plans. 9,115,000/ 7T ) °

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST 11. EEMERITEHESMSERI AL
PAID INDIVIDUALS

(@) Directors’ emoluments (@ EEW2
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors ENSENSESHNS0NT:

were as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—tF+-A=+—HLEFE
Mr. Hung Mr. Frank Mr. Han Mr. Wu Mr.Li Mr. Lau
Tsung Mr.Liao  Karl-Heinz Chien Chia Ms. Chen Mr. Chen Chak Yau Mr. Kuo
Chin Wen | Fischer Shan Ming Mei Huei Wei Chun Hung Cheung Jen Hao Total
Frank
Karl-Heinz

AR ESE Fischer &7 RE9 RXE R i gk IR

i3 i3 i3 i3 i3 7t i3 i3 i3 i3 it
HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000
TR TEL TEL T TERL TER TER TER TER TER TER

(note i) (note v) (note iv) (note vii) (note iii) (noteii) (note vi)
(W) (K (B (i) (Witiii) GEIED)
Fees 64 38 36 36 64 38 66 70 4 7 486
QOther emoluments:
- Salaries and other benefits 1312 26 832 - - 850 673 - - - 3,693
- retirement benefits schemes
contributions 12 9 - - - 6 - - - - 7
Total emoluments Hesg 1,388 i3 868 36 64 894 739 70 4 bl 4,206
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST 11. EEMEREEEESMEBEIAL

: =
PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued) (#&)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (@) EE=M<e (&)
Year ended 31 December 2016 HE_Z—R"EFTA=1T—ALFE
Mr. Hung Mr. Frank Mr. Yip
Tsung Mrliao  KarlHeinz ~ Mr.Chen Chung Mr.Lee Mr. Han Mr. Wu Mr.Ko Mili Ms.Chen
Chin Wen! Fischer ~ WeiChun ~ WaiDavid  ChienKuo ~ ChienShan  Chia Ming YenHui  Chak Hung Mei Huei Total
Frank
Karl-Heinz

AEE BB moe BEH EBR FRE BTW RE® MM ZRE RAE

i3 i3 ik i3 rE rE rE rE i3 i3 It gt
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSODD  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSO0O  HKS000
TEL  TET  TEn  TEL  TER TEL  TEn  TAT  TER  TEL  TET  TAR

Fees we 60 60 60 60 60 3% 60 60 8 20 60 543
Other emoluments: EfhAg:
- Slaries and other benefits - $ & RA MR 1363 7 1251 516 - - - - - - 1322 4479
- retirement benefits schemes - RIVERIET8IER
contributions 12 8 - - - - - - - - 9 9
Total emoluments Heasm 1435 9% 131 576 60 3 60 60 8 20 1391 5051
Notes: B ot
0) Mr. Hung Tsung Chin has resigned as the Chairman of the Company 0] HEELEEE - Z—FN\ATNABR
but remained as an executive Director with effect from 18 August BERRAER BEBRERNITES
2017
(i) Mr. Lau Yau Cheung has been appointed as an independent non- (ii) BIhetk ER T —+F N\ALHE
executive Director of the Company from 7 August 2017 and has ZERARABBUIFRTEERN
been appointed as the Chairman of the Company from 18 August Z—tFNATNAEBZEAEARA
2017 TEe
(iif) Ms. Chen Mei Huei has resigned as an executive Director and chief (iif) MEBEZTHR=_ZT—tFN\A+NAH
executive officer of the Company from 18 August 2017 BEARRRITEERNITR
(iv) Mr. Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer has resigned as an executive Director of (iv) Frank Karl-Heinz Fischerfe £ A = —+
the Company from 18 August 2017 FNATNBBEARBRITES-
(v) Mr. Liao Wen | has resigned as an executive Director of the (v) BEXRAER-_T—tFNATNR
Company from 18 August 2017 BERABIRITES -

Sandmartin International Holdings Limited 2 5 T BEIBR = R H R A A
2017 Annual Report 4 %§



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST  11.

PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(vi) Mr. Kuo Jen Hao has been appointed as a non-executive Director of
the Company from 18 August 2017

(vii) Mr. Han Chien Shan has resigned as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company from 7 August 2017

(b) Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, one (2016: two) was a director of the Company
whose emoluments is included in the disclosure set out
above. The emoluments of the remaining four (2016: three)
individuals are as follow:

EEMERLBREMEEIAL
(%)

a) EEM< (&)
GEINCD

(vi) BAREER-_ZE—LFNAA+N\HB
BZERARBFNTES

(vii) BTLWAER=_ZE—CtFNALBEH
EARRARBYIERITESE-

(b) HEEESMEMEBAL

AEERERSMEENAL —%
(Z2—RF MB)REARAES
ERMeCHN EX-EHIEE (=
F-RFZR)ATHMEHT:

2017 2016

—E—+tfF —E—REF

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FERT FAET

Salaries and other benefits HeREMEF 7,266 7475
Retirement benefit schemes RIREFET B R

contributions 270 216

Total emoluments B <& 4B %8 7,536 7,691
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST 11. EEMEREEEESMEBEIAL

PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued) (%)
(b)  Five highest paid individuals (Continued) b) HEE=EMESERAL(E)
The emoluments were within the following bands: e n FUTEER:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
No. of employees  No. of employees
EE#A EE#E
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = £ 1,000,000/ 7T - -
HKS$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T £ 1,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HKS$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7T £ 2,000,000/ 7T 2 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £2,500,0007% 7T 1 2
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T £4,000,0007% 7T - 1
During each of the years ended 31 December 2017 and HE-ZT—+tFR-ZZT—X"F+=A
2016, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the ST —HIESFE - AEELERT
directors and top paid employees as an inducement to join MEEkTaFEEXNMNE A
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of TR o A2 B N B8R AN &% [ ) BN 2 ok B B
office. No director waived any emoluments for each of the HWE-BE_E—tHER-T—RF
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. TZA=T—HBLEEFE BEES
WEEAME -
12. DIVIDENDS 12. BRE
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the EFVIMEEREBEEZE_T—LtFTHA
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil). ST+ -—BLEFERNBRE(ZE—XREF:
;) o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE

13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. BRER
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable KRR NEEEREARREEEE TR
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data: THEEE -
2017 2016
—E—+iF —E-RF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FAT
Loss for the purposes of basic and diluted R ESRERREEEE
loss per share &5 18
Loss for the year attributable to owners RArEB ANEBLRARFEER
of the Company (105,798) (77,655)
(restated)
(geE5)
2017 2016
—g-tF  -T-a%
Number of Shares izt 8 B
Weighted average number of ordinary shares % 38 i% i <7 15 £& 2,352,317,330 1,457,505,237
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares BELTBEMNESZE (W)
(Note) . _ _
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  FB{E&T 5 & IS E 18 40 LB AR
for the purpose of diluted loss per share In#EFI 8 2,352,317,330 1,457,505,237
Note:  The weighted average number of shares adopted in calculation of basic Msx: AEFEBEZE-Z— X F(KEF)R=F—+
loss per share for the years ended 31 December 2016 (restated) and 2017 F+ZA=t+t—HLEFESREABENR®KD
has been adjusted to reflect the impact of the open offer shares by issuing IEFBE/ERE  UARER_T—tF+A
1,967,295,201 ordinary shares at an offer price of HK$0.12 completed on 19 + N B FERCIR B & (B0.1278 T8 171,967,295,201
July 2017. MBI NABRERNDHITE-
The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume the exercise ARZERRITENERENTEERRRS
of the Company’s outstanding share options as the exercise price of those BT 5 E M EEREEE BRI AR
options is higher than the average market price for shares. BATEE AR B iE AT A BB AR A -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ¥R -BERRHE
Freehold Leasehold Furniture,
land outside  land outside Leasehold Plantand fixtures and Motor ~ Computer
HongKong  Hong Kong Building improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles  equipment Total
nER RER
BHHAA B BENE BER HH-BE
$Ei®  HELH i &2 %8 e ZERRE RE  BERE @t

HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
TER TER TER TER TERL TER TER TER TER

Cost KA

At 1 January 2016 RZZT-"5-A—H 3543 33% 99,248 11,906 228,106 24,844 3736 18,556 393335
Exchange adjustments  [E 3§ 3% 2 2 (4719 (630) (5,468) (1923) (755) (1,827) (15318)
Additions hE - - - 5621 24399 1,250 359 1,625 33254
Acquisition of a subsidiary M EE — A B2 &

(note 35) (Fir33s) - - - - - 287 41 646 974
Disposals e - - (13,778) (1,771) (12324) (9718) (1,250) (4,767) (43,608)
At 31 December 2016 RZB-1R%F

T-A=+-AH 3,545 3398 80,751 15,126 234,713 14,740 2131 14233 368637
Exchange adjustments  [E 5% 28 2 6,044 567 10567 1,704 109 4123 23170
Additions HE - - - 2078 29919 2958 73 832 35,860
Disposal of asubsidiary ~ HE—HHBAH - - - - - (3261) - - (3261)
Disposals HE - - - (2611) (46,614) (4874) (516) (9472) (64,087)
At 31 December 2017 S o

+ZA=1-H 3573 3426 86,795 15,160 228,585 11,267 1,797 9716 360,319
Depreciation and RERBH

amortisation
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~E-A-H - - 33,394 8097 158926 19,066 3425 13,381 236,289
Exchange adjustments B % - - (1,772) (594) (3,702) (1619) (634) (1,593) (9913)
Provided for the year TEERE - - 3673 537 19534 1341 154 2612 27851
Eliminated on disposal & 434 - - (3,162) (1,114) (9892) (8,829) (1,022) (4125) (28144)
At 31 December 2016 RZB—NF

T-A=+-H - - 32133 6926 164,866 9960 1,923 10275 226,083
Exchange adjustments  [E J 5% - - 2632 652 5231 926 (22) 1731 11,150
Provided for the year FEERE - - 3579 2001 19,560 1,850 167 1,997 29,154
Eliminated on disposal i & ¥ 38 - - - (2,563) (39,299) (@771) (317) 6,579) (53523)
Eliminated on disposal of 1% — R B2 Rl

a subsidiary E3f - - - - - (2.389) - - (2,389)

At31December2017  RZZE—+%

+=R=1-"8 - - 38344 7016 150358 5576 1,757 7424 210475
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+#&

+=A=1-H8 3573 3426 48451 8144 78227 5,691 40 2292 149,844
At31 December 2016 RZE—-RF

+=A=1-H 3545 3398 48618 8200 69,847 4780 208 3958 142,554
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BB R R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14.

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at

the following rates per annum:
Freehold land outside Hong Kong
Leasehold land in Hong Kong
Leasehold land outside

Hong Kong
Buildings

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Motor vehicles
Computer equipment

Nil

2%
Over the term of finance lease

50 years or over the term of
lease or land use rights,
whichever is shorter

20% or over the term of lease,
whichever is shorter

10% - 33'/3%

20%

20% — 33'/3%
20% — 33'/3%

The carrying values of leasehold land outside Hong Kong and
buildings include amounts of HK$3,426,000 (2016: HK$3,398,000)
and HK$9,226,184 (2016: HKS$9,335,000) respectively in respect
of assets held under finance leases. Certain leasehold land and

building is pledged to a bank to secure a mortgage loan and

general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 44).

ME - BERRE (&)

it BERRERE (ERIERIN)
BTIFERNEREAERE:

REBEING piia
KA FERE T
REBWNHEEL 2%
REBRING MmEMAEHR
HELTi
BF S04F sk M & sk L it
FREFHA
(ARG & BAE)
HEMEEE 20%3% A & Bf A
(AB5E H AE)
TR 55 R i =5 109%—33/:%
R BEEE 20%
B
TE 20%—33/3%

B E 20%—33/3%
REBZIINNHE L RIEFHREED A
B 153,426,000/ 70 ( ZF — 754 3,398,000/
7T) 529,226,184 7T ( =& — 75 4F 9,335,000
BL)EEABERERESFENEENS
H-AEECHSMHEEL D REFEA
TERFMERITEE MK (k) o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

BH=E

15.

—EtF+A=1t—HILFE

DEPOSIT PAID TO AN ASSOCIATE

On 10 May 2013, the Group entered into a conditional agreement
in respect of the subscription of 6,195,652 new shares in Dish
Media Network Limited (“Dish Media”), an associate of the
Group, for a subscription price of US$7,289,002 (equivalent to
HK$56,489,765) (the “Share Subscription”). Dish Media is principally
engaged in the provision of Direct-To-Home service for satellite
TV broadcasting. Details of the transaction are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 10 May 2013. Directors
of the Company expected that the associate would become a
subsidiary of the Group after issuance of the new shares.

During the year 2016, the Company entered into an agreement
with Dish Media to revise the terms of the Share Subscription
(the “Revised Share Subscription”). Pursuant to the Revised Share
Subscription, Dish Media will issue new shares to all existing
shareholders and the Company will subscribe 5,468,513 new shares
by utilising the deposit paid to an associate. According to the
Revised Share Subscription, there is no change in the Company’s
shareholding percentage and Dish Media is continued to be
an associate of the Group. As at 31 December 2016, the Group
had deposit paid to Dish Media of US$5,972,000 (equivalent to
HK$46,306,000).

The share subscription has been completed on 7 August 2017.
Deposit paid to an associate amounted to US$5,972,000 (equivalent
to HK$46,306,000) has been recognised as interest in an associate.
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15.

EN-—EBEQITNITE

RZE—=ZFRA+H AEBETLEIK
F#:% WA A B R B Dish Media Network
Limited ([Dish Media | » 7N £ @ #) B &
7))6,195,652/% # A% 17 REE(E 47,289,002
70 (MR & 156,489,765 7T) ([0 REEE
TH]) ° Dish Mediax BER FREEEZE AR
ETREERS R BFBHNAAFAH
AT ZFAATHENRAERN - ARAE
ETEEIR M BT R BE AR ALTE
BrKIEB AR

ZE—RNFEAR ARG HEDish Mediag] 37 #
& MERTIRMDREE F B 2 6k (T8 ET IR
NRBEIR]) - REBLETRNHABIEEIE
Dish Mediaf% M FT AR B REZHITHRG -
AARKBBFAREEQBZFNFTIER
E5,468 513X FTAR 15 - IRIB LS FT IR0 R 8
I8 AR BRI 30 £ 2 4L - Dish Media
BEAAEBZBERAT -R_ZT—RF
+ZA=+—H " AEBZ{IDish MedialZ &
5,972,000% 7t (48 & #246,306,0007 7T ) °

BHRBEEER-_ZE—+tFNALHE
e B —EE & Qa5 £ A5,972,000% 7T
(#8 & 17246,306,00078 70 ) B HER AR — M
BNRIRER -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

BH=E

16.

17.

—EtF+A=1t—HILFE

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. FENHERE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET TFAT
At beginning of the year REH] 5,011 5512
Exchange adjustment PE W 82 345 (341)
Released to profit or loss BEigs (156) (160)
At the end of the year RER 5,200 5,011
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MERAEIWE:
Current asset MBEE 163 152
Non-current asset EMBNEE 5,037 4,859
5,200 5,011
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. BEYE
HKS$'000
FHTT
At January 1,2016 RZZE—-RF—H—H 124,241
Exchange adjustments ME 3 B (4,499)
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss R IB = ER KA FEEZE) 26,906
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RFT-A=1+—H 146,648
Exchange adjustments ME 3 B 4,849
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale HEESBEARBELNENEE (H5E29)

(note 29) (97,396)
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss P18 28 MR A F(E & 19,580
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tF+-_A=+—H 73,681
Note: B o

The fair values of the Group's investment properties at 31 December 2017 and 2016
have been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out by RHL Appraisal Limited,
an independent qualified professional valuers not connected to the Group and
possess appropriate qualifications and experience in the valuation of properties in the
relevant locations. All of the Group's investment properties were valued with reference
to valuation by the valuer considering the market evidence of transaction prices
for similar properties in similar locations and conditions, or on the basis of income
approach where appropriate.

AEBEREMER-_ZT—LFR-_FT—X~"F+=A
=+ —HBNAFERKFITHFEEBBRAR (AHEX
SEMERENB LA EREXGEM B YHEREK
Y EETHENBEERIER) ETHHEREE
W NEEMBEREMENEEOHHEEM2 R
ARRART A B E RIS R BRE IR AE (]

BRimE)ZER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

In arriving at the valuation on the basis of income approach, the fair value is
determined by capitalising the net rental income derived from the existing tenancies

with due allowance or provision for the reversionary potential of the properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the
properties is their current use.

Following are the key inputs used in valuing the investment properties as at 31
December 2017 and 2016:

17. REYXE (&)
MaE: (48)
BRWACEEBGER DR EeHEEwEMELENFHA
SWABEER UMY ENAERBAB N REE
BEmMERATE-

REZEMENRTER DENRR RKERERE
HIBEME-

R-E—tFR-ZE-RET A=t —HARRAEMHE
ETHENAANIBRABNT

Fair value at Fair value at Range or weighted  Relationship of unobservable
Category Fair value hierarchy ~ 31 December 2017 31 December 2016 Valuation techniques Key unobservable inputs average inputs to fair value
R-Z-t% RZB-1%
+ZA=1+-8 +zZA=t-8
5 RYERE HRTE HATE fHERE TEFAREAAE BEINETHE FUBRRRAEEATENBR
HK$'000 HKS'000
TER FiEn
Office properties in Level 3 97,396 77,000 Comparison Adjusted transaction price 3.8% (2016:3.8%) The higher the adjusting factor,
Hong Kong (to reflect location, size, the lower the fair value
age and maintenance)
REENHAZNE E=8 HBE ARERSE (RBLE BE REZYER RTEME
BRR&E)
Industrial properties in Level 3 73,681 69,648 Comparison/Income  Reversionary yield 6% (2016: 6%) The higher the reversionary yield,
the PRC (derived from monthly market rent) the lower the fair value
RBEHIEDE E=8 fRE/MAE  AEBUA (RARTEHE) AEBUAEE ATEME
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REYXE (&)

Note: (Continued) MsE: (#8)

BREMENRATFTERE=ZREFUERTEFE HOL
MR R FEHRBHENT

The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring fair value measurement. A

reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value balance is provided below:

2017 2016

—ZE2—+t5F —E-RF

HK'000 HK'000

FHERT FET

Opening balance BRY)EREE 146,648 124,241

Exchange adjustments [E 5 AR 4,849 (4,499)

Reclassification* B - -

Transfer to assets classified as held for sale (note 29) BERESERFELENEE (H:E29) (97,396) -

Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss REZERAN A TEE 19,580 26,906

Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair value) HABE (FZAEEERTE) 73,681 146,648
* There was no transfer amongst levels during the year * FEANEEE R e ERE -

Investment property is pledged to a bank to secure a mortgage loan and general

REVECEMTRIT EARTAKEEMERE —
RRERITEH AR (M 5E44) -

banking facilities granted to the Group (note 44).
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BRI R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

18. GOODWILL 18. B8

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAET

cosT R
At beginning of the year REA 218,618 92,267
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) W 5 B B8 A &) (B 5E35) - 125,004
Exchange adjustments b 5 FE & 1,423 1,347
At the end of the year RER 220,041 218,618

IMPAIRMENT AT
At beginning of the year RE A 83,744 83,744
Provision for impairment loss VERIEN SRR = 28,000 -
At the end of the year RER 111,744 83,744

CARRYING AMOUNTS REEE

At the end of the year NG N 108,297 134,874

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to the following CGUs and the carrying amounts of
goodwill allocated to these CGUs are as follow:

SRRERRNS HEEIEENTHREE
B - EREAZTREELEUNEBEN
FRESBMT

2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHBT FHTT
Satellite TV equipment and antenna FEEBRBERREZ
- PBT CGU —PBTIRE EA E 10,654 9,870
Media entertainment platform IR IRLE Y SR E
related products
- IDS CGU —IDSHEEE BN - -
Satellite TV broadcasting HMEBHRER
- MyHD CGU —MyHDIR & E & B 1 97,643 125,004
108,297 134,874
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

18. GOODWILL (Continued) 18. BE (&)

RBEZZ—+F+-_A=1+—HLFE"
= EEBZQ?@%ETE&QﬁTEﬁ?&HﬂﬁﬁXZF
WRESENEEBATKEE TRRERS
the higher amount would be based on the cash flow projections of SEEARERESSMMERETENA
the relevant CGUs. 7%%%

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the management
assessed the expected recoverable amount based on the higher of
value in use and fair value less cost of disposal and determined that

ZERCELEBNMIKBSEEIRERE
based on the value in use calculations, covered a detailed budget BstEREAETE A EREFENTEE T
W TR EXRHEEBARERE &

The recoverable amount of these CGUs have been determined

plan, have followed by an extrapolation of expected cash flows at

the growth rates stated below. The key assumptions used for value RAEBHEREZNEEREZOT
in use calculations are as follows:
PBT CGU MyHD CGU
PBTREELEN MyHDREE4£EN
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E-tF ZE-RF “E-t% “E-RF
Budget plan TEE A& 5 years 5 years 5 years 5 years
HE Fik2 aF heF
Growth rate ERE 2% 2% 3% 3%
Discount rate Prig = 12.14% 15% 19.85% 22%
The growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts ZERRENHBITENERTBARER T
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the SHRAEBTENTHRERERE -BERN
relevant industry. The cash flow projections are from the most EIERIA Efﬁﬁt/ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂli@%%%
recent financial budget approved by the management. Other key (P AEBEFESENEMEIERRAIE
assumptions for the value in use calculation are budgeted gross BEMEREEW  tMIBTHIR B BB
margin and budgeted revenue, which are determined based on the MBTRERERBESMSERNIEHNNE
unit’s past performance and management's expectations regarding JE °

market development.

REE-Z—+F+-_A=+—HLEFE"
BERMYHDIR & E A BN 2 2R EE
$8/528,000,0008 7L (ZE—RF &) c AR
ReEAEUNERED RS EETKE S
897,643,000/ 7T - EMARETE AT E 58
CEEBBREZZAMEEBESE —FHRE
B8 -

An impairment loss on goodwill HK$28,000,000 (2016: Nil) was
recognised for MyHD CGU for the year ended 31 December
2017. As the carrying amount of the CGU has been reduced to its
recoverable amount of HK$97,643,000, any adverse change in the
key assumptions used to calculate the recoverable amount would
result in further impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BFEE
Product Customer
technology relationship Others Total
EmB il EFB#E H #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT FTERT TET
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢)
(FMfzEa) (FzEb) (MizEc)
Cost X AR
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—R"F—H—H 29,487 35,223 5,727 70,437
Addition NE 33 - - 33
Disposals & (877) - - (877)
Exchange adjustments [ i #3 % (45) 20 1 (24)
At 31 December 2016 A ZZF—R4F
+=-—RA=+—H 28,598 35,243 5,728 69,569
Addition NE - - 120 120
Disposals & - - (279) (279)
Exchange adjustments  [& 5 3% 1,690 286 373 2,349
At 31 December 2017 R -ZT—+F
+=ZA=+—8H 30,288 35,529 5,942 71,759
Amortisation and #5E MORE
impairment
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—-RF—H—H 26,749 13,336 3,883 43,968
Exchange adjustments [ i 55 % (33) 5 1 (27)
Provided for the year NEERME 522 4,178 107 4,807
Eliminated on disposals & B 41 84 (877) - - (877)
At 31 December 2016 AT —/X4F
+=—A=+—H 26,361 17,519 3,991 47,871
Exchange adjustments  [& 5 3% 1,863 154 63 2,080
Provided for the year NEERME 247 4193 279 4719
Eliminated on disposals & B ¥ 44 - - (279) (279)
At 31 December 2017 R ZZT—+%F
+-—A=+—H 28,471 21,866 4,054 54,391
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2017 R T —+4F
+ZA=+— 1,817 13,663 1,888 17,368
At 31 December 2016 R ZZE—X
+=-A= 2,237 17,724 1,737 21,698
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—

19.

20.

T tE+ZAS+—AILER

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 19.
Notes:
(a) Product technology represents software acquired from independent third

parties for the development of TV set top box. Amortisation is provided on a
straight-line basis over 3 years.

(b) Customer relationship represents contracted and non-contracted customer
relationship arising from the acquisition of Pro Brand International, Inc
("PBI") during the year ended 30 June 2013. The amount is amortised over its
estimated useful life of 7.5 years on a straight-line basis.

(@] Other mainly represents the fair value of the research and development team
of PBT, a subsidiary of the Group acquired during the year ended 30 June
2013. The mature research and development team is separately recognised
based on the fair value at the date of acquisition. It can support the Group
for further expansion. Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over
7.5 years.

@ EnBEfiiasREEagRamnBLE=7
WENE - BEN=FANUNERE R

(b) EPBAREREE - —=F~A=1+HLHF
EAULEEPro Brand International, Inc ([PBI]) 1
EERNEGHNRIENETPHAR - ZETUARIS
FREET A AFRANRES -

(© HEMEIrZ2HEAKSEARBE_T—=F A=+
HIEFERKRE NS R APRTH BN A
FE-RANMHEERDRBREEANRT
EERRR ZMBEERAXFAKELE—F
- MR TSFRNIAERER R

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/LOAN TO AN 20, R—EHSATIHERS BF—
ASSOCIATE HEEATNER
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Share of net assets of associate FEfh — 2 R A E’]x?é% 59,325 4,931
Loan to an associate BT —HEBERRNER - 25,309
59,325 30,240
Movement of interest in associate is as follows: RELNTI RSN T
2017 2016
—E—tF —T-R#F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
At the beginning of the year REH] 4,931 -
Capital contributions &R 46,306
Share of profit of an associate FEAE — Al B & A R & 8,088 4,931
At the end of the year RER 59,325 4,931
Note: 3 -
Loan to an associate is unsecured, repayable on demand and bearing fixed interest ST — R e QAR ER AEEKE - /E}g%i Et&}ﬁ.
rate at 4.75% (2016: 4.75%) per annum. As at 31 December 2017, the loan to associate FEFEMRL75E (ZF—RNF 475B) it B - R T —+

is classified as current assets as it is wholly repayable within one year (note 21).

F+-A=+—8" %A%E“L"TE’J%TJ’A%iEﬁ//@bﬁ
E-EAEATR-FARTEERN (K1) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—"Z—+F+-_HA=+—BI1ILFE

20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/LOAN TO AN 20. A — Fﬂﬂﬁ% DNENER BF—
ASSOCIATE (Continued) BEENTNER (&)
Note: (Continued) Mgt : (48)

REZE—+FR=_FT—RF+=-A=+—H
THE & R AR

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had interests in the following associate: C REER

Form of business Place of Place of held by
Name of entity structure incorporation operation Class of shares the Group Principal activities
BERERE EBERBER EMAE S P IR 12 58 B EEERE FEEK
Dish Media Limited company Nepal Nepal Ordinary 47.12%  Provision of Direct-To-Home
service for satellite TV
BRAR IR IEREL gl AEE2ERREEEAERY
Summarised financial information: M ERBE
2017 2016
—E2—tF —ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
As at 31 December R+=ZA=+-—H
Current assets MENEE 72,823 53,293
Non-current assets EMENE E 334,985 272,871
Current liabilities mBaE (278,915) (314,667)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (2,993) (1,033)
Year ended 31 December BE+=-B=+—-HLEFE
Revenue Wz 217,339 117,520
Profit for the year REFRA 17,165 48,598
Total comprehensive income for the year REEEEKREHE 17,165 48,644
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying amount T ER B E SRS M MRMERN —HHE R
of the interest in an associate recognised in the consolidated financial statements: AIMEEMRM SRR
2017 2016
—E—tF ZTE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
Net assets BEFHE 125,900 10,464
Proportion of the Group's ownership interest NEBE A EEZDLLA 47.12% 47.12%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in an associate AEER—HBEARNERNEESE 59,325 4,931
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE

21. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 21. B —BEBERANRE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET TFAT

Current BIVEA 71,444 78,256

Amount due from an associate include: FEU — & R A HFRIB B IE -

(i) amount of HK$41,355,000 (2016: HKS$63,419,000) being (i) 41,355,000/ 7T ( ZZF— 754 163,419,000
unsecured, interest-free and the Group allows a credit L) EEARAR S AREEG
period of 360 days to its associate which is trade in nature; THEE RAANEERA0A - BE

SEE

(ii) amount of HKS$25,304,000 (2016: HKS$11,664,000) is (ii) 25,304,000/ 7T ( —ZF—754F : 11,664,000
unsecured, bearing fixed interest rate at 4.75% per annum; ) - Ty IRR B E M F475F
and R R

(iii) amount of HK$4,785,000 (2016: HKS$3,173,000) of interest (iii) 4,785,00078 7T ( == —734F 13,173,000
receivables from the loan to an associate. B RBGL T —EBELAANE

R YRS, -

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables from an JER—HEBEARNERESERER (BES

associate, which is trade in nature, presented based on the invoice ME)RHRERRIZEZEH BN/ ERER
date at the end of the reporting year: AT

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FHET

0 - 30 days 0230H - 5,409

31 - 90 days 31290H - 7,003

91 - 360 days 91£360H 5,640 51,007

More than 360 days BiE360H 35,715 -

41,355 63,419
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE

21. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 21. B -—BBERIANKRE(F)
(Continued)
Aging of amount due from an associate which are past due but not 48 BB SRR (B B PR U — A B i A B IE A
impaired: BREQINT -
2017 2016
—E—tF - ANCS
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FERT FHETT
Less than 3 months past due &1 HY L 503 E A 12,287 -
3 to 6 months past due w1 81326 ME A 23,428 -
35,715 -
22. LOAN RECEIVABLES 22. EWER
2017 2016
—E—tfF —E-RF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FHETT
Loans receivables (note i and ii) FEMWE K (M aEi ki) 59,507 59,507
Less: allowance for doubtful debts (note iii) B REREAE (B RE) (50,713) (59,507)
8,794 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE

22.

LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes

@)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had loan receivable amounting to
HK$12,989,000 (2016: HK$12,989,000) granted to a third party. The amount
was unsecured and bore interest at 1.2% (2016: 1.2%) per annum. This loan
receivable was fully impaired as at 31 December 2016 and 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had loan and trade receivables due from
two customers (the “Debtors”) with gross amount of HK$46,518,000 (2016:
HK$46,518,000) and HK$39,273,000 (2016: HK$56,459,000) respectively (the
"Receivables”) which had been fully provided as at 31 December 2016. The
Debtors were engaged in the operation of cable television in Nepal.

The Group further advanced a loan of HK$14,491,000 to the Debtors during
the year ended 31 December 2016 to support the development of the
debtors in view of its long term growth potential and the repayment of loan
and trade receivables as a result. These loan receivables bore interest at 5%
(2016: 5%) per annum. Pursuant to an agreement dated 25 March 2016, the
80% equity interest in one of the Debtors was pledged for part of the loan
receivables of HK$43,803,000 (“Share Pledge”). In the event that the Debtors
fails or defaults to settle such loan, the Group shall have the right but not the
obligation to possess the pledged share.

Provision of impairment loss was determined by the directors of the
Company based on the credit worthiness and the past collection history of
the Debtors. Also, the directors of the Company assessed that the value of
the Share Pledge to be insignificant as at 31 December 2016.

On 29 December 2017, the Group entered into an agreement (the
"Agreement”) with an independent third party (the "Purchaser”), pursuant
to which the Group have conditionally agreed to sell and assign, and the
Purchaser has conditionally agreed to purchase and be assigned, the rights,
titles and benefits of the Receivables and Share Pledge at a consideration
of US$4,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$31,275,000) (the
"Consideration”).

22. BWER(E)
b 5

i) R-ZE—+E+-_A=+—H AEEHEEX
¥ 5 = 77 By FE U B 512,989,000 T (ZF — <
£F :12,989,000/8 7T ) c KB R EE I RFF|
R12% (ZFE—RE12%) 5t B - ZEWER
ERZE—tFRZTE-R"F+ZA=+—8H
TEERE-

(ii) REZE—+tF+-A=+—H AEEEKM
ERP ([BBAD ZERRERE 5IEHEH
2 Bl 546,518,000 7T ( = F — /X 6F © 46,518,000
7T ) %39,273,0007 7T ( ZZF — /X4 © 56,459,000
B) (TRKER]) RZT—XF+=A
=+ HEREHRE-BEHEARERORAR
BEMNEE-

REBAZREERERSRNERREKE S
ERERME AEEREE-T—A~F+=
A=+T—BUHEEE—FRABHEARBRER
14,491,000 70 - A EBRE - ZZRBRHIR
FERRswat B (ZF—NF 15%) - BRIE—MHA
MAE-—Z—NEZA-_+tHANHHE Edh—
Z BN Z80%M% 7 # 25 B & # 1E /43,803,000
B2 BN ERER ([ROER]) - WEEH
ANEEBEB SR ZEER AEE G A EF
i FE 3 B A 2 E IR AR -

REBBZBEBARARZEEEREBAZE
RRZEERBERRLHETE ARAREERITT
BERHERAR-_Z—RF+-A=+—RZE
BERATEKR

RZB—+tF+AZ+NB FAEEE—£LF
SNE=F(TERDEIxHE ([HE]) - 't
ArEEEBRHERELEREBE MEHESR
BHREEE REEERERRRG G2 #
F - BT #E & Al - (K8 A4,000,000% 7T (AEE
W #931,275000/8 ) ([HRIE]) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE

22. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22. BRER (&)
Notes (Continued) Bt (48)
(ii) (Continued) (ii) (&)

According to the Agreement, the Consideration shall be paid by the REBZ REFHEFTRTIFTANREX

Purchaser by cash in the following manner: i

(a) US$200,000 shall be paid on or before 31 March 2018; (@) 200,000 TR = —N\NF=A
=t+—Hagzaxf:

(b) US$300,000 shall be paid on or before 30 June 2018; (b) 300,000 TR T —NFXA=+
= d-IE-Z N

() US$750,000 shall be paid on or before 30 September 2018; (© 750000X TR T —NFNLA=+
Ha 2RI

(d) US$750,000 shall be paid on or before 31 December 2018; (d) 750,000 TR T —NF+=A
=t+—Hgzaxf:

(e) US$500,000 shall be paid on or before 31 March 2019; (e) 500,000 TR T —NhE=ZA
=+—BsZA T

() US$500,000 shall be paid on or before 30 June 2019; (f) 500,000 TR ZFE—NFANA=T
Ha 2RI

(9 US$500,000 shall be paid on or before 30 September 2019; and ()} 500,000 TR ZE—NFNLA=+
Bzt &

(h) US$500,000 shall be paid on or before 31 December 2019; (h) 500,000 TR =T —NF+=A

=t—RAkZAI X

Notwithstanding the above, the Purchaser has agreed to use his best BELXMM-BEFEREREZABORG
endeavours to pay the Consideration in full to the Group within one year ZHHRA —FARAEEINEZHNRE-

from the date of the Agreement.

Subject to the payments of the Consideration by the Purchaser in full BRFEFSNEZERERAEEERE—YH
and upon the Group having obtained all necessary internal and external T2 NEB R INER R - RIE R AE (BIEHE R
authorisations, consents and approvals from all relevant governmental or MBS E R - BhPI S84 ) 1% sk 2 Tk A
regulatory authorities, agencies or bodies, the date of completion of the BH([EKBB)AZZE—NF+=A=1+—H
Agreement (“Completion Date") is 31 December 2019 or fifth days after the LEHFEHEINREEFREAZCER

payment of the Consideration in full.

At completion, the Group and the Purchaser shall execute an assignment of R RNEB KRB BHEITRKERR - HE
the Receivables, relevant loan agreements and Share Pledge. Bl RO ER 2 EE-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE

. == ﬁ
22. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22. BWENR(A)
Notes (Continued) B sk ()
(ii) (Continued) (if) (&)
On 20 March 2018, the Group received the first instalment of US$200,000 N\_E-\F=ZR=+H AEEFEH KT
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,564,000) from the Purchaser. 2 — HAZ(I8200,000% 7T (48 & 7 £91,564,0007%%
JT) e
Management has performed an impairment assessment on the Receivables EEEEET—ER=_ZE—tF+tZA=1+—
as at 31 December 2017. Taking into consideration of the probability of H 2 FE MR IR )R (E AT fik o B 45 W 2 Se PR A9 7T
the completion of the Agreement, management estimates the recoverable BRIt — Ot E B B B A 5 WUR R ) T U [E]
amount of the Receivables would be approximately HK$16,220,000. The S EEH 516,220,000 70 c AEEE R A FERE
Group has recognised a reversal of provision for impairment loss on the 1 W R R 2 Rk 1 IS 98 13 4 7 [B1 6 816,220,000
Receivables amounting to HK$16,220,000 for the year, which represented P& TT 9 Il F28,794,0007%8 7T K FE UL B 3K 2 R (B 65
by reversal of provision for impairment loss on loan receivables and trade BB B Bl }7,426,0007 TTHY UL E 5 R R 2
receivables of HK$8,794,000 and HK$7,426,000 respectively. BEEERERBRE-
(iii) Allowance for doubtful debts (iii) RIREH
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
At beginning of year RE 59,507 109,515
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B8 B B A 7 - (89,163)
Allowance for impairment loss VRN SEE A - 39,155
Reversal of impairment loss on loan receivables & [Bl FEU & 5K 2 B B 5 18 (8,794) -
At the end of year RER 50,713 59,507
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BB IR R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

23. DEFERRED TAXATION 23. EERHIE
The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) LT RASERAFEBRRNEZRLERIE
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the year: BE/ (BBE)ARAEE
Fair value Provision
adjustment  Revaluation forPRC  Accelerated
onintangible of investment  withholding tax Provision
asset properties tax  depreciation and others Total
BYEE G if:d

NTERE REWMRER  EORER RERE BEREM @t

HK'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TER TEn TEn TEn Thn

At 1 January 2016 RZF-RE-A-H (10,143) (24379) (5794) (682) 2063 (38735)

Exchange adjustments BEHEE () 1,043 - 3 (57) 1013

Credit (charge) to profit or loss for the year — RAEEBETA (11B) 1,670 (5485) (412 - 6928 2701
At 31 December 2016 RIE-1%

+-A=1+-H (8478) (28821) (6,206) (650) 9,134 (35,021)

Exchange adjustments EHEE (61) (1216) - - 59 (1218)

Credit (charge) to profit or loss for the year ~ RAEEBEE A (%) 1677 2613 - - (2,755) 1,535
At 31 December 2017 RIF-t%

tZA=t-H (6862) (27424) (6.206) (650) 6438 (34,704)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BB IR R M AL ()

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—

23.

T tE+ZASH—AILER

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

IEFERE ()

AT 2 MAB B ELIREHIAESR DT
T

2017 2016

—E—+F —E-RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FET

Deferred tax assets R IBE E 6,438 9,134
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHIEAR (41,142) (44,155)
(34,704) (35,021)

At 31 December 2017, the Group had unrecognised tax losses of
HK$121,422,000 (2016: HKS111,678,000) available for offset against
future profits due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

Included in the unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$12,029,000
(2016: HKS$12,027,000) that will expire between 2033 and 2036
(2016: expire between 2032 and 2035). Other tax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax, withholding
tax at 10% is imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits
earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has been provided for in full in respect of undistributed
profits retained by PRC entities in the consolidated financial
statements.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had deductible temporary
differences of HK$29,506,000 (2016: HK$28,824,000). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.

RZE—tF+ZA=+—H BARKREEE
AR R F ROR - AR B R R ERTIEE
$8121,422,000/ 70 (ZZF —734F 111,678,000
P& 7T ) AT ARG S AR 2R s A e

RERRBEEEEEER _E==FF2_
E=RER(ZE—RE: ZE=_"F&F
TR FRHEER)EmEETE12,029000% T
T — X4 112,027,000 7T ) o H b FE A E
BA R EE

REFECXRMAERE A-FTN\F—A
— B AR BPH B A B BRER Y A AT B K A
P BB EAMI0%TEINN - EFEERBRE W
AR IENBRNEEREC 28N HER
TR i o

R-ZTE—+FE+_A=+—HB KA£EAMN
T B 258 529,506,00058 7T ( ZFE— /N
28,824,000/ 70 ) ° AR N A A e ER A &)
AR TR EENERR G R ERA
AR R 2 ERRAREEHIEEE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

24. INVENTORIES 24, FE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Raw materials JR# 55,406 45,892
Work in progress TR 42,397 58,756
Finished goods 2K 160,625 162,447
258,428 267,095
25. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25, BUWESER BREERAEMENK
MR

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FAT
Trade and bills receivables e E 5 8RR K e I R 15 379,874 442,790
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RERE (147,778) (145,157)
232,096 297,633
Other receivables E b JE BGRIR 67,030 52,259

Total trade, bills and other receivables EWE SR EWRE X
H b & W R IE 42 5 299,126 349,892

AEEGETRESEFPNEERNTY/60H
E120H -RNER BURESERAREREE
(MBEREBEFR)ZEZAHMZIINK

The Group allows an average credit period of 60 to 120 days to its
trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills
receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts, presented based

on the invoice date at the end of the year:

BAFMT :

2017 2016

S5 —ERE

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FHT THT

0 - 30 days 0%Z30H 157,804 133,369
31 -90 days 31290H 45,542 117,738
91 - 180 days 912 180H 21,171 33,368
More than 180 days tBi@180H 7,579 13,158
232,096 297,633
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R ENEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—

25.

T—t+F+_A=+—HILFE

TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, 75% (2016: 67%) of the
trade and bills receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
are due from diversified customers with no recent default payment
history.

Included in the Group's trade and bills receivable balance are
debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$56,970,000
(2016: HK$96,648,000) which was past due at the end of the
reporting period but for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss because management believes that the
fundamental credit quality of the relevant customers has not
deteriorated.

25.

FEWE 5 RN BRRER A EK
R (])

HE—Z—+&+-_A=+—HIL&EE"
75% ( ZF— 74 1 67%) R AR B HR I R R (B FE
I B S8R K JEUR = B & P 3 6 K
FNECEE -

TEERWE ZEFRREBREELEHEBER
HEHRE mH - AR 488 556,970,000/ 7T
TET X5 196,648,000/ 7T ) HY FE UK BR FX
HHRNEEERAERAEFPNELREEE
WAL - BN BN B LR E S 1B 1
e

Aging of trade and bills receivables which are past due but not EEEERRENERE SHERREREE
impaired: R BRECZA T -

2017 2016

—E—tF ZE-REF

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FHET FAT

Less than 3 months past due wmEI DR =1 A 36,680 57,984

3 to 6 months past due mEI=ZNEA 8,650 17,313

More than 6 months past due B HIZ A <8 A 11,640 21,351

56,970 96,648
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

25. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. BUWESZRX BUEBEREMER
(Continued) FIE (#F)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts: REEHEES:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FATT
Balance at beginning of the year FHEE 145,157 102,293
Impairment loss recognised BEHERBEEE 20,273 42,484
Reversal of impairment loss 2 B MERRR (B S B R |
previously recognised (23,405) -
Bad debt written off AR aH (876) (2452)
Exchange realignment [E WA 6,629 2,832
Balance at the end of the year FRE 147,778 145,157

The Group recognised impairment loss based on the accounting
policy stated in Note 4(n)(iii). The allowance for doubtful debts
at the end of the reporting period represents allowance on
individually impaired trade and bills receivables with an aggregate
balance of HK$147,778,000 (2016: HK$145,157,000), which have
been outstanding for more than one year. Management considered
they are unlikely to be collected. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

Included in trade and bills receivables, as at 31 December 2017,
the Group had trade receivables due from the Debtors (as
stated in note 22) with gross amount of HK$39,273,000 (2016:
HK$56,459,000) of which the amount had been fully impaired
during the year ended 31 December 2016. Refer to note 22 (ii) for
details.
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7N 2 B AR 15 M 2 4(n) (i) BT 31 B9 & 51 B SR HE 3R
BEBBE RNBEHRRERERZRE
B FE U B 5 BR 3 I B I ZE R A R E B A

4T 4R B4 R147,778,00008 7T ( ZF — N4

145,157,000/ ) " BB B —F - BEE
REZEEFREE TS ERD - REEH
WESZEEBFEEEEWERR-

BEREWREZERREREEFR R
—tF+tZA=t+—HB AEEEWED
AR EUNE 5 BRF (AN sE22pT 2l ) 4258 3=
39,273,000 7T ( =& — 7N F © 56,459,000/
) EFZeBEREBE_ST—AF+=
A=+—BLtFERERE -FHEH2HN
FH22(i0) °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

DR ETEINEENE Y

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

BH=E

26.

—EtF+A=1t—HILFE

BOND RECEIVABLES

On 12 January 2015, the Group entered into bond subscription
agreement with National United Resources Holdings Limited
("NUR"), a company with its shares listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Pursuant to the subscription agreement,
the Company conditionally agreed to subscribe for the bonds
to be issued by NUR (2015 Bond") in the principal amount of
HK$80,000,000 for a term of one year with a coupon rate of 6%
per annum, payable quarterly in arrears. The Company may, (i)
on or after 30 September 2015 serving at least two days' prior
written notice to NUR, request NUR to redeem HK$20,000,000 of
the 2015 Bond at 100% of its principal amount; and (i) on or after

1 January 2016 serving at least four days’ prior written notice
to NUR, request NUR to redeem HK$30,000,000 of the 2015 Bond
at 100% of its principal amount. Unless previously redeemed
or cancelled, NUR shall redeem the 2015 Bond at 100% of its
principal amount together with any accrued interest and unpaid
interest calculated up to (and including) the maturity date. The
subscription was completed in April 2015. HK$20,000,000 of 2015
Bond was redeemed during the year ended 31 December 2015, the
remaining balance of HK$60,000,000 was fully repaid during the

26.

B EWRE

RW-ZE—HFE—A+=-H" NEIEE@%
BeaBERERERAR ([AXRBEER]
HEHBROREBRAMERETHAG)ELES
REWZ - REREDE ~EEC BN
[6 Z R B A & 58 A80,000,0000 7T~ — F Hi
MEREZE F; EREZNEEF B E B

HEXREAS ﬁ?ﬁi‘”Zﬁ%(f:i—ﬁi
Exl) AKHEAL: VR ZTE—RFNA
7+EI‘XLM§|“1I%H#(:\ REHT DM

AHE@MBEN BRERBEERAESR
% %3 7 100%8& [2120,000,0008 T2 —E—FH

FESH MR ZE—RE—A+—B=MU
BEBEREA ﬁ?‘% LR RHEMER

M EXREREEERUNESASEE Z2100%
FEE130,0000008 T2 —E—RAFESF B2
AIEEDSEN BREEEREZENE
HREBRIASEI0NZ —E—AFEEUNR
HE (R E EEMSTmARSHF

Bo-ZRBEEORN _ZE—HFNAZEK-
200000008 L2 —E—AFEBEHDRESE

year ended 31 December 2016. ZTE-RAFTZA=T—HILFEEDR" &
T60,0000008 TERBE_T—NF+=
A=+—BLFEEHEER-
The movement of bond receivables is set out below: BHFERFIENZEEETWT
2017 2016
—E—tfF —E—RF
HKS$'000 HKS'000
FET FHET
As at beginning of year REH - 59,971
Repayment settlement during the year FRNERGEE - (60,000)
Effective interest income credited to BEEFAEBZMERFBMA
profit or loss - 1,282
Coupon interest received BREmEF B - (1,253)
As at end of year RER - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

27.

28.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks to secure short-
term bank borrowings granted to the Group (note 44). The deposits
carry fixed interest rates ranged from 0.85% to 1.75% (2016: 0.3%
to 1.65%) per annum. The pledged bank deposits will be released
upon the settlement of short-term bank borrowings.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash of the Group comprise bank balances and
cash held and short-term bank deposits with original maturity
of three months or less. The bank balance are interest bearing
at floating interest rate and short-term bank deposits carry fixed
interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.77% (2016: 0.3% to 2.35%)
per annum.

As at 31 December 2017, cash and bank balances denominated
in RMB amounted to approximately HK$5,710,000 (2016:
approximately HK$21,643,000). RMB is not freely convertible into
foreign currencies in the PRC. Under the PRC's Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement and Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.
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27.

28.

EEFRTER

REFEERANEEERNEHETEER
MR FRITHFR (KIsE44) - ZEFR
BN F085EER175E (T E—NF:03EE
1652 ) 2 MM EEFFEG L - SIEFIRTT
GHENEERITEESEERRR -

RITHEERRS

AEENRTEGELBESBEMBRITE
GERESURRTR=ZEAx PR =1 A
BIHM R BRIRITIE R o RIT AT IR IF B FI
B MEHRTHERIEN T001EE0.77E

—E—RF03EER235E)NETFR X
B

RZBE—+E+-A=+—8 UAR®E:
EMRE RIBITHETL A57100008 7T (=
T — N4 #921,643,00006 7T ) ° A R FE B
BEEAWTEEE B K RAINE - RIEH R
HNE B IR S A 45 TE - ETE R (S IEE IR A8
EAREATRBRERTHLBVARE R
SIS BA JE SINIE E 75 o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BB IR R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

29. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 29. FTHEABFHENEE
Included in assets classified as held for sale as at 31 December RZE—tF+ZA=+—H B8ERSE
2017, which were presented separately in the consolidated BEELNENEE (REHZHEAMFEHRE
statement of financial position at that date, are: DHEEF T
HK$’000
FHET
Investment properties (note 17) wEWE (HW&E17) 97,396
The Group entered into sales and purchase agreements during the AEEBE_ZT—+tF+_A=+—H1
year ended 31 December 2017 to dispose of certain investment FEFLBEE i - AR(E97,396,000% 7T H
properties to independent third parties with a consideration EETREMETBEIUE =7 ZERKEY
of HK$97,396,000. The investment properties, which had been ¥ (E2ZEREREUFTEERATFE)HED
fair valued with reference to the disposal considerations, were BABELEMNEEMN —_T—+F+ A
classified as assets held for sale and presented separately in the =T -AZEEUBRARKRSRET -
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017.
The directors expect this disposal transaction will be completed EEHHLHERSHERMERLERES
within 6 months from the end of the reporting period. &l A W FERX ©
30. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 300 BENESER BNEERAEMENS
MIE
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE-REF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET T
Trade payables ERE SRR 326,036 424,264
Bills payables ANES 314 11,089
Other payables and accruals (note) HihEMRENLESTEB (M) 184,051 140,238
510,401 575,591
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

30. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. EFRESZERIR ENEBERHEMES

(Continued) MIE (&)
The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills payables, RBERAR BENEIERRENZERZE
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting SHEMZFHRE T -
periods:
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-REF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FAE T
0 - 30 days 0£30H 209,629 239,087
31 - 90 days 31290H 42,877 67,798
91 - 360 days 912360H 67,560 121,082
More than 360 days B E360H 6,284 7,386
326,350 435,353
The average credit period for purchases of goods is 90 days. BEEEMMTHEERA0A -
Note:  An amount due to a director of HK$13,308,000 (2016: HK$14,254,000) which MisE: H AT RIRBE—Z & EF5KIH13,308,000
was included in other payable which term is unsecured, interest free and BT (ZF — X4 1 14,254,000%8 70 ) * WRIE A
repayable on demand. EIRF 2B ERREREE-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

31. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 31. ROUKHMEER
2017 2016
—E-+tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FTET FHET
Bank loans RITER 278,286 328,246
Other loans H i & 5% 114,867 63,475
393,153 391,721
Analysed as: DR
Secured BHEM 281,015 308,683
Unsecured A 112,138 83,038
393,153 391,721
Carrying amount repayable: AR TS EEEEREE
On demand or within one year RERFEN—FRN 347,455 330,712
In more than one year but not more than R —FETZHNMF
two years 1,131 1,288
348,586 332,000
Carrying amount of bank loans that contain 3 A AR B KB E KR ERIT
a repayment on demand clause BEXHEREE 44,567 59,721
393,153 391,721
Less: Amount due within one year shown BRRBEEETNIRN—FA
under current liabilities BB FIR (392,022) (390,433)
Amount due after one year —F i B HFIE 1,131 1,288

The range of the effective interest rates on the Group's bank and

other borrowings are as follows:

REBRITRAEMEENERN X&EE N
T

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—NF

Variable interest rate borrowings

2.16% - 13.95% 1.90% — 12.00%

The security of bank borrowings is set out in note 44.

RITREE EIR SN 44 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R ENEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—

32.

T—t+F+_A=+—HILFE

DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION

The Group have defined benefit pension plan, covering
substantially all of its qualified employees in India. The amounts
of employee benefit obligation recognised in the statement of
financial position represent the present values of the unfunded
obligation.

The defined benefit obligation was determined based on actuarial
valuation performed by Charan Gupta Consultants PVT LTD, an
independent actuary, whose registered office is located at B-40,
Sector-52, Noida-201 307.U.P, using the projected unit credit
method.

The components of net benefit expenses in profit or loss and the
amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are
summarised as follows:

32.

REBAMEE

Kﬁl*ﬁaﬁmﬁmﬂ RIKE T8 R EB A
IRHENGEREER - RP BN KRER
MEBRNETSREAPREENHRE

AERBINEEDHREBZBEMCharan
Gupta Consultants PVT LTDER A TERHE ({5
BEXETHNRBEMMEEE - Charan Gupta
Consultants PVT LTDAY 7 it #% =& Bz iz 52 B-40,
Sector-52, Noida-201 307.U.P. °

RIBEIE TEVF RN R AR E D A K& E
MHEARRPEROSEBARLAT :

(@)  The provisions for defined benefit obligation recognised in (@ REaUBRAXERNATENE
the consolidated statement of financial position are shown R BERT
as follows:
2017 2016
ZE—tF —T—RF
HKS$’'000 HK$'000
FERT T
Present value of unfunded obligation REREEHIRE 103 -
Portion classified as current liabilities SERRBEENE D - -
Non-current portion SEMBE D 103 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BB IR R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

32. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION (Continued) 32. RERBHNEME(H)
(b)  The movements of the defined benefit obligation are as (b) REBMEENESHHT
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
THET FATT
At beginning of the year REA) - -
Current service costs BV HA AR 75 X 7R 119 -
Interest cost on benefit obligations BNEEBF B AR 4 -
Re-measurement gain recognised in REMEE Y EERE
other comprehensive income ECi e (23) -
Exchange realignment ME 3, R B 3 _
103 -
(0) The net expenses recognised in the consolidated profit or (@) RiFEEERBEROFRISTW
loss are analysed as follows: ™
2017 2016
—E—tHF —ZF—
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FTET T
Current service costs BV HA AR 745 X 7R 119 -
Interest cost on benefit obligations BT ERFE KA 4 -
Net benefit expenses F e F 2 123 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

32. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION (Continued) 32. RERANEME (&)
d HEREE
PR ER

(d) The principal actuarial assumptions used in valuing the
provisions for defined benefit obligation at the end of the

HIK )RR B A
REBRRMT

reporting period are as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tF 2N
% %
Discount rate ALIR & 7.60 N/AZT i F3
Rate of salary increase HeWRE 11.00 N/AAS 3 AR

& ¥ d IR H 57TE 48 ) B 0 7 15 A 40

The average duration of the provision for defined benefits

at the end of the reporting period is as follows: ™
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
Number of employee EBE%E 169 N/A i A
Average past service (years) YRR (F) 1.53 N/AAS 3 F3
Average age (years) FEHEF#R (57) 31.08 N/AZT 35 3
Average remaining working life (years) FH R TIEFE (F) 26.92 N/A-3E
Weighted average duration (years) i FEE (F) 4.40 N/AA 5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

32. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION (Continued) 32. RERBHNEME (&)
()  The quantitative sensitivity analysis of the provisions for (e) MREEHRNATENBENESLH
defined benefits as at the end of the reporting period is as REDTWT
follows:
2017
—E—tF
Decrease in Increase in
provisions for provisions for
Increase in defined benefit Decrease in defined benefit
rate obligation rate obligation
RE RE
BREE B/ANEE
BRE BERD TpE=E B BB
% HK$000 % HK$000
Bk FERT ERalse FTHET
Discount rate AhIR & 0.5 (4) 0.5 4
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based PSR E ST TIRE £ E/RIA W
on a method that extrapolates the impact on the provisions EHMREECREYRHRATREANE
for defined benefits as a result of reasonable changes in key HRZEHEEMETE -

assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

33. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 33. BMEEERE

2017 2016
—E-+tF ZT—RF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FTET FHT

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEFRAEIWA:
Current liabilities mEasE 1,886 1,856
Non-current liabilities FnBEE 7,375 9,186
9,261 11,042
It is the Group's policy to lease certain of its land and buildings AEENREREEREHEHEEET
under finance leases. The average lease term is 10 years. Interest HMEREF - FHEBRROF - FIEREMRSE
rate underlying all obligations under finance leases is fixed at the AENEENEREOBRHERESFSE %
contract date at 5% per annum. These leases have no terms of SHETRBE RGN B REIBE] -

renewal or purchase options and escalation clauses.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

33. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

(Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

33. mEHERAE(8)

Minimum lease payments

Present value of
minimum lease payments

BEREENE BERERERE
2017 2016 2017 2016
gLl of -3 ZTRE “E-tf ZTRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET TER AT
Amounts payable BEBERER—FR
under finance leases within one year [ER #9308 1,955 1,939 1,886 1,856
In more than one year but BBE—FETZHME
not more than two years 1,955 1,939 1,902 1,871
In more than two years but BRMEEIERAE
not more than five years 5,538 5816 5,473 5,706
In more than five years iR E - 1616 - 1,609
9,448 11,310 9,261 11,042
Less: future finance charges W RRBEZH (187) (268) - -
Present value of lease obligations AERERE 9,261 11,042 9,261 11,042
Less: Amount due for settlement within 35 : A —F N B HEE KB
one year (shown under current liabilities) (A EEI&EE TFIR) (1,886) (1,856)
Amount due for settlement after one year R —F % B S EMZE 7,375 9,186
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE_Z—tH+-A=+—HILFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34, BRA&
Number of
shares Amount
BREEE -}
HKS$'000
FAET

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each SFREEIE L E B

Authorised: JETE

At 1 January 2016, 31 December RZE—RF—H—8/"

2016 and 1 January 2017 —E-RF+ZAR=+—H
KZ_Z—+F—H—H 3,000,000,000 300,000

Increase in authorised share capital (note a) ¥ HISAFE R A (M s¥a) 7,000,000,000 700,000

At 31 December 2017 R-E—+F+_A=+—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000

Issued and fully paid: E%ﬁ&@ﬁ :

At 1 January 2016 RZE-—RF—H—H 1,045,862,134 104,586

Issue of shares upon subscription (note b) HREmEITIR G, (M sEb) 86,168,000 8,617

Issue of shares upon placing (note ) E e & M 21T AR (M FEc) 179,500,000 17,950

At 31 December 2016 RZE-—RF+ZA=+—H 1,311,530,134 131,153

Issue of shares upon open offer (note d) NAZEEMEITRG (MFEd) 1,967,295,201 196,729

At 31 December 2017 R_ZE—+tF+-_A=+—H 3,278,825,335 327,882

Note: B 5 -

(@) Pursuant to the ordinary resolution approved by the shareholders on (a) BERRR T —tFAATHEABBHER
15 June 2017, the authorised share capital of the Company increased RERR BB IE R FEHN7,000,000,0000% K 1T E
from HK$300,000,000 divided into 3,000,000,000 ordinary shares to AR - A B89 TE AR 2K £3300,000,000% 7T ©
HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 ordinary shares by the creation #%3,000,000,000% & 3B A% - #8101 221,000,000,00078
of an additional 7,000,000,000 unissued ordinary shares. 7T ' > £10,000,000,000% 3 i A% ©

(b) On 21 January 2016, 48,000,000 shares have been subscribed by the (b) RZB-RE-A-+—B REARNRE
subscriber at the subscription price of HK$0.50 per share. Details of the 48,000,000/% f& 17 - FREE B AT IRAR190.508 7T
subscription are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 21 REFENFBEE RN ARFBERLE TR
January 2016. F-—AZT—HHAER-

On 31 August 2016, 38,168,000 shares have been subscribed by the RZZE—RFNAZ+—H8 REAKRE
subscriber at the subscription price of HK$0.262 per share. Details of the 38,168,000/ iz 15 - REBEE A BRI H0.2627F
subscription are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 31 ToREBFENFBEDHERARRBHE AR
August 2016. T-RNFENA=Z+—BHRERN-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(0)

On 13 January 2016, the Group had completed placing of new shares. A
total of 104,500,000 placing shares had been placed at the placing price of
HK$0.50 per share. Details of the placing are set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 13 January 2016.

On 14 June 2016, the Group had completed placing of new shares. A total of
75,000,000 placing shares had been placed at the placing price of HK$0.40
per share. Details of the placing are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 14 June 2016.

On 19 July 2017, the Group had completed an open offer by issuing
1,967,295,201 ordinary shares at an offer price of HK$0.12. Detail of the open
offer are set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 28 June 2017.

All new shares issued rank pari passu in all respect with the then existing

shares.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

BH=E

35.

—EtF+A=1t—HILFE

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 16 May 2016, the Group entered into an agreement with
a shareholder of Ocean Oasis International Limited (“Ocean
Oasis BVI") to capitalise a debt of US$11.2 million (equivalent
to HK$87,155,000) owed by Ocean Qasis BVI to the Group by
subscribing 8,165 new ordinary shares to be issued by Ocean
Oasis BVI. The transaction was completed on 5 July 2016 and the
Group's shareholding of Ocean Qasis BVI increased from 11% to
51%. Since then, Ocean Oasis BVI became a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group. Ocean Oasis BVl and its subsidiaries,
Ocean Qasis International Limited and My HD Media FZ LLC
("MyHD"), limited companies incorporated in United Arab Emirates,
engaged in the business of provision of Direct-to-Home services
for satellite television broadcasting in 22 countries in Middle East,
Mediterranean and Africa ("MEMA”"). The directors considered
that the subscription would enhance the chance for the Group
to recoup its investments in MyHD by (i) strengthening MyHD's
financial viability by reducing its debt burden; and (ii) enabling the
Group to consolidate its control over MyHD, in particular its future
development strategies. In addition, the subscription would also
provide a strategic platform for the Group to explore and develop
the market of set top boxes and other digital media equipment
in MEMA, which is in line with the Group's strategy to continue
investing resources for the transformation from an integrated
device designer and manufacturer to a multimedia platform owner.

35.

EBEH

RZE—RNFRATAA  AEEEOcean
Oasis International Limited ([Ocean Oasis
BVIDK—R2RRET L — 0% ERRE
8,165 Ocean Oasis BVIi 31T R T & @AY -
#Ocean Oasis BVIEE R NEE M — £ A #
11,200,0002 7T, ( #H& 787,155,000 7T ) #) f&
BERE-ZRHGN_E—A"FLARHER
B B AR E B H Ocean Oasis BVIFIILHEH 119%1%
Z51% ° 1% » Ocean Oasis BVIAK & AN 5 B 3F
2 & 1B A7) > Ocean Oasis BVIRHH B A
7] ~ Ocean Oasis International Limited &2 My HD
Media FZ LLC ([MyHD J) (¥9& 5B hz {58k
AERBFMHAZIZAR)  RAHRE - HHE
il R IEM (TMEMA 1) 22K IR E B A
EHEEGREERE - EFERA RESHE
185 3 (i) 7 B L (E 7% B & 38 58 MyH DAY B 7% 7]
T R)E AR EZEEHEMyHDHE R -
LHERHEAKERERFR EoANEBE RO H
FAMyHDIZ & o 51 - REESZTEINE &
AEBRBERERMMEMARKIES K E4h
YTHEESENTSREBB TS HHHE
AEBEAHENRBRITERBEZEER
ZHBTamAEMEERANERNE R
7?&0
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE_Z—tH+A=+—RHILFE

35. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 35. EKEH (&)

Details of fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired s ARl EERBEN A TESFBR

were as follows: Nk
HKS$'000
FAT
Property, plant and equipment M WE REE 974
Inventories FE 3,169
Trade, bills and other receivables FEUE 5 BRIX - B IR R R I EL {th B R IR 11,577
Bank balances and cash WITHGFTRIAS 8,759
Trade and other payables FE T B 5 AR SR 1% B A JE A 5K IE (132,677)
Amount due to shareholders FE - IR B Tk T8 (138,364)
Net liabilities acquired Frik s & E 55 (246,562)
Non-controlling interests FE1E R A 121,558
Net identified liabilities acquired Frik B ] 34 Bl B B F 58 (125,004)
Goodwill on acquisition LAt fi ey g 125,004
Total consideration BRE -

Satisfied by: LALAT A= 41
Available-for-sale investments* AP ERE” -
Loan receivables capitalised* BE RN 2 EUE K> -
* The original amount of the available-for-sale investments and loan * T{ﬁﬁ%§x§&5§${t2ﬁuk% AR &5
receivables capitalised were HK$40,573,000 and HK$87,155,000 respectively, 5 Bl £40,573,0007% 7T 87,155,000/ IT * %2 & &
which were fully impaired as at 31 December 2015 and date of acquisition. R _ZE-—AF+TA=+—HRKEBHE
TEERME
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B IR R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

35. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries was as follows:

EBE o (&)

WENRBRARMNE S MRS EEYNRAF
BEAOMMT

HKS$'000
FAET
Cash and cash equivalents acquired PERECZHEeRREEEYD 8,759
Cash and cash equivalents paid EXHzReRREEED -
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents ReRRSFEMRAFRE 8,759

Since the acquisition date, Ocean Oasis BVI and its subsidiaries had
contributed HK$11,586,000 and HK$87,065,000 to Group's revenue
and loss for the year ended 31 December 2016. If the acquisition
had occurred on 1 January 2016, Group revenue and loss would
have been HK$1,812,890,000 and HK$165,985,000 respectively for
the year ended 31 December 2016. This pro forma information is
for illustrative purpose only and is not necessarily an indication
of revenue and results of operations of the group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 January 2016, nor is it intended to be a projection of future
performance.

The goodwill arose from the acquisition of Ocean Oasis BVI and
its subsidiaries represented future prospect of MyHD and synergy
effect of the newly acquired business with the existing set top
boxes and other digital media equipment business.

B Y& B H - Ocean Oasis BVIR E B A 7
EMAKEEE T - "F+=-A=+H
IEFER W R BEEEN1,586000% 7T &
87,065,000/ Lo B EHEE R T — <
F-—A—BBE XEBHE_ZT - F
TZA=THELEFEREREBERD A
1,812,890,0007% 7T M 165,985,000/ JT © % 5 %
BERMEERAA  WIHEAMBKEEIED
RZZE—RF-—A—HEK AEBEER
BER W REEXEECEER TEREER
RIRFIF 2 T8

B Y BE Ocean Oasis BVIN BB A A FTEE
775 2 T BAMyHDR) R 3R B 5 DA R 373 Uk B8
XS AERBS N EMESTHEEREED
T 2= A 9 153 [5) 38 e o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. HEMBAT
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group @ BET—tFT-A=t+—HILF
disposed of the entire equity interest in Into-Ad. Company B AEBECHEEREER QAN
Limited. The net assets of Into-Ad. Company Limited at the ER AL EESEBRATAE
date of disposal were as follows: ERHRFEENT
HK$'000
FHERT
Property, plant and equipment W BB REE 872
Trade receivables JEWE 5 BRI 439
Cash and bank balance Re RBTHET 145
Trade payables ETE SRR (601)
Other payables and accruals H e IE R ERTIE E (1,669)
Tax payable FET R I8 (24)
Net liability disposed of T EMFEEaE (838)
Releases of statutory reserve BOMmEFE (10)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries included in HEMBRAMNKEBERERA
profit or loss 848
Total consideration (B -
Net cash outflow arising on disposal HEEENRESRL FHE
Cash consideration ReRE -
Bank balance and cash disposed of FTHEHRITEFRRS 145
145
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. HEMBLAR (&)

(o)  During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group (b) BEZZ—+F+-A=+—HILHF
disposed of the entire equity interest in Proteam Consulting B -ASEEHESHIEEERD
Company Limited. The net assets of Proteam Consulting ERARN MR AR - FHIIE
Company Limited at the date of disposal were as follows: EERGBERARNHEBBREE

ENT:
HK$'000
FHE T

Prepayment, deposits and other receivables FENFIE 5Te REMEWKFIE 1,012
Bank balances and cash WITHF RS 9
Net assets disposed of FTERFEE 1,021
Releases of statutory reserve BEUEERE (16)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries included in FFABERNEENEARMNER

profit or loss (1,005)
Total consideration BmRE -
Net cash outflow arising on disposal HEEEMB SR FEH
Cash consideration REeRE -
Bank balance and cash disposed of FrHERITEF IS 9

9
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

BH=E

37.

—EtF+A=1t—HILFE

OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases during the

37. MEMREE
AEBEEREBEA

FRERKLEHEXNNRERENE:

year:
2017 2016

—E—tHF —E—

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHE T

Premises EE 4,038 3,823

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as

RBERAR AEBERBETITFHELEH
g pHEFEAN T HB I IHRRE
EEEFIEAEDNT

follows:

2017 2016
- —E-R

HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAET
Within one year —F K 1,373 538
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_FE2ENF (BREEEMSE) 761 62
2,134 600
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE

37. OPERATING LEASES (Continued) 37.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$11,621,000
(2016: HK$11,505,000) with negligible outgoings. All of the
investment properties held have committed tenants for the next
one to five years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

MERE (&)
AEEESEHAA

FRERIAYERS WA A11,621,0008 7T
(ZZ — 7<% : 11,505,000/ 70 ) » 3% B J5
TREB-FIEHPRENERRKR—ZERF

ERHNEE-

R|ERR AEEDSHERTONARKE

ERESREMDT -

2017 2016

—E—+F —E-RF

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET FHET

Within one year —F R 6,651 3,887
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_FEELF (BEEEME) 6,880 2,924
Over five years HBiRAF 43 _
13,574 6,811
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

38. NOTES SUPPORTING CASH FLOW STATEMENT 38. RERERZIIFME

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) BHERBSEEYWHUTHER:
2017 2016
—E-tF —T—RF
HKS$’'000 HK$'000
FERT T
Cash available on demand RERARRE® 132,418 76,065
Significant non-cash transactions are B AR SR FUT :
as follows:
Investment activities KEZE
Transfer from investment propertiesto B EMEHEBREHIELEEE
assets held for sale 97,396 -
(b)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) BRETBELENAEEYHIRKR:
activities:
Bank and other Obligations under
borrowings finance leases
RITRHEMEER RERERE
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
(note 31) (note 33)
(P &E 31) (M=t 33)
At 1 January 2017 RZFE—+tF—H—H 391,721 11,042
Changes from cash flows: REReREZEH:
Proceeds from new bank loans FERITERMENIE 493,073 -
Repayment of bank loans BEERITER (499,066) -
Repayment of obligations under EEmEMEEAE
finance leases - (1,955)
Exchange adjustments fE A& 7,425 174
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tF+-_A=+—H 393,153 9,261
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE—

39.

40.

=

tEFE+_A=+—RHILFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39. EXERER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be REBEBHERNUBRREAEE I UFE
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return e BABCERRESERIEARED
to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity o AEENBEERIEHE LFELRRIFDT
balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from o
prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes REBEREBRIEGR (BERHE
the borrowings disclosed in note 31, equity reserves attributable FIRBENEE) RADAHEE ARG ER
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and FE (BEEBTRAREBREBARRE
various reserves and retained profits. i Al ) e
The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a RABIESZTF R E ARG T’Eﬁ'ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ’]
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company — by ARBEEFERERKA R EEL
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class RIEZRIEEMNER - RIFESHES ZF%%
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group EEBIRMNBETRETHNERKERIR
will balance its overall capital structure through new share issues BEBTHEBREBERERE-
and the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. MHEARER
(@) Categories of financial assets and financial (a) tREERSRAENER
liabilities
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
Financial assets TRMEE
Loans and receivables (including B3N e R
cash and cash equivalents) (& ﬁﬁﬁ&fﬁ ZEW) 458,552 492,340
Financial liabilities cRAE
Amortised cost A E BN 912,815 978,354
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 40. MBEEBRERE (K)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HERBREEEERBEX
The Group’s major financial risk management include AEENEFENBRERREREDIEE
trade, bills and other receivables, loan receivables, loan WE SRR UL IR K Wk
to an associate, amount due from an associate, pledged B BRER GT7—HEERA®
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade, bills and EX-ER—HEBELITNFTIE B
other payables, obligation under finance leases and BERRTER ROTEFRRES B
bank and other borrowings. Details of these financial risk NEB SR BNERREMEMNK
management are disclosed in respective notes. The risks 18~ B & M E A A R ERTT R A AR
associated with these financial risk management and the B -ZEUBRAREENFBENIEH
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. B 542 B8 o TS SO E 1) B R 55 B 7S R B
The management manages and monitors these exposures EEBEMNER RAAEERZSE
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a R EEEERENEEZERE
timely and effective manner. B - AR R RO R BUE & 8
ik
Market risk 7745 2] [
(i) Currency risk (i) B R
The Company's subsidiaries have foreign currency ERAR QT M B T #EITI
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to e B & - oS 5 (3 N E R
foreign exchange risk. B o
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign RBEBRR NEELAIE
currency (as in relation to the functional currency of (HEREHEEEERNEE
the relevant group entities) denominated monetary EmME)stENEBEERE
assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the BEEMWREAABERT:

reporting period are as follows:

Assets Liabilities
BE 8

2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-t§ ZE-RF CZE-t§ T RF%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER AT TET FET
Renminbi ("RMB") AREB(TARE]) 475 579 28,519 61,855
usb ey 36,271 40,545 205,103 185,195
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BB R R ML ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
+FE+ZR=+—HILFE

HE—

40.

=

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 40. MBEEBRERE (K)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HERBREEBZERBEE (&)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) e E b (&)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) (i) EER (8)
Sensitivity analysis PRRE ST
The Group is mainly exposed to USD and RMB AEBEFZEHHEEEEEE
relative to the functional currency of the relevant BHIREEE (225 R/A
group entities, which are mainly RMB and USD RERET)BEANETRA
respectively. The Group does not have a formal R BB o 8 AR S B30 /% 1
foreign currency hedging policy. But management A HMNEE R B Efif‘é
monitors the Group's foreign currency exposure W”ﬁﬁlﬁ’]%[ﬂ I A TE
and enters into forward contracts when movements B R Af@f‘ﬁuf%ﬁlﬂ-r
in the exchange rates are outside management's nTZZi/Hﬂ/\?@ LA B 1 B 2 @
expected range in order to minimise the exchange i o
rate risk.
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity TRANAEEGREEEERE
to a 5% increase and decrease in functional Mg EERETRARE L7
currency of respective group entities against KT 5% H) 8 RK o 5%4 P
USD and RMB. 5% is the sensitivity rate used and KANGRE RREBEEY
represents management’s assessment of the SMEBIE R AT RE A T ’":@Wﬁf”ﬁ
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange B ET Al o GURRJE 9 AT R R B
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes both USD ?Eﬁf\iﬁiﬁﬁﬂilf/(%m&/\ﬁﬁ%
and RMB monetary assets and liabilities at the end JIENEBEERABE - TX
of the reporting period. A negative number below FIrBEEETRARE R
indicates an increase in loss where USD and RMB e E M EFswlk < EEIE
strengthen 5% against the functional currency. me=RETRARERINEE
For a 5% weakening of USD and RMB against the BT 5% - IRl 8 %TZF$
functional currency, there would be an equal and EEBEEERERARTE-
opposite impact on the loss for the year.
2017 2016
—E-+tF —ZT—RF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
THET T
Increase in loss for the year: REZEEE N :
- RMB — AR (1,049) (2,292)
- UsD = (8,515) (5424)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate loan to an associate, loan
receivables and pledged bank deposits set out in
notes 20, 22 and 27.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances and
bank and other borrowings as set out in notes 28
and 31 respectively. It is the Group's policy to keep
the majority of balances and borrowings at floating
rate of interest so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy in relation to interest rate risk. The
directors of the Company monitor the exposure
on an ongoing basis and will consider hedging
significant interest rate risk should the need arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of LIBOR arising
from the Group’s USD borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The bank balances of the Group carry floating-rates
of interest and have exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk. The directors of the Company consider the
exposure is insignificant and therefore no sensitivity
analysis is presented.
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(b)

BEEREEREREGE (&)

TS ER (&)

(i)
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e Bt3720 ~ 22 27 P &
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REE TS BIE M 28 &31F7
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) 2 @ B o

7R 5% [ 3R By X 4 A 6 <R L e D
R EA M EEREE - AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE_Z—tHF+A=T—RHIFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

40.

MEERER (&)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b)) HMEERKREEEEREE (&)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) AR (E)
(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued) (ii) xR (&)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate bank and other borrowings.
The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
liabilities outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year. A

BREDH (B)

T XBURE DT ERE B IRIT
&Eﬁtﬁgﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂfﬂk

c Z M IO REB R E HIRFT
/7—\5'5/511\@1 CHAEEFERE
EFmEL o SoEE B R
HRNEDE (EEREY

50 basis point change is used and represents FIERAIEABEEF MIEL K
management’s assessment of the reasonably ERE
possible change in interest rates.
A summary of the Group's monetary liabilities at RBEHR AEEEEE
the end of the reporting period that carried variable BESMMT
interest rate is as follows:
Note: B 5
2017 2016
S G
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Liabilities BE 393,153 391,721
Based on the above summary, if interest rates had R HR B 2 - i F R 38 SO

been 50 basis points higher or lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's loss for
the year ended 31 December 2017 would increase

SOfE 2 - 1 B A H At 7 4 A
=T AAEEAE"T
—tE+—A=+—ALEE

or decrease by HK$1,520,000 (2016: HK$1,469,000). E’UJE??EAiDDjZ?ﬁZQ\ 1,520,000
BT (ZF — 754 11,469,000
BT e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at
31 December 2017 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.
In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the
Group has delegated a team for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. During the year ended
31 December 2017, impairment losses of HKS$20,273,000
(2016: HK$42,484,000) had been made for the long
outstanding customers, representing the full irrecoverable
amount of those customers. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group's credit risk in other
debts is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.

The Group has concentration of credit risk in respect of loan
receivables. As at 31 December 2017, the loan receivables
were mainly provided to several overseas customers who
have long business relationship with the Group. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, no impairment losses had
been made for the loan receivables (2016: HK$39,155,000).
The management of the Group continuously monitors
the level of exposure to ensure that follow up actions and
collection actions are taken promptly to lower exposure.
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EFfAHNEAEERREESED
BREMEENHF A REETE
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EETEER EEHZAEMER
T2 AREREREUR # 17 B) Uk B 280 A
B b AEERRE B RBT
FIEERE S EBE AR S5E A
FER BN A Uk Bl & 38R R SR (E i
B-Hz2—F—+F+-_A=+—H
IEFER RERBREBEEPIELD
B B8 &20,273,00088 7T (ZZE—X
F 1424840008 70) HERZEE
PRz lEsIE - sitms -
RAABEERBAEENEMERE
BEEEE KERE -

RREFTEREERIENRT &
AEENRBHESEERBRAER-

AEBREKERBYETREER
e —_T—+tE+_A=+—8"
ERERDEELTHRAEEZH
ERHESBENIBDEIETS B
E-T—+FF+_A=+—HLEFE
W BES W EREL 2 REFE
(ZZF— N4 :39,155000/8 7T ) ° A&
EEEERFEERRERKTE AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRI R M AL ()

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group is also exposed to concentration of credit
risk through its loan to an associate and amount due
from an associate. Because of the Group’s involvement
in the management of the associate, the Group is in a
position to monitor its financial performance. Accordingly,
management believes that the Group’s exposure in this
regard is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 4% (2016:
14%) and 12% (2016: 45%) of the total trade and bills
receivables was due from the Group's largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively. The directors of
the Company considered that the receivable balance from
these customers do not represent a significant credit risk
based on past collection experience and no bad debts have
been recognised against trade and bills receivables due
from these customers. Other than that, the Group has no
other significant concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

40.

MEEREE (&)

(b)

BREABEEZBEEREE (&)

=FEmEE (%)

AEBE TR T —HEEQRFHNER
Ko JFE W — Pl Bt '8 /1 B 80 SR IE T [ Y &
REERR - BRAEES RZHE
NRINEE AN E A ERE
KE-RHI EEEMREAKREL
EH R RERE KERE -

AREBERE SERMERZEEE
MEREERK A4% ( T —NF:
14% ) }12% ( ZF —RF 145%) * Jh
DRREAEENEREFPMAERE
F-ARREERE BEATIE
KE EWZERF R EIRGIEL #
WS RN EE R - B2k R R Z
ERFPHERE SR ERE R
RATTE IR o Bt 2 Hh > AN @ I 4
HhEREREERR-

R EEER

REBERDESERHE  NEHEE
EREREEERBRAKTINES
MEEEEY UBNAKEEER
BRNRSRENBNTE -

TRFANAEEFTESRABNF
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40.

(b)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 40. HERERE (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HBERBEEEERBEE (&)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) TEELEE (&)
The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. ZEVRBENERAEHERE
To the extent that interest flows are variable rate, the WFEmERLOEBFIERGTE - IR
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the MRS ELNBMERARNFIEGTHE -
end of the reporting period.
Liquidity risk tables mEE e RRE
Weighted Less than 1 Total
average month or 1-3 3 month undiscounted Carrying
interest rate on demand months to1 year Over 1 year cash flows amount
i —-EAUT =f8R ABRS
THRE IRERE  -ZZfER E-f BE-F HEBAE REE
% HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
AR FAR AR FAR AR TAR FAR
31 December 2017 “E-t¥+ZA=t-8
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTELRERE
Trade, bills and other payables ENEZER ENEER
HipEAF0E - 279218 231,183 - - 510,401 510,401
Bank and other borrowings ROREMEE 6.15 13,741 207,704 94,732 1,165 417,342 393,153
Obligation under finance lease RERERE 162 326 1,467 7,493 9,448 9,261
393,121 439213 96,199 8,658 937,191 912,815
31 December 2016 Z3-R"E+ZA=T-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTELRHAR
Trade, bills and other payables EREAEH BREER
b ERFE - 379325 67,798 121,082 738 575,591 575,501
Bank and other borrowings BIREMEE 568 141,717 191,344 75033 - 408,094 391,721
Obligation under finance lease BAMERE 162 33 1463 9,645 11,593 11,042
521,04 259465 197578 17,031 995,078 978,354
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BE_Z—tHF+A=T—RHIFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 40. BMBERER (&)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b)) HMEERKREEEEREE (&)

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity risk tables (Continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “less than 1 month or on demand” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December
2017, the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts
of these bank loans amounted to HK$44,567,000 (2016:
HK$59,721,000). Taking into account the Group's financial
position, the directors do not believe that it is probable
that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to
demand immediate payment. The directors believe that
such bank loans will be repaid within one year after the end
of the reporting period in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. At that

ﬂ/ui@ﬁf” (,55)
mEBEERBE (&)

BEREREERXNBTERR
Ea SR A T— @A T~k
RERE MEMEE - N2 —+
F+-A=1+—R ZSERTERD
RITIE A 4258 544,567,000 7T (=

T — RN 59,721,000 L) © KK E &
REBABFEARR  EETHEERT
SRR fT i E BB R BB
BRI E REERBHETHD
BEERR ZSRTETBRRE
KRB —FRNEE - B A& K7
B S mMLATE’ED R H44,567,000

7 7T 51,906,0008 7L ( —F — /N F ¢
59,721,0007% 7T % 1,862,0005 7T, ) °

time, the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows
will amount to HKS$44,567,000 and 1,906,000 (2016:
HK$59,721,000 and HK$1,862,000) respectively.
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40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

Fair value measurement

This note provides information about how the Group
determine fair values of various financial assets and
liabilities.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities that are
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities recorded
at amortised cost have been determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on a
discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant
inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of
counterparties.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE

41.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to a share option scheme approved by a written resolution
passed by the shareholders of the Company on 17 March 2005
(the "Option Scheme”) which has a term of 10 years, the Company
may grant options to the directors or employees, any business
consultants, business partners, suppliers, customers, agents or
financial or legal advisers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
for the recognition of their contributions, to subscribe for shares in
the Company with a payment of HK$1.00 upon each grant of options
offered.

The exercise price of the share option will be determined at the
highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant;

(i) the average of closing prices of shares on the Stock
Exchange on the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the option; and

(iif) the nominal value of the shares.

The share options are exercisable at any time during a period of not
more than 10 years from the date of grant, subject to the terms and
conditions of the Option Scheme, or any conditions stipulated by
the board of directors.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted shall not exceed 10% of the number of shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. Unless further shareholders’
approval has been obtained pursuant to the conditions set out in
the Option Scheme, no person shall be granted an option which,
if all the options granted to the person (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12 month period up to the date of
grant are exercised in full, would result in such person’s maximum
entitlement exceeding 1% of the number of issued shares of the
Company.

41.

URGRERARNRS

BREARFBRRN_ZTRF=A+LAA
BEMRIRMENERE S (THBRHE
8D ZEEMHR/0F  ARF AR
ARBREERMMBRANESHES  E
MEBHAAN FHBH HER TP K
BB RBERREBRENRELAR
ARG ERREUAEEERMNEE -5
FREXMIZ2BRERAMN1.008T -

BERTEEE/S NI =ENERE:

(i) ARE R R B BB AT e
miE:

(i) BRORBEBERERLAHIAER
5 BB ) U T (E : 2

(i A mEE-

ERREFSNGER RGNS EZTTRTE
UG ATAR IR T - BE AR o] A IR B HR
EEF B IB10F N BERF1T{E -

AAB AR HNBREMSRNHEE LR
BHAARBTEHEHETRMDEEA10% -
B ERIR BB BT PRI R TTEUS IR
#ESN RBER M A8 IEEMN 208 A B
AR T—BALORERERE(BREE
TERERTENBERE) B2RTESE
HREBEALTESHNBRNESHEBAARF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE

41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 41. LUBRHBEBSRHORS (&)

(Continued)
The following table discloses movements of the share options of TEREBRFRNARFESTHIEEFNBARQF
the Company entitled by the Company’s directors or employees BRENS:

during the year:

Number of share options EBREHE
Adjusted Outstanding
exercise price at 1 January, Adjustment
Exercise with effect 2016 and due to the Lapsed Outstanding
price to open offer 31 December open offer duringthe  at31 December
Date of grant (Note b) (Note a) (Note a) 2016 (note 34) year 2017
RZB-RE
BOHBER -A-BR HR
¥ RER ZE-RE ARBE RZB-t&F
e %8 t+=A=t-H [ +=A=+-H
it B (KiaEb) (M&ta) (M&Ea) R (WaE34)  REABAR R AT
Type of grantee
ESLYN b
Directors (Note d) 22 October 2010 HK$2.05078 T HKS1.76178 T 2,500,000 410,000 - 2,910,000
BZ (ititd) “E-ZE+ACTCH
Employees 27 December 2007 HKS1.76078 7T HKS1.51278 T 100,000 16,400 (116,400) -
B8 “ERLET A TLH
Employees 1 April 2009 HKS 111438 7T HK$095738 7T 100,000 16,400 - 116,400
EE —ZENEMA-B
Total 2,700,000 442,800 (116,400) 3,026,400
@it
Weighted average
exercise price 2 1.78 1.79
MEFHTEE
(@) The closing prices of the Company's shares immediately (@) RATRMREE-"ZTTLF+=
before 27 December 2007, 1 April 2009 and 22 October AZ++£B ZZZAFNA-B K
2010, the dates the options were granted, were HK$1.76, ZE-FEFTAT A (BREXR
HK$1.07 and HK$2.05 respectively. Immediate after the HHE) AT E S RlA1768 T
completion of the open offer on 19 July 2017, the exercise 1078 7T 2058 T BEE — T —tF
price of the share option granted on 27 December 2007, 1 tATHEMAREETKE R
April 2009 and 22 October 2010, were adjusted to HK$1.512, EZ+F+RA=+EH -ZTEAN
HK$0.957 and HK$1.761 respectively. FUA—BERE—ZTF+A=-+=

AEHMERETEEE D IAES
1.5128 70+ 0.9578 7T M 1.76 178 7T
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BHE_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE

41.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Number of share options (Continued)

(b)

The share options are vested in stages as follows:

On or after the second anniversary of
the date of grant 50%.

On or after the third anniversary of

the date of grant remaining 50%.
Options granted on 27 December 2007, 1 April 2009 and 22
October 2010 are exercisable until 26 December 2017, 31
March 2019 and 21 October 2020, respectively.

All the share options has been vested and no share options
expenses recognised during the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016 in relation to share options granted by
the Company. The share option scheme was expired on
16 March 2015, however, all outstanding share options
are exercisable until relevants dates detailed in note (b).
The Company has no new share option scheme as at 31
December 2017 and 2016.

These directors represented Ms. Chen Mei Huei and
Mr. Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer who resigned as executive
Directors with effect from 18 August 2017 but remain as
employees of the Company.

URORERARORS (F)

BRERE (&)

(b)

BEREIEEEBNT

% H B H#E
F_HEFRZE 50%

FRI%H B HAE
FoREFH B # T 50%
RNZEEZ+FE+_A=-++RH =F
ENFHNA—BMAZZE—FF+A
TR EBRES IR =
E—+tF+ A=+ B - ZZF—A
FZA=+—HBRZZFT_FF+ A
—t+—HRi{7fE-

BEARNGREERE B ERE
EFB BEE-_ZT—tFRK_F
—RNE+_A=Zt+—HIEFE W&
ERERERST - BREEERN
T—RFZA+BER A BT
BRERITEERERTRNEZMN T (0)
Fr3 878 B BRRTITE - AR RN ZE
—tFERZE-R"Ft+ZA=1+—H
I 4 AT {o) FTBE AR AE R 2 o

ZEEE RBMREELZ I KFrank Karl-
Heinz FischersE 4 MAER ZZ—+t
FNATNBREBEENTES B
REAARWES -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
LR ENEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

BH=E

42.

—EtF+A=1t—HILFE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under
the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at rates
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contribution paid and payable in the future years.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from the MPF
Scheme charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income represent contributions paid and
payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of
the scheme.

The employees employed by the operations in the PRC are
members of the state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the PRC government. The PRC operations are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit schemes operated by
the PRC government is to make the required contributions under
the schemes.

In addition, a subsidiary of the Company, Aggressive Digital
Systems Private Ltd., operates a defined benefit plan in India (Note
32) and certain subsidiaries of the Company in foreign countries
are required to contribute amounts based on employees’ salaries
to the retirement benefit schemes as stipulated by the relevant
local authorities. The employees are entitled to those subsidiaries’
contributions subject to the regulations of the relevant local
authorities.
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43.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

43. BEBALIHEERER

Transactions M X%
The Group had the following related party transaction: K& EITUATEBALRS:
Relationship Nature of transaction 2017 2016
B & XEME —Z—-+tF —ET—RF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHET
Associate Sales of goods 5,824 71,777
FA NG HESMm
Interest income 1,598 2,185
B A

Balances

Details of the Group’s balances with related party are set
out in the consolidated statement of financial position and
in notes 20, 21 and 30.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

(i) &8k
ANEB EEH A TSR BHNE
BB ISR R A KRBT FE20 ~ 21 %30 °
(i) FTEEBEAENEE

FRAEEREZEIREH M S B

management during the year was as follows: ST
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FAT
Short-term benefits % HAtE 7 11,445 12,497
Post-employment benefits 1 BRIKEH 297 244
11,742 12,741

In the opinion of the directors, the remuneration of
directors and key executives is determined having regard to
the performance of individuals and market trends.

EERR EFRETETHRABHM
TREEBEBRRETHBEME

iE °
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=

44,

45.

—EtF+A=1t—HILFE

PLEDGE OF ASSETS 44, EEEKH
At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were REmERR AEBEEHTIEERR 1
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group: RATERITEENER:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
Bank deposits RITF R 66 14,925
Trade receivables & W E Z 8RR 131,610 104,626
Property, plant and equipment W BB MEE 123,043 44,658
Investment properties SE Y 73,681 146,648
Assets classified as held for sale DEABEBIEHENEE 97,396
Inventory FE 206,407 103,082
Note:  Banking facilities also secured by pledge of the Company’s interest in Pro Mizt: SRITEEIEBEBA R Pro Band Technology,
Brand Technology, Inc. Inc. B4 23 5 17
ARBITRATION 45. HE

On 29 September 2011, the Group entered into a conditional
agreement (the "Agreement”) with an independent individual third
party (the “Original Shareholder”) and Technosat Technology JLT
FZE (“Technosat’,
wholly owned by the Original Shareholder), to subscribe for 375
new shares in Technosat at a cash consideration of US$7,500,000
(equivalent to HK$58,170,000), amounting to
enlarged capital. Technosat is set up to be engaged in operation of
digital TV and radio platform, pay TV channel, and sales and supply

a company incorporated in Dubai, which was

15% of Technosat's

of TV set top boxes.

As at 30 June 2012, the Group had paid a deposit of US$2,500,000
(equivalent to HK$19,467,000) to Technosat to acquire new shares
in Technosat which was fully provided for impairment in the prior
year. Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, the Group is required
to pay a further US$5,000,000 in relation to the subscription of
this 15% equity interest in Technosat. The subscription has not
yet been completed up to the date of approval of this report as
the conditions precedent of the subscription of new shares in
Technosat including the consent and approval by government
authority in Dubai has not been fulfilled.
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=

45.

—EtF+A=1t—HILFE

ARBITRATION (Continued)

Despite the Group's repeated requests for information, there has
been were no satisfactory response from the Original Shareholder
or Technosat (“Counterparties”) regarding the current status and
the procurement of obtaining government approval from the
government authority in Dubai. The Group has engaged legal
counsel to act for the Group and started dispute resolution
proceedings against the Original Shareholder and Technosat.

On 21 January 2013, the legal counsel of the Original Shareholder
and Technosat served a notice on the Group's legal counsel for a
claim on the further payment of US$5,000,000 in relation to the
subscription of 15% equity interest in Technosat.

The Group's legal counsel replied on behalf of the Group on 11
February 2013 in response to the claim of the Original Shareholder
and Technosat defending the claim as the directors of the
Company consider such claim invalid, as the conditions precedent
of the subscription of new shares in Technosat had not been
fulfilled and constituted a breach of the Agreement.

The Group's legal counsel had repeatedly requested the Original
Shareholder and Technosat to commence the next step of the
mediation process, but there has been no satisfactory response
from the legal counsel of the Original Shareholder and Technosat
up to the deadline set by August 2014. At the date of approval of
this report, the Group's legal counsel is in the process of arranging
the submission for the next step on the arbitration proceedings.

45.

hE (%)

BEAEE—BZE KRR R KTechnosat
(€ F77]) R B R Bk FE BT 3P H#E
ERERRBERSHBIE BEF AR
BSAMERNDOE AEBCZEEAZEMN
ARAEETTSE - Wi RIRR KTechnosat
RAEMSARRE -

R-E—=F—A-+—H BEREN
TechnosatHY) /% 2 B8 A A & B B A 2 R X
E— @A BERABERETechnosat 15%%
7N %5 ) ¥ — 2P FRIE 5,000,000 7T

REBHEZBEEOR -_Z—=_A+—8
REAREE O E R R K Technosatf) AR
RERREENE RRALRRRESRAR
A FRHE Technosat 37 I% B Jo )R 6 14 18 R X -
BB ERZ i MZBRRBER-

AEENZEZZBERMEZABELRRBRE R
Technosatig R T — FHABREFHEK
HEHEZZT-—WUFNARNLERE - IRE
B R B% 3 K Technosatfy A 2 BE 9 69 i = [@
B-RARSEMEZR ANEBEMEEE
MIRIEL RN — P HEE T EMmMRA -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R ENEENE P

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

HE-_Z—+tF+-A=1+—HLFE
46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 46. ALNFRNETEMBERF
Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31 December RZBE—+FR_FE—ARF+A=1+—
2017 and 2016 are as follows: = ZIS’A AIXEEZEMBARMEFBNT:
Issued and
Place of incorporation/ fully paid share
establishment/ capital/registered Proportion of nominal value of issued share/
Name of company operations Class of shares held capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
AREL/ BRIRAE AAABECRTRAEER/
NEER RY/EEnY BERHER B /ERER ERERNL A IEXE
2017 20 6
ZE-tF ZE-RE
Directly  Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
E# A% E# &
Top Peaker Group Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary USS10000% T 100% 100% Investment holding
("Top Peaker’) ("BVI")/Hong Kong
%Eﬁﬂi% EBRk REBR
[EBERES])/
éﬁé
Sandmartin (Zhong Shan) PRC Registered capital US$19,500000% T 100% 100%  Manufacture of electronic goods
Electronic Co, Ltd.
MUESTEFRHARRA  FE HHAR BEETEM
SMT Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS27 7T 100% 100%  Trading of electronic goods
EENRERAR i Bk 51ERES
SMT Electronic Technology Limited ~ Cayman Islands/Taiwan ~ Ordinary USSIETT 100% 100%  Trading of electronic goods
Reks/ /21 EBRk 51ERES
SMT (Macao Commercial Offshore) ~ Macau Quota capital MOP100,0002F 7 100% 100%  Trading of electronic goods
Limited
05 (AP RERZRE) ERAT &R RERA EFEME
TRT Business Network Solutions, Inc. ~ USA Ordinary US$100000% T 100% 100%  Trading of electronic goods
X EER STERE
PBT Cayman Islands/USA Ordinary/Preference  USS20000000% 7/ | 59.1% 59.1% Investment holding and trading of
549,759,033 7T satellite TV equipment and antenna
Reks/%8 tak/ Bk REBRUREEERZERKGES
PBI USA Ordinary USSTET 59.1% 59.1%  Trading of satellite TV equipment
and antenna
X EER GRERRXERXRBES
Sksteck Inc. Taiwan Ordinary NTW225,000,000 59.1% 59.1%  Design, manufacture and trading of
GEL satellite TV equipment and antenna
KERRERHBRAA £ ERk FEERRBRARHN HERES
FLT Hong Kong Technology Limited  BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US5450,0003 7T 100% 100%  Trading of optical fibre products
ARERHE/BE  LER rEERES
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 46. ZXQATRWNFTEME LT (&)

(Continued)
Issued and
Place of incorporation/ fully paid share
establishment/ capital/registered Proportion of nominal value of issued share/
Name of company operations Class of shares held capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
e/ BRTRAR ANIREEROTRAEE/
REER RY/ ety BERGES R /EREsR ERERH LA IEER
2017 2016
Z2-tF “ERF
Directly  Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
Ef % B fi%
BCN Distribuciones, SA. Spain Ordinary EUR412,102BX T 100% 100%  Research and development and
trading of electronic goods
AT LaER STHLHERES
DS Germany Ordinary EUR31,25008X 7T 100% 100%  Design and manufacture of
electronic goods
3z EER FFEmka RS
Sino Light Enterprise Limited Hong Kong/PRC Ordinary HK$ 12,6007 7T 64% 64%  Inactive
EBLEERAA &5/ 18 EER Tazh
E-passing Co, Ltd. Taiwan Ordinary NTW100,000,000 100% 100%  Service of integration system of
HER public program
REARAERAA £ EER ARRHA RARSZRRE
Aggressive Digital Systems India Ordinary INR30,000,000 51% 51%  Manufacture of electronic goods
Private Ltd. IEEL
0F EER REETHm
MyHD United Arab Emirate Ordinary AED 5000031 1 51% 51%  Satellite TV broadcasting
MR s ERE EBk BERRESR
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the EERRERINTHARGMBERREHARE
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets ENEEREERBETEER-EERAE
and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries HIREHMMBARNFEEERAT BRI
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of o
excessive length.
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at any FARMAKEIN T —EFR T —RF
time of the year or at 31 December 2017 and 2016. TZA=T—BMERBAREE M

TTEHES -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 46. ZXQATWNETEME LT (&)

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, PBT issued its share RBEZZ—R"FT-A=1+—HLFE"
capital of approximately HK$52,548,000 to its existing shareholders PETRERERRUBER EHEEERD
in the same proportion of their existing ownership interest. FE (B £ 51l 3% 77 952,548,000 JT K AR AR o
Therefore, proceeds of approximately HK$21,492,000 were received It + #921,492,0008 LM FT 1S FIBE B 31 AR
from the non-controlling interest holders. The issue of share capital =158 AMCER o 2517 PR N 3l 7% 2 B & iR
of PBT did not change the proportion of ownership interest of REBREESOLAIRAARIIZESE - B
each shareholder and control of the company and there was no FEREENAESEEEKRENATE
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling ZEMmER-

interests were adjusted and the fair value of consideration received.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BEEXRFEZEREENIFZENBE LT
material non-controlling interests B3
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of TRHEHEBEEAREERESNHAEEIESE
the Group that have material non-controlling interests: BB ARMEE:
Place of incorporation Proportion of ownership
and principal place of interest and voting rights held Profit (Loss) allocated to Accumulated non-controlling
Name of company business by non-controlling interest non-controlling interests interests
DNEER AR L 3 B % FERERSBNERE PEEFERERD
TEEXHY BHERRRENLA w7 (E]) R FERES
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tF ZT-RE —B-tF ZERE “E-tF —ERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn FEL TR FEL TR FET
PBT Cayman Islands/USA 40.9% 40.9% 13,155 16,567 96,270 82,536
HERE/*E
Ocean Oasis Group United Arab Emirate 49% 49% (77,822) (42,453) (243,752) (163,966)
P AR S R E
Individually immaterial subsidiaries (5,326) (3,817) (20,156) (13,040)
BRI R EAW BT
Total (69,993) (29,703) (167,638) (94,470)
@t
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 46. ZXQATWNETEME LT (&)

(Continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BEERFERESENIZENBE LT
material non-controlling interests (Continued) 1B (H#)

Summarised financial information in respect of PBT and Ocean B B K IEIE R R AIPBT K Ocean Oasis
Oasis Group that have material non-controlling interests are set Group® B 7 & RHL il 20 T o DA T B 7% & B
out below. The summarised financial information below represents BMEDRKEEBRRNARIMEHENEE-

amounts before intergroup eliminations.

PBT Ocean Oasis Group

2017 2016 2017 2016

—E—+HF ZE-RF —E—-+E —T—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR FET TR FET

Current assets MBEE 486,528 497,326 33,132 13,481
Non-current assets ERDEE 111,604 110,926 2,243 698
Current liabilities nEEE (353,833) (390,542) (532,816) (348,789)
Non-current liabilities ERDEE (14,108) (17,536) - -
Net assets/(liabilities) EE/(BE)FE 230,191 200,174 (497,441) (334,610)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

46. FRARWETENWELR (F)

BEEARFERESNHFZENBELT

material non-controlling interests (Continued) 1B (H#E)
PBT Ocean Oasis Group
For the period
For the year from 5 July
ended 2016 to
For the year ended 31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-RF
+tARRZE
8Z —E-RF
—E—+tF +=A
BZE+t-A=1T-LLEE tT=A=t+—8H =+—H
—E—+tF —E-RF LEE IR
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT TAET FTET FET
Revenue IhEny 995,309 1,193,787 65,862 11,586
Profit/(Loss) for the AEE/KERH
year/period wH, (EE) 32,147 40,486 (158,820) (87,065)
Total comprehensive income 2 E Y & %8 36,991 40,486 (162,827) (87,065)
Dividend paid to B FE PR AR 2 0 R S
non-controlling interests 2,507 - - -
Net cash inflow/ RENTSENNRS
(outflow) from A (Rt 8
Operating activities REEE 71,737 (72,587) (160,234) (134,365)
Investing activities BEEY (25,904) (31,559) (2,254) (249)
Financing activities BEEE (21,838) 125,653 168,903 188,972
23,995 21,507 6,415 54,358
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 47. ZAQRB#ERRE

COMPANY
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FAT
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR KRE 197,818 197,818
Deposit paid to an associate EN—EBE AN & - 46,306
Interest in an associate N—EEE AR ER 59,325 4,931
Amount due from an associate FE U — e Bt 2% 2 B A9 3R IR 41,727 40,128
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W B B8 A =) B R IR 108,565 116,025
Other receivables H fih B YW FE 2,617 3,464
Bank balances and cash RITEFRES 1,754 206
Total assets BEBE 411,806 408,878
Other payables B b jE ~F RIE (67,818) (65,568)
Borrowings BE (97,735) (46,535)
Amount due to a subsidiary JE 15— FEI B BB A R HY) SRR (170,578) (83,766)
Total liabilities BE#RE (336,131) (195,869)
Net assets BEFHAE 75,675 213,009
Capital and reserves IR A K (5
Share capital E&N 327,882 131,153
Reserves (note) i (M) (252,207) 81,856
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 7872 7] & A FEh 1 &5 75,675 213,009
On behalf of the directors RERES
Hung Tsung Chin Chen Wei Chun
HHRE PR {2 89
Director Director
BE EBE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 47. AAABHEMRR®T (&)

COMPANY (Continued)
Note:  Reserves of the Company Mat:  AREFEE
Contributed ~ Share option Accumulated
Share premium surplus reserve  Special reserve losses Total
R EE E-ON:A - BRERE R FHER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER TER TER TER
At 1 January 2016 R-Z—R"E—A—H 391,869 181,788 7,960 79,900 (219,790) 441,727
Loss and total comprehensive income  AEEBEREZENELE
for the year - - - - (447,765) (447,765)
Issue of share ELY) 87,894 - - - - 87,894
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RE+-A=+-H 479,763 181,788 7,960 79,900 (667,555) 81,856
Loss and total comprehensive income ~ AEEERREERFLEE
for the year - - - - (361,050) (361,050)
Issue of share BITRH 26,987 - - - - 26,987
At 31 December 2017 RZB—t5+-A=+-H 506,750 181,788 7,960 79,900 (1,028,605) (252,207)
The contributed surplus represents the difference between the consolidated B BERIETop Peakert AR A IR R E & BB F
shareholders’ fund of Top Peaker and the nominal value of the Company’s EEESERARRF R Top PeakeriM B 1TH)
shares issued to acquire Top Peaker at the time of a group reorganisation in RO mEMAERE-
prior years.
The special reserve represents the surplus arising pursuant to the HRFEESRR2RBEER(REEEMR
capitalisation of advances from shareholders as part of the group B — 510 FTEER &

reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R EGEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

48.

LITIGATIONS

HCA 2948/2016

On 29 November 2016, the Company was served a writ of
summons (“Writ 1") taken out by Zhi, Charles, as the Plaintiff (the
“Plaintiff”) against (i) Mr. Hung Tsung Chin (an executive director),
(i) Ms. Chen Mei Huei, (iii) Mr. Liao Wen 1, (iv) Mr. Akihiro Nagahara
("Mr. Nagahara”), (v) Mr. Sia Meow Leng, (vi) the Underwriter
and (vii) the Company (collectively “Writ 1 All Parties”) as the
defendants under action number HCA 2948/2016 in the High Court
of Hong Kong (the “Court”). Details of Writ 1 are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 November 2016.

On 17 May 2017, the Company's legal representative received a
facsimile from the Official Receiver's Office informing the Company
that the Plaintiff was adjudged bankrupt (the “Bankrupt”) on
26 April 2017 in HCB No. 5395/2016 and the Official Receiver
was appointed as the provisional trustee of the property of the
Bankrupt. The Official Receiver stated that under section 12(1)
and 58(1) of the Bankruptcy Ordinance (Cap 6), on the making
of a bankruptcy order, all the property of a bankrupt including
all things in action shall vest in the Official Receiver. The effect of
the bankruptcy order is that the Bankrupt was divested of and
ceased to have any interests in either his assets or his liabilities.
The Bankrupt would have no locus to commence or proceed with
the Proceedings unless the Official Receiver agreed to assign the
right of action to him. The Official Receiver also stated that, after
considering all of the relevant documents, it would not adopt the
proceedings under action number HCA No. 2948/2016 in the Court.

At the hearing held on 19 May 2017, after considering the
notice of discontinuance filed by the Bankrupt, the stance of the
Official Receiver and the submissions of the Company's legal
representatives, the Court dismissed the court action under
action number HCA 2948/2016 against the Company, Hung Tsung
Chin, Chen Mei Huei and Liao Wen | with costs to be paid by the
Bankrupt.

48.

e
HCA 2948/2016

RZE—RE+—AZ+AB A2 FWE
B Zhi, CharlestEBIRE A (TTRE A L) ¥(3)
RIS A (RITES) s (RER L
(INBEXEEE: (VREZLLE([REL
E) P REEEE VB RViDE
nal (e ERLKIEAL EAH
EANBEEESEER (VAR FRR
RAHCA 2948/20168)E 2k ([Ea <K
1) Eme z#FBIERNARTREAE S
E-RFEt+—AZt+ABZRM-

R-ZZTE—tFRA+EH ARFLEERR
KB —mEBEEEEEEERNRE AR
T—+FP A =+ 7S HFLHCB 5395/20165% 1
HEWE(IREA]) BEEEEZERW
ZERAEBEATENBRBZTA-BEE
BEERRTBRIBEWERD (F6Z)EH1201)
MssiE EEEBESK BEEANS
HYEREERATHERBREEREEE
E-WESHFERFREANEERBER
WHERTBAEMMERS BIEBRESE
EZRAEMMEREFLE TABEEAT
SRANETIMNRR - EEEMAEBERX
g WEEREBERNR RIS HEIUAR
AR IRHCA 2948/201638 N Z 74

RZE—tFRATNENRAF EEE
WEACBLNFILBAE WEESEESE
ENERRAAREERENERR A
BETEEARR] RIE - BREEREX
BAR 2 AP AR AR IR HCA 2948/2016 * B H
1S ERBEAZR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R ENEENE P

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

48.

LITIGATIONS (Continued)
HCA 3346/2016

On 22 December 2016, the Company was served a writ of
summons (“Writ 2") taken out by the Plaintiff against (i) Mr. Hung
Tsung Chin, (i) Ms. Chen Mei Huei, (iii) Mr. Liao Wen |, (iv) Mr.
Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer, (v) Mr. Chen Wei Chun (an executive
director), (vi) Yuming Investment Management Limited and (vii) the
Company (collective “Writ 2 All Parties”) as the defendants under
action number HCA 3346/2016 in the Court. Details of Writ 2 are
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 22 December
2016.

The Company has been notified by the Company's legal
representative that on 20 September 2017, the Court made an
order by consent that, among other things, the proceedings
against the Company, Hung Tsung Chin, Chen Mei Huei and Liao
Wen | be dismissed with costs of the proceedings be paid by the
Plaintiff, to be taxed if not agreed.

HCMP 284/2017

On 11 February 2017, the Company was served a writ of summons
("Writ 3") taken out by the Plaintiff, Kim Sungho, Kim Kyungsoo,
Lim Hang Young and Joung Jong Hyun as the plaintiffs (the “Writ
3 Plaintiffs") against the Company, the executive directors of the
Company, the auditor of the Company and other party as the
defendants (the "Writ 3 Defendants”) under action number HCMP
284/2017 in the Court. Details of the Writ 3 are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 13 February 2017.

On 10 April 2017, the Company was served a summons under
action number HCMP No0.284/2017 taken out by the Writ 3
Plaintiffs against the Writ 3 Defendants (“Summons”). Details of the
summons are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
11 April 2017.
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EERE (&)
HCA 3346/2016

RZZE—RNF+ZA=Z+=8 AR aKE
HREALO®EELEE: (REER L
(i) B SR LA ¢ (iv) Frank Karl-Heinz Fischer%t
A (BREBEAE (BFTES) ¢ (vi) Yuming
Investment Management Limited : K& (vii) A& 22
A (A [EISHETBE AL EARE
A v B AR SR FA R 5% AR HCA 3346/2016811F
M2tk (TE2MK2]) - E S MEHEH
RARBRA-_ZE—R"F+A=-+=H
/N i

ARAR-T—EFNA-+AEEERAK
REM OERELREZERS EHEERE
HEAQE ORIE REBRBEXRRED
Z AR FRAABE R B RE AN (H Az
ek A OEBE B E ) ©

HCMP 284/2017

RZT—tF A +—RB AAFRIHR
& A > Kim Sungho * Kim Kyungsoo * Lim Hang
Young M Joung Jong HyuntE & R4 A ([{E&]
THIREADEARE KARARIZHITE
FARRBZREEREMATEREE
A (TMERLMITE AL - B HIEB R AR
5% AHCMP 2847201789 B AR ([EFR LA
3) ERASHINHBHRARRBRAR =
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R-ZE—+FMA+H AR KEERS
HRIEE A BRI S AR3I E AE HRAA R 5
RHCMP 28420172 BE ([BZ£]) - BEREH
HIBENARR B AT —+FMA+—
B2z A
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BHE-_ZT—tHF+-A=+—RHLFE

48.

LITIGATIONS (Continued)
HCMP 284/2017 (Continued)

At a Court hearing held on 13 April 2017, the application by
Zhi Charles (“1st Plaintiff”) for an injunction order pursuant to
Summons was dismissed by the Court with costs payable by the
Tst Plaintiff to the Writ 3 Defendants, including the Company, who
were present at the hearing.

HCCW 90/2017

On 23 March 2017, the Company was served a winding-up
petition (the “Petition”) dated 23 March 2017 filed by Zhi, Charles
("Petitioner”) against the Company, directors of the Company and
other party (“Respondents”) in the proceedings in HCCW 90/2017.
Details of the Petition are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 24 March 2017.

On 29 March 2017, a striking-out summons was filed by the
Company to apply for an order to strike out the Petition in the
Court. On 21 April 2017, the Petition was struck out and the
proceedings therein was dismissed by the Court.

HCMP 1044/2017

The Company was served an originating summons under section
740 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) (“Summons 2") on
5 May 2017 filed by Fung Chuen as the plaintiff (“Summons 2
Plaintiff") against the Company as the defendant under action
number HCMP No0.1044/2017 in the Court. Details of Summons
2 are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 5 May
2017.

48.

EETREA ()
HCMP 284/2017(#&)

R-ZE—+FMA+=HRT2EREM
Zhi Charles ([F—REA) REBEESZREE
HLHRBERERERD THCE-RE
AR ERANERSHIEEA (BFEX
RE)XNHRE-

HCCW 90/2017

N_EBE—+HE=A-+=H AREIEER
Zhi, Charles ([RE A VR ZZFE—+F = A
ZtH=-HMERREL HARE  ARFE
EREMA ([HEADBLINBEREFSE
([2FE])HCCW 90/2017 - L FEEZ W B
BN AR BEHA-—_E—+E=AF_+mA
B Ao

R-ZE—tF=A-+NB ARRZHH
FERERNHSRRAZE R _F— L&MW
AZ+—H 2FEEWERBERELER
AR AR B HOARE B[ -

HCMP 1044/2017

R-ZE—+EFRARRAB ARAFRWE HE
R (EABREAN [EER2RE A AARAT
(TE B & A) B AR 5F AR 5 BHCMP
1044720178 2 GBI (55622F ) 74018 1H
T RHFEE ([FEE2]) -EE2 25 BEHR
ARARIBHA-—ZT—+tFRARBZA M-
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48.

LITIGATIONS (Continued)
HCMP 1044/2017 (Continued)

In the Summons 2, the Summons 2 Plaintiff applied to the Court
for, among others, the following orders (the “Application”):

(i) The Summons 2 Plaintiff and/or his authorized agent be
authorized to inspect and make copies of the documents in
relation to the investment in Dish Media and the Debtors;

(if) The Summons 2 Plaintiff and/or his authorized agent be
authorized to inspect and make copies of the documents in
relation to the investment in MyHD; and

(iii) The Summons 2 Plaintiff and his authorized agent be
authorized to inspect and make copies of the documents in
relation to the open offer announced by the Company on
24 October 2016 and the Open Offer.

The Company was advised by its Hong Kong legal advisers
in relation to the aforesaid litigation of the Group that if the
Application is granted by the Court, the likely orders which would
be made by the Court are that the Summons 2 Plaintiff and its
authorised agent will be entitled to inspect and make copies of
the requested documents (in full or in part), and that the Company
shall pay costs of the Application to the Summons 2 Plaintiff (to be
taxed if not agreed).

Pursuant to the order of the Court dated 17 October 2017 (the
“Order dated 17 October 2017"), it was ordered that the Company
shall produce to the Summons 2 Plaintiff those documents listed in
the schedule of the Order dated 17 October 2017. On 27 October
2017, the Company filed a notice of appeal (“Notice of Appeal”) to
the Court for a stay of execution of the Order dated 17 October
2017 pending the final determination of the appeal.
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48.

LITIGATIONS (Continued)
HCMP 1044/2017 (Continued)

On 15 December 2017, the Court held that the appeal had no
reasonable prospect of success and ordered that the Company'’s
application for stay be refused but that the time for the Company
to comply with the Order dated 17 October 2017 be extended to 5
January 2018.

On 22 December 2017, the Company amended its Notice of
Appeal and applied to the Court of Appeal of Hong Kong for a stay
of execution of the Order dated 17 October 2017 pending final
determination of the appeal (“Stay Application”). Pursuant to order
dated 22 December 2017, an interim stay of the Order dated 17
October 2017 pending determination of the Stay Application was
granted.

The Stay Application is now scheduled to be heard on 17 April
2018.

HCCW 207/2017

On 6 July 2017, the Company was served a petition for winding-
up dated 5 July 2017 (“Winding-Up Petition”) filed by Fung Chuen
("Winding Up Petitioner”) against the Company (“1st Winding-Up
Respondent”), Mr. Hung Tsung Chin (“2nd WindingUp Respondent”)
and Ms. Chen Mei Huei (“3rd Winding-Up Respondent”) in the
proceedings HCCW No0.207/2017.

48.

EETREA ()
HCMP 1044/2017 (&)

R-ZE—tHE+-_A+HB ERRBRLF
BEAEBHRE WESARBZHERS
wRE - EBEARAETFT_E—tF T A+t
A cHREAEEE —T— N\F—H
fAH-

RZE—tF+=-_A=+=8 ' XRAIEFT
FHRBAE WAEBLFERABEHER
TZE—tF+A+tBERER®<S EE L
FERKERALL (HERF]) - BEAH
ABZE—t+F+ A+ ZHHER®S
TREE_ZT—tFTAT+EREREDS
EHERETERAILEGE-

BEFRFRIR_ZT-N\FHATLESE
He

HCCW 207/2017

RZZE—tFLtARA ARAREERAKR
(IMBEBRREAR-_ZE—tFLARAM
bR ARA ([E—FR8WEA])
HEEEE([EFBBEAIRRE
BRE(E=ZFBWEABELNERZ
FE(BBE2FE])  FRRE RHCCW
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48.

LITIGATIONS (Continued)
HCCW 207/2017 (Continued)

Pursuant to the Winding-Up Petition, the Winding Up Petitioner
petitioned for (i) an order that the Company be wound up by the
Court under section 327(3)(c) of the Companies (Winding-Up and
Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Cap.32) of the Laws of Hong
Kong; (i) an order that a liquidator be appointed by the Court to
investigate into the affairs of the Company upon the winding-up
of the Company; (iii) an order that the 2nd and/or 3rd Winding-
Up Respondents do account to the Company for such payments
or dispositions which they had procured to be made for their own
benefit and/or for the benefit of entities substantially owned or
controlled by them and or other than for the Company's proper
purpose and operation of its business; (iv) an order that costs of the
Petitioner and the Company be paid by the 2nd and 3rd Winding-
up Respondents and (v) such other order as the Court thinks fit and
appropriate.

On 10 July 2017, a summons to apply for a validation order was
issued by the Company, 2nd and 3rd Winding-Up Respondents. At
the hearing held on 17 August 2017, a validation order was granted
by the Court on the terms as follows: the following disposition of
property and transfer of shares of the Company shall not be void by
virtue of the provisions of section 182 of the Companies Ordinance
(Cap 32) of Laws of Hong Kong: (a) payment made (or to be made)
into and out of the Company's bank account in the ordinary course
of business of the Company between the date of presentation of
the Winding-Up Petition and the date of judgment on the Winding-
Up Petition; (b) disposition of property of the Company made (or
to be made) in the ordinary course of business for proper value
between the date of presentation of the Winding-Up Petition and
the date of judgment on the Winding-Up Petition; and (c) allotment
and issuance of 1,967,295,201 shares of the Company pursuant to
the Open Offer and use of the proceeds from the Open Offer by
the Company. The Court has also ordered the WindingUp Petitioner
to pay the costs of the validation order to the 1st, 2nd and 3rd
Winding-Up Respondents.
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49.

LITIGATIONS (Continued)
HCCW 207/2017 (Continued)

On 30 August 2017, the Company applied for another validation
order under section 182 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap 32) of
Laws of Hong Kong, which provides that any transfer of the shares
of the Company shall not be void by virtue of the said section. The
validation order was also granted by the Court on 25 October 2017.
On 4 December 2017, the Company filed and served its points of
defence ("Points of Defence”) of the 1st Winding-Up Respondent.
On 11 December 2017, the 2nd and 3rd Winding-Up Respondents
filed and served the Points of Defence of the 2nd and 3rd Winding-
Up Respondents. Pursuant to a consent order dated 31 January
2018, the Winding-Up Petitioner should file and serve his points
of reply (“Points of Reply”) to the Company’s Points of Defence on
5 February 2018. As at the date of approval of the consolidated
financial statements, the Winding-Up Petitioner has yet to file and
serve his Points of Reply and has yet to apply for a time extension
for the same to be filed out of time.

The case management hearing is now scheduled to be heard on
25 April 2018, during which the Court will set down the procedural
timetable for the parties to comply with under the Winding-Up
Petition. It is expected that it would take approximately 1-2 years
(depending upon the Court's schedule) before the Winding-Up
Petition would be set down for the substantive hearing.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2018.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBERE

Six months
Year ended ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
June 30, December 31, December 31, December 31, December,
2014 2014 2015 2016 2017
—E-mF —Z-\mF “E-hfF —E-RF “E-tF
AAR=TH +:H5f75 +-f=+—-8 +ZA=+-H +=ZB=+-H
HFE EA1EA EFE EFE tEE
HK'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK'000
TET TET TET TET THER
RESULTS |
Revenue W 1,664,111 785,081 1627,889 1,801,501 1,544,838
Loss before taxation PR A ES 18 (87,110) (256,403) (97,936) (92,740) (167,033)
Income tax expense FIEHRE% (14,458) (14,191) (10,976) (14,618) (8,758)
Loss for the year/period AEE/AHEESR (101,568) (270,594) (108912) (107,358) (175,791)
Attributable to: BfE:
Owners of the Company KAGEAA (101,432) (264,543) (103,162) (77,655) (105,798)
Non-controlling interests JER R (136) (6,051) (5,750) (29,703) (69,993)
(101,568) (270,594) (108912) (107,358) (175,791)
At At At At At
June 30, December 31, December 31, December 31, December,
2014 2014 2015 2016 2017
—E-ImF —E-\mF —E-hF —ERF “E—tf
ANA=tH +ZA=+-8 +ZA=t-8 +-A=t—-8 +=ZHA=+-H
HK'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK'000
FTET TET TEL FTET TR
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BAELEE
Total assets EERS 1,563,576 1,402,281 1,282,857 1,322,698 1,287,825
Total liabilities BEASE (846,408) (989,958) (901,152) (1,040,580) (971,033)
717,168 412,323 381,705 282,118 316,792
Equity attributable to owners of AR EHEH AEHES
the Company 663,595 372,314 346,630 376,588 484,430
Non-controlling interests s 53,573 40,009 35,075 (94,470) (167,638)
717,168 412,323 381,705 282,118 316,792
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